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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

i F

Dr. Yang Zhihui (“Dr. Yang”), aged 46, is the chairman of the
board (the “Board”) of directors of Landing International
Development Limited (the “Company”) and has been an executive
director of the Company since 19 July 2013. Dr. Yang is responsible
for the leadership and effective running of the Board. He is one of the
directors and the sole shareholder of Landing International Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. One of his wholly owned
companies is the controlling shareholder of China Healthcare
Enterprise Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), stock code: 1143). He had been a director of Hubei
Landing Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000971) (“Hubei Landing”) until
December 2014. Dr.Yang was awarded an honorary degree, a Doctor
of Philosophy in Business Management from Jeju National University,
in March 2017. Dr. Yang has extensive experience in property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Ms. Zhou Xueyun (“Ms. Zhou"), aged 61, has been an executive
director of the Company since 9 August 2013. Ms. Zhou is currently
the vice president of Anhui Landing Holding Group Co., Ltd* (Z#&
S 42 EE AR A AF)). She was a director of Hubei Landing from
August 2012 to August 2013 and a director of Landing Industrial
(Hubei) Co., Ltd. from June 2012 to December 2014. Ms. Zhou served
as the general manager of asset operations at Anhui Tourism Group
Co., Ltd. and the manager of Anxing United Corporation of Zhuhai
Special Economic Zone* (Ek)8 48 7% 15 & 2 B & 482 7)) from 2002
to 2012.

Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas ("Mr. Fok”), aged 46, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Fok has been part of the
Company since 11 June 2010. He has worked in the listing division of
the Stock Exchange and has extensive experience in the field of
corporate finance and, in particular, in equity financing and financial
restructuring. Mr. Fok is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, and is also a
Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Fok was an executive director of Jian
ePayment Systems Limited (the shares of which are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8165)
from September 2007 to July 2016 and is currently an independent
non-executive director of both China Smarter Energy Group Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1004) and SFund International Holdings Limited
(the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1367).

# The English translation of Chinese names or words, where indicated are included
for information only, and should not be regarded as the official English translation
of such Chinese names or words.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
& E

Mr. Bao Jingiao (“Mr. Bao"), aged 52, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 16 November 2015. He
graduated from Anhui University with research study in Civil Law in
1988 and obtained a master’'s degree in Law from the Shanghai
Academy of Social Sciences. He is a lawyer qualified to practise in the
PRC. Mr. Bao is the founder and has been a partner of Anhui Chengyi
Law Firm since 2000. Mr. Bao was an independent director of Anhui
Kouzi Distillery Co., Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on the A-share
market on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 603589) until April
2017. He is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1143).

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (“Mr. Wong"), aged 44, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 26 September
2017. Mr. Wong graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University with
a bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10 years’
experience in accounting, auditing and consulting. Mr. Wong has been
a director of B&C Finance and Corporate Advisory Limited since
December 2005. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of both Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 767) and China
Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1143).

Save as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between each of
the Directors and senior management as required to be disclosed under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT / g
J I A /

DR. YANG ZHIHUI
114 2 1 A

Phase I of Jeju Shinhwa
World has fully opened, while
construction of Phase II has
commenced. Going forward,
we will focus on operation
of the project and continue to
explore suitable development
opportunities in other
markets. We will continue

to build on our strengths to
create greater value for our
shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
T A&

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of Landing
International Development Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
announce the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017. It
was a phenomenal year for the Group which achieved a turnaround
from a loss to a net profit of approximately HK$505 million and an
approximately 147% increase in revenue to approximately HK$896
million from continuing operations. The year will also be remembered
for the completion and opening of Phase One of Jeju Shinhwa World,
the Group’s flagship integrated leisure and entertainment resort in
Jeju, South Korea.

Jeju Shinhwa World covers a total area of 2.5 million square metres,
and the facilities completed as part of Phase One have been put into
operation in stages from 2017 to early 2018. Somerset Jeju Shinhwa
World, the first full-service resort condominium in Jeju, was opened in
April 2017; Shinhwa Theme Park, a collaboration with TUBAN
Company Limited, a premier South Korean 3D-animation company,
welcomed its first visitors in September 2017; Jeju Shinhwa World
Landing Resort, Landing Convention Centre and YG Republique
(which is a collaboration between the Group and YG Entertainment)
commenced operations in November 2017; and Jeju Shinhwa World
Marriott Resort and Shinhwa Shoppes opened in December 2017.

In February 2018, the Group obtained approval from the Government
of Jeju Special Self-Governing Province for the relocation of Landing
Casino to Jeju Shinhwa World and the expansion of the casino’s
exclusive gaming floor area to approximately 5,500 square metres,
which is nearly seven times larger than the casino’s original floor area
for gaming at the Hyatt Regency Jeju Hotel. The relocated Landing
Casino in Jeju Shinhwa World will be opened on 25 February 2018.

B

it RERRESBBREREGREAT (AR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
T A&

Landing Casino, with its excellent operations, ranked first for three
consecutive years in the annual “Anti-Money Laundering Assessment”
conducted by the Korea Financial Intelligence Unit (KoFIU) on the 16
foreigner-only casinos in South Korea. The ranking is even more
significant given that Landing Casino is the first foreigner-only casino
to have ranked first for three consecutive years in that assessment,
from 2015 to 2017, in the history of Korea's casino industry. After the
relocation of Landing Casino to Jeju Shinhwa World, the Group will
continue to adopt a system of operation and control in compliance
with international standards and practices while providing a world-
class entertainment experience for its customers. With Landing Casino
and all the other great facilities at Jeju Shinhwa World, the Company
aims to become a first-rate integrated resort operator in Jeju (or even
in South Korea) that allows customers to enjoy fantastic dining and
world-class accommodation, leisure and entertainment.

In the future, more world-class entertainment facilities will open at
Jeju Shinhwa World. Jeju Shinhwa World Shinhwa Resort and
Shinhwa Waterpark are scheduled to open in the middle of 2018.
Constructions of Jeju Shinhwa World Four Seasons Resort & Spa and
Lionsgate Movie World at Jeju Shinhwa World have been commenced
and are expected to be completed by 2020.

Jeju is renowned for its beautiful natural scenery, and it attracted
approximately 13 to 15 million domestic and overseas visitors in the
past few years. With the identified opportunity presented by scattered
tourist spots and the lack of a large-scale world-class leisure and
entertainment resort on the island, the Group has built Jeju Shinhwa
World to fully capitalise on tourism opportunities in Jeju. At Jeju
Shinhwa World, the Group cooperates with various international
partners in offering a wide variety of leisure and entertainment
facilities and luxurious travel experiences to a diverse range of tourists
from around the world. The Company hopes that Jeju Shinhwa World
to become an iconic mega tourist attraction in Asia.

During the year, the property development business of the Company
made satisfactory progress. The construction of resort condominiums
and villas in zone R of Jeju Shinhwa World that started in 2015 have
been completed. Since their launch in January 2017, the
condominiums and villas have experienced enthusiastic demand from
both Korean and overseas buyers. Anticipating that the successful
opening and operation of the facilities and attractions in Jeju Shinhwa
World will make the properties more attractive to purchasers, the
Group has decided to sell the remaining resort condominiums and
villas in zone R in 2018.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
T A&

The Group succeeded in disposing of the lighting business in the
People’s Republic of China and Les Ambassadeurs Club in the United
Kingdom during the year, resulting in an aggregate gain of HK$464
million and thus increasing its financial resources. In the future, the
Group will focus on its business of developing integrated leisure and
entertainment resorts in Asia. As the facilities at Jeju Shinhwa World
continue to gradually open, the Group will seek for business
opportunities elsewhere in Asia, trying to fulfil its aspiration of
becoming a world-class leisure and entertainment operator. The
purpose of this is to also maximise returns to shareholders.

On behalf of the Board and the entire management of the Group, |
would like to convey my sincere gratitude to all the shareholders,
customers, governmental authorities and business partners for their
support and trust. | would also like to express my heartfelt thanks to
all the employees of the Group for their diligence. We will continue to
work hard to deliver returns to our shareholders.

AN EE BN K T S L R AR A 3 Y R B EE A
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Yang Zhihui
Chairman and Executive Director
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
E Sl

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
of Landing International Development Limited (the “Company”), |
have the pleasure to report on the financial results, operations and
other aspects of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s consolidated
revenue from continuing operations was approximately
HK$896,250,000 (2016: approximately HK$363,447,000),
representing an increase of approximately 147% when compared
to the year ended 31 December 2016. The profit attributable to
the owners of the Company was approximately HK$505,067,000
(2016: loss of approximately HK$1,067,455,000). The significant
turnaround of the results for the year was primarily attributable to (i)
gain on disposal from discontinued operations in the United Kingdom
(the “UK"); (ii) realised gain from available-for-sale financial assets;
(iii) segment profit of property development arising from revenue
recognition upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers; (iv) gain
on fair value change of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss; (v) gain on fair value change of investment properties; and (vi)
reversal of impairment of other receivables. The basic and diluted loss
per share from continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company was HKO0.16 cents (2016: loss per share of HK5.18 cents
(restated)).

The revenue from discontinued operations amounted to approximately
HK$1,356,505,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
approximately HK$1,357,200,000). The Group completed the
disposals of the entire equity interests of Ace Winner Holdings Limited
("Ace Winner") which was engaged in the operations of the lighting
business in relation to the design, manufacturing and sales of light-
emitting diodes (“LED") and semiconductor lighting related products
(the”Lighting Business”) and Jolly Champion Holding Limited (“Jolly
Champion”) which was engaged in the gaming business in May and
October 2017 respectively. The gain on disposals was approximately
HK$463,927,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. The results
are presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial
information.

As at 31 December 2017, the consolidated net asset value per
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue attributable
to the owners of the Company was approximately HK$0.16 (2016:
HK$0.36 (restated)).
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
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OPERATION AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and during the year
after discontinuing the Lighting Business, the principal activities of the
Group are (i) development and operation of the integrated leisure and
entertainment resort (the”Integrated Resort Development”); (ii)
gaming and entertainment facilities (the “Gaming Business”); and (iii)
property development (the”Property Development”).

Integrated Resort Development

The Company, through its subsidiary, Landing Jeju Development Co.
Ltd (“Landing Jeju”), started investments in Jeju Shinhwa World
("Jeju Shinhwa World") in Jeju, South Korea in late 2013.

On 3 January 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Callisto Business Limited (“Callisto”) (the
“Callisto Acquisition”). Callisto is an investment holding company
having a 100% equity interest in Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. (“HBL") which
holds a 50% equity interest in Landing Jeju. Upon completion of the
Callisto Acquisition, Landing Jeju became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Complete ownership and control of Jeju Shinhwa
World provide the Company with a good opportunity to work
towards the achievement of its business vision of becoming one of
the global leaders in the tourism, leisure and entertainment industries,
to enhance the flexibility of the development of Jeju Shinhwa World,
and to facilitate the build up of the Company’s presence and goodwvill
in the integrated resort and tourism sector.

Jeju Shinhwa World is poised to be an iconic mega tourist attraction
in Asia, offering a selection of upscale hotels with more than 2,000
luxurious guest rooms, villas, a destination spa, a convention centre
equipped with full meeting and conference facilities, theme parks
and a waterpark catering to all ages, and a retail and food complex
housing one of the largest duty free shops in Jeju and offering
visitors a wide variety of local and international cuisines. Jeju Shinhwa
World is also home to one of the largest clusters of premium resort
condominiums & villas in Jeju with self-contained neighborhood and
leisure amenities.
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As at the date of this report, Jeju Shinhwa World has commenced
operations. Shinhwa Theme Park, in partnership with TUBAnN
Company Limited, the premier 3D animation company in South
Korea, welcomed its first customers on 30 September 2017. Jeju
Shinhwa World Landing Resort, Landing Convention Centre and YG
Republique (which is a collaboration with YG Entertainment) were
opened in November 2017 while Jeju Shinhwa World Marriott Resort
and Shinhwa Shoppes were opened in December 2017. Jeju Shinhwa
World Shinhwa Resort and Shinhwa Waterpark are scheduled to open
in around the middle of 2018. The development and construction of
Jeju Shinhwa World Four Seasons Resort & Spa and Lionsgate Movie
World at Jeju Shinhwa World are ongoing and are expected to be
completed in 2019 or 2020.

Jeju Shinhwa World (excluding, among others, areas designated for
gaming facilities) was designated as a Foreign Investment Zone under
the Foreign Investment Promotion Law in December 2015. Landing
Jeju is entitled to multiple tax relief benefits from 1 January 2016
onwards (details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 December 2015).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Integrated Resort
Development segment revenue of approximately HK$69,681,000
(2016: Nil) was generated from the business of Jeju Shinhwa World,
which was mainly comprised of hospitality, food and beverage services
and theme park ticket sales.

Gaming Business
Jeju, South Korea

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue generated from the
business of Landing Casino was approximately HK$235,801,000
(2016: approximately HK$363,447,000). As at 31 December 2017, no
impairment was made against the carrying amounts of the relevant
goodwill, intangible asset and property, plant and equipment of the
business of Landing Casino after assessment.

Total Gaming Business segment loss from continuing operations
of approximately HK$117,015,000 (2016: segment profit of
approximately HK$93,637,000) was recorded from the business of
Landing Casino for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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London, the UK

On 28 April 2016, Jolly Champion acquired the entire issued share
capital of Les Ambassadeurs Club Limited (“Les A”), which was
principally engaged in the Gaming Business in the UK. On 11 October
2017, the Group completed the disposal of the entire issued share
capital of Jolly Champion at a consideration of HK$2,500,000,000.

The Group recorded a disposal gain of approximately
HK$447,066,000. In respect of this discontinued operation, a net
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$205,520,000 (2016: approximately HK$83,659,000) was
recorded to the Group before its disposal. Details of the results of this
discontinued operation and disposal of Jolly Champion are presented
in notes 30 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property Development

The construction work for the resort condominiums and villas in zone
R of Jeju Shinhwa World, which started in 2015, has been completed
and the occupation permit was issued in January 2017. Following the
grant of the Certificate of Accommodation Business in January 2017,
Landing Jeju opened Somerset Jeju Shinhwa World (“Somerset”), the
first world-class full-service resort condominium in Jeju, in April 2017.

The Company began selling and delivering resort condominiums
in zone R to purchasers in 2017. For the year ended 31 December
2017, revenue of approximately HK$590,768,000 (2016: Nil) and
profit of approximately HK$295,384,000 (2016: loss of approximately
HK$404,640,000) were recorded in the Property Development
segment. As at 31 December 2017, approximately HK$1,267,895,000
(2016: Nil) was classified as completed properties for sale.

Lighting Business

In view of the downturn of the LED lighting industry, the Group
discontinued the Lighting Business by disposing of the entire issued
share capital of Ace Winner, which through its subsidiaries was
principally engaged in the Lighting Business in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). The disposal was completed on 5 May 2017.

The Group recorded a gain from the disposal of approximately
HK$16,861,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. In respect
of this discontinued operation, a net loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 of approximately HK$12,537,000 (2016: profit of
approximately HK$1,829,000) was recorded to the Group before
its disposal. Details of the results of the discontinued operation and
disposal of Ace Winner are presented in notes 30 and 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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OUTLOOK
Integrated Resort Development

In August 2017, Landing Jeju entered into (i) certain agreements with
Four Seasons Hotels and Resorts Asia Pacific Pte Ltd and their affiliates,
the world’s leading luxury hospitality group, for the launch of a luxury
Jeju Shinhwa World Four Seasons Resort & Spa in the heart of Jeju
Shinhwa World, and (ii) a theme park development agreement with
Lions Gate Entertainment Inc. (“Lionsgate”), a global entertainment
and media leader, in relation to the development of Lionsgate’s first
branded outdoor theme park built exclusively around world-famous
movies at Jeju Shinhwa World, to be named ‘Lionsgate Movie World'.
Jeju Shinhwa World Four Seasons Resort & Spa and Lionsgate Movie
World are expected to be opened in first half of 2020.

To continue the momentum of the phased openings and provide
better product offerings to the customers of Jeju Shinhwa World,
Landing Jeju plans to accelerate the construction of the waterpark,
theme park hotel and dormitory and training facilities in 2018 (which
were originally part of phase two of Jeju Shinhwa World planned to
be completed in 2019).

Jeju Shinhwa World has partnered with Mr. Kwon Ji-yong (best known
by his stage name of G-Dragon or GD), one of the most influential
artists and a well-known leader in music and fashion trends in Korea
and Asia, as the official brand ambassador to promote Jeju Shinhwa
World via multiple marketing platforms. The highly anticipated GD
cafe within the entertainment zone “YG Republique” is expected to
open in late February 2018.

Jeju Shinhwa World will be built according to international standards
and will provide a unique travel experience to all tourists. The Group
will also continue to work closely with the local government of Jeju,
South Korea to ensure the smooth progress and completion of Jeju
Shinhwa World. As one of the six core projects in Jeju, Jeju Shinhwa
World will become a world-class destination resort with premium
leisure and entertainment facilities that caters to local and overseas
visitors of all ages, and is expected to be one of the most popular
tourism destinations in Northeast Asia.
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Gaming Business

Despite the disposal of Les A on 11 October 2017, the Group remains
firmly committed to its Gaming Business and continues to operate
Landing Casino in Jeju, South Korea. The Group recognises that a
casino is one of the most essential facilities within an integrated resort
in order to offer its visitors a complete hospitality experience. In order
to leverage and utilise current casino operation resources within the
Group’s business as a whole, the Group obtained conditional approval
to relocate its Landing Casino currently located at the Hyatt Regency
Jeju Hotel to Jeju Shinhwa World on 21 February 2018, and increase
the exclusive gaming floor area to approximately 5,500 square metres,
about 7 times its existing area of approximately 800 square metres.
The Group will continue to develop the customer base to enhance
the “Landing” brand as a world-class brand in the gaming and
entertainment industries.

Property Development

The Group aims to provide a premium living environment for an
intelligent lifestyle. The occupation permit for the Jeju Project’s
resort condominiums and villas in zone R has been obtained, and
the Company hosted a ceremony handing over the keys to the first
batch of buyers in March 2017. During the second half of 2017,
the Group decided to delay the sales of the properties in order to
focus on the progressive opening and marketing of the theme park,
hotels and various entertainment facilities in Jeju Shinhwa World with
the expectation that the successful opening and operation of the
facilities and attractions within Jeju Shinhwa World would result in a
better market for the sale of properties. The Group will continue the
marketing campaign to promote the sale of the properties and sell the
rest of resort condominiums and villas in zone R in 2018.

2017 was a big year for the Company and our brand has continued
to gain traction in the tourism, gaming and property development
industries. Various world-class leisure and entertainment facilities will
gradually open throughout 2018 to better position the Company not
only in different industries but also to better serve guests from all
around the globe.

The Company will keep looking for fund raising opportunities
to strengthen the financial position of the Group as and when
appropriate. As at the date of this report, the Company has not yet
identified any suitable fund raising opportunity.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

We are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
general risk factors applied to the overall market and specific risk
factors applied to our respective business segments. We have
established risk management and internal control systems to ensure
that significant risks which may adversely affect our implementation
of our business strategy and performance are identified, reported,
monitored, and managed on a continuous basis. Principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group include:

Integrated Resort Development

(i)

(iii)

project cost overruns and delays: the construction progress
may be affected by unforeseeable factors such as weather
interference, natural disasters, or shortages of building materials
or skilled labour. Contractors may be responsible for the
additional costs of delays. If the contractors are not able to fulfill
their obligations, the Group may be required to bear additional
project costs;

market conditions and trends in the tourism industry: the
general market conditions and prospects of the global economy
will affect the growth and profitability of the tourism industry in
South Korea. Other factors can influence the tourism industry
as well, such as international tourism patterns, currency
fluctuations and the favourability of government policies.
Any recession in the global economy, deflation or change in
government policies, or deterioration in the tourism industry
in South Korea would adversely affect Jeju Shinhwa World’s
operations and profitabilities; and

shortage of labour and rising labour costs: the service industry
is generally labour intensive and the Group may encounter
difficulties staffing the operations. The operations in Jeju
Shinhwa World requires large number of labour from various
professions with specific skills. Significant increase in the costs
of labour would increase the Group’s staff costs and adversely
affect the Group’s profitability.

Gaming Business

(i)

winnings of players in casino could exceed casino’s winnings:
due to an inherent risk in the gaming industry, a casino does not
have full control over its win-rates or those of the players. If the
win-rates of players exceed those of the casino, the Group may
record a loss from gaming operations, which could materially
and adversely affect the Group’s business, cash flow, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

theoretical win rates for casino operations depend on various
factors, some beyond its control: in addition to the element of
chance, theoretical win rates are also affected by other factors,
including players’ skill and experience, the mix of games played,
the financial resources of players, the spread of table limits, the
volume of bets played and the amount of time players spend
on gambling. These factors, alone or in combination, may
negatively impact the casino’s win rates, which may materially
and adversely affect the Group’s business, cash flow, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;

risk of fraud or cheating by gaming patrons: players in the
casino may commit fraud or attempt to cheat at times in
collusion with employees of the casino in order to increase their
winnings. Failure to discover such schemes in a timely manner
could result in losses in gaming operations. In addition, negative
publicity arising from such schemes could have a material and
adverse impact on the Group’s reputation, which may further
adversely affect the Company’s business, cash flow, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects; and

anti-money laundering policies and compliances with applicable
anti-money laundering laws may not be sufficient in preventing
money laundering activities at the casino: the casino gaming
industry is prone to potential money laundering and other illegal
activities and the casino may not be able to completely prevent
money laundering and other illegal activities from occurring
within its casino premises.

Property Development

(i)

(i)

(iii)

changes in government regulations and policies: the local
governments may periodically revise relevant regulations and
policies in property development according to the latest market
development in real estate, and this will significantly affect the
Group's development plans, budgets and strategies;

environmental risk: the potential liability for environmental
problems could result in substantial costs due to a variety of
laws and regulations concerning the protection for health and
the environment; and

volatile real estate prices: real estate demands and prices are
sensitive to various economic and social factors, for example,
the state of the economy, bank interest rates, the size of the
population and the prevailing immigration policy. The real estate
prices could be volatile due to these factors, in turn affecting
the Group’s turnover, budget and operation.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had non-current assets
of approximately HK$12,400,262,000 (2016: approximately
HK$5,994,625,000) and net current assets of approximately
HK$5,804,512,000 (2016: approximately HK$10,231,053,000). The
current ratio, expressed as the ratio of the current assets over the
current liabilities, was 6.7 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 10.1). The
significant decrease in the current ratio is mainly due to the decrease
in current assets which were utilised in capital expenditures for
long-term business operations during the year ended 31 December
2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the reversal of impairment
of trade and other receivables (net) from continuing operations
amounted to approximately HK$209,041,000 (2016: provision
for impairment of approximately HK$2,184,000). The reversal
mainly represented the subsequent collection of the doubtful
other receivables which were provided for prior years. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had prepayments, trade and other
receivables of approximately HK$1,015,557,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,516,320,000). As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
bank balance and cash of approximately HK$4,338,022,000,
with approximately HK$1,022,360,000, HK$2,028,250,000,
HK$1,227,195,000 and HK$1,445,000 held in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), Korean Won ("KRW"), United States dollars (“USD")
and UK pound sterling (“GBP") respectively and the remaining
mainly held in Renminbi (“RMB") and Philippine Pesos (“"PHP")
(2016: approximately HK$6,774,501,000, with approximately
HK$2,511,763,000, HK$850,682,000, HK$3,222,054,000 and
HK$171,649,000 held in HKD, KRW, USD and GBP respectively and
the remaining mainly held in RMB).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has current trade and other
payables of approximately HK$1,001,094,000 (2016: approximately
HK$875,506,000) and bank and other borrowings in USD with
floating interest rate of approximately HK$195,373,000 and in KRW
with fixed interest rate of approximately HK$1,789,206,000 (2016:
bank and other borrowings in RMB with fixed and floating rate of
approximately HK$78,192,000, in HKD with fixed and floating interest
rate of approximately HK$133,788,000 and in USD with floating
interest rate of approximately HK$213,879,000) while total liabilities
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$3,072,178,000 (2016:
approximately HK$8,244,092,000). The Group’s gearing ratio, which
was measured on the basis of the Group’s total liabilities divided by
total assets, was 16.0% (2016: 47.5%).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 22 March 2017, the Company completed (a) the capital reduction
of the issued share capital of the Company through a cancellation of
the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each
of the issued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each such that the nominal
value of each issued new share would be HK$0.01; and (b) the sub-
division on the basis that every unissued ordinary share of HK$0.10
each in the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company be
sub-divided into ten new shares of HK$0.01 each.

Rights Issue

During the year ended 31 December 2017, approximately
HK$1,256,000,000 out of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$6,446,000,000 raised by way of a rights issue completed on 20
July 2015 has been applied towards the development of Jeju Shinhwa
World and so, as at 31 December 2017, the whole amount of such
net proceeds has been applied as its intended use stated in the
prospectus of the rights issue dated 29 June 2015.

On 26 April 2017, the Company completed a rights issue on the
basis of five rights shares for every one share of the Company held
on the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.05 per rights
share (the “2017 Rights Issue”), and net proceeds of approximately
HK$5,063,252,000 was raised by way of issuing 102,829,396,285
rights shares. As at 31 December 2017, the whole amount of such net
proceeds has been applied towards its intended use as stated in the
prospectus of the 2017 Rights Issue dated 31 March 2017. Following
the completion of the 2017 Rights Issue, the board lot size for trading
in shares was changed from 5,000 shares to 60,000 shares.

Placing

On 14 September 2017, the Company completed the placing of
24,000,000,000 shares under a general mandate to not less than
six placees at the placing price of HK$0.075 per placing share
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the placing agreement
dated 31 August 2017 entered into with the placing agent, Kingston
Securities Limited. The net proceeds from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$1,790,749,000 and among which, approximately
HK$1,049,000,000 has been applied towards its intended use as
stated in the announcement dated 31 August 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 147,395,275,542 with a nominal value of
HK$0.01 each.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

INVESTMENTS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2017, the Group was holding listed equity
investments with a fair value of approximately HK$319,015,000
(2016: approximately HK$462,070,000) (representing approximately
1.66% of the total assets of the Company (2016: approximately
2.66%)), which were classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of the Group. Realised gain of approximately
HK$57,903,000 (2016: loss of approximately HK$127,490,000) and
net unrealised gain of approximately HK$176,163,000 (2016: loss of
approximately HK$170,874,000) in respect of such investments were
recorded in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017,
among which, unrealised gain of approximately HK$175,885,000
was resulted due to the upward movement of stock price of the
Company’s equity investment in Kingston Financial Group Limited (the
shares of which are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code: 1031).
There was no single equity investment which had a fair value
representing more than 2% of the total assets of the Company as at
31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group fully redeemed
an unlisted investment fund, Riverwood China Growth Fund,
with a loss on disposal of approximately HK$61,152,000 (2016:
approximately HK$82,026,000) recorded in profit or loss in respect
of such financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. Due to
downward movements of the fund price, an unrealised loss of
approximately HK$284,944,000 was recorded as well during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The fund was managed by the investment
manager, Riverwood Asset Manager (Cayman) Limited, and the
investment portfolio comprised both listed and unlisted equities,
including equity related instruments of convertible bonds, preference
shares and warrants. The fund invested primarily in companies located
in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore. Details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 December
2015.
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Available-for-sale financial asset

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a
realised gain of approximately HK$89,632,000 upon the close of
an unlisted investment fund, which was classified as available-for-
sale financial asset. The purpose of the fund was to carry on the
business of investing, holding, monitoring and realising investments
made with the principal objective of achieving a high rate of return
through capital appreciation and through investments identified by
the general partner that operated in or derived significant business
opportunities from the financial services, natural resources and/or
property investment sectors. There were no available-for- sale financial
assets as at 31 December 2017.

ACQUISITIONS
Callisto Acquisition and Autumnglow Acquisition

On 3 January 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Callisto at a total consideration of
approximately HK$3,189,000,000. Callisto, through HBL, indirectly
owns 50% of the issued share capital of Landing Jeju.

On 3 January 2017, the Group also completed the acquisition of
50% of the entire issued share capital of Autumnglow Pte. Ltd.
("Autumnglow”) at a consideration of SGD1 (the “Autumnglow
Acquisition”).

The Callisto Acquisition and the Autumnglow Acquisition were
aggregated as major and connected acquisitions of the Company.
Upon the completion of the Callisto Acquisition and the Autumnglow
Acquisition, Callisto and Autumnglow became wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and as a result, the Company now
wholly owns Jeju Shinhwa World. Details were disclosed in the circular
and announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2016 and
3 January 2017 respectively.

DISPOSALS
Disposal of Lighting Business

On 5 May 2017, the Group completed the discloseable disposal
of the entire issued share capital of Ace Winner, which through
its subsidiaries was engaged in the Lighting Business, at a
consideration of HK$50,000,000. A gain on disposal of approximately
HK$16,861,000 resulted from the disposal. After the disposal, the
Company is no longer a shareholder of Ace Winner and the financial
results, assets and liabilities of Ace Winner and its subsidiaries ceased
to be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Company. Details of this were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 April 2017.

T A A
HE-T—tFT-A=T—ALTE A%

89,632,000 87T  HESEAHEENHKEE -
ZERSZENTIARERE 35 BERRER
WEZEE HFXrZEEASREBARAFH
FIREBLBRS - RARERESUMERETE
WAERBEBAREZINE » WEREBEHFREES
O#HR - R-T—+F+ - =+—HIETM
AEHETBEE -

WHisEIE
Callisto Y FBEIE K Autumnglow KB TE

AZTE—+F—A=H  AEBZKUE Callisto

FEBEITRA - LR(EL A 3,189,000,000 4
JT ° Callisto 75 8 HBL M #Z A & S BN 50% B2
BTN ©

R-_Z—tE—A=Z8 AEEFTKRKE

Autumnglow Pte. Ltd. ( [ Autumnglow] )

EEHBBEITHRAZS0%  REA1FME T
(TAutumnglow WEEEE | ) -

Callisto Y & % 18 & Autumnglow W EFEHE 4
HAEARRAZEERBAERS - Callisto WIEE
18 & Autumnglow 4 & = 15 58 5 7% - Callisto &
Autumnglow AR R R 2 Z2EM B AR - Bt -
AABIREE2EHEAEMNEFER - BEFED
RARRHBASRA-TE—R"F+_A+=AK
—E—+tF—AZHZBARDEREE -

HESH
HE RIS

R-ZT—+tERAFAH AEERTKLEE Ace
Winner 2B B TIRAZETHEER S  REA
50,000,000 &7 - BB AREBEWBARNSE
PRAAZERS - BE BIHEESHEREL 16,861,000
BT ETHEETHEE - ARQATHAAce
Winner Z B% 5+ 1 Ace Winner R EH W E R E 2
BISEE BENABNTHEARR ZEREH
BREEHAR - BEFBERARFTHHAS
T—+FNA -+ N\BZRERIFEE -

Landing International Development Limited | & R B ¥ 3 E B R 2 7

26



LETTER FROM THE BOARD
E Sl

Disposal of Gaming Business in the UK

On 11 October 2017, the Group completed the major disposal of
the entire issued share capital of Jolly Champion which, through its
indirect subsidiary, Les A, was engaged in the Gaming Business in the
UK at a consideration of HK$2,500,000,000. A gain on disposal of
approximately HK$447,066,000 resulted from the disposal. After the
disposal, the Company is no longer a shareholder of Jolly Champion
and the financial results, assets and liabilities of Jolly Champion
and its subsidiaries ceased to be consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Company. Details of this were disclosed in
the announcements and circular of the Company dated 7 September
2017 and 11 October 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant investments,
material acquisitions or disposals that should be notified to the
shareholders of the Company during the year up to the date of this
report.

The Company will make further announcements and comply with
the relevant requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as and when
appropriate. The Company does not rule out the possibility that the
Company will conduct debt and/or equity fund raising exercises when
suitable fund raising opportunities arise in order to support future
developments and/or investments of the Group and the Company will
comply with the Listing Rules, where applicable, in this regard.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:
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Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material capital
commitments.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the following assets of the Group were
pledged to certain banks or financial institutions to secure general
banking facilities and other facilities payable granted to the Group:
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Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material charges B¢ F XX FRiERE SN - NEBEN BT M E AEER
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CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY
RISK

The Group’s cash flow management objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through a combination
of internal resources, bank borrowings, and other debt or equity
securities, as appropriate. The Group is comfortable with the present
financial and liquidity position, and will continue to maintain a
reasonable liquidity buffer to ensure sufficient funds are available to
meet liquidity requirements at all times.

CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE STRUCTURE

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in HKD,
KRW and USD. As at the date of this report, the Group has not
entered into any agreement to hedge against foreign exchange risk.
Given the fluctuation of KRW and USD in recent years, the Group will
continue monitoring the situation closely and will introduce suitable
measures as and when appropriate.

The Group had limited exposure to interest rate fluctuations on
bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2017, as most of the
interest rates applicable to the bank and other borrowings are fixed
throughout their respective loan terms.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had around 1,950
(2016: continuing operations-around 500 and discontinuing
operations-around 900) full-time employees with total staff costs
(including Directors’ remuneration) amounting to approximately
HK$569,167,000 (2016: approximately HK$303,689,000) including
management and administrative staff and production workers from
continuing operations. Most of the employees were stationed in
South Korea and Hong Kong. The remuneration, promotion and salary
increments of employees are assessed according to the individual’s
performance, as well as professional and working experience, and in
accordance with prevailing industry practices. The Group also offers a
variety of training schemes to its employees.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to convey our sincere gratitude to
all employees for their diligence and contributions to the Group.

I would also like to acknowledge the continual support from our
customers, suppliers and shareholders during the year of 2017.
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For and on behalf of the Board

Yang Zhihui
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 21 February 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

inE Nk &

The Company is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance and business ethics in the belief that they are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders, to comply with increasingly stringent local and
international regulatory requirements, and to fulfil its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2017 except for the
following deviation.

On 26 June 2017, the Company failed to comply with Rule 3.10(1)
and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the terms of reference of each
of the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Board Committees”) after the
retirement of Mr. Chen Lei as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Board Committees. Following the
appointment of Mr. Wong Chun Hung on 26 September 2017 as the
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Board Committees, the Board comprises two executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. As a result, the number of
independent non-executive Directors and the number of members of
each of the Board Committees now comply with the requirements
under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD

The Board is mainly responsible for overseeing the business and affairs
of the Group and aims to enhance the Company’s value for
stakeholders. The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Roles of the Board include reviewing and guiding corporate strategies
and policies, monitoring financial and operating performance and
establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management and
internal control systems.

The primary role of the Board is to oversee how management serves
the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. To do this, the
Board has adopted corporate governance principles aimed at ensuring
that the Board is independent and fully informed on the key strategic
issues facing the Company. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.

The Company appointed Dr. Yang as the chairman of the Board and
executive Director of the Company on 19 July 2013. Dr. Yang has
over a decade’s experience in property development in the PRC. He is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board. The
Company does not have a position of “Chief Executive Officer”,
therefore, the executive Directors undertake the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business and strategic planning of
the Group with the advice of all non-executive Directors. Under the
existing arrangement, the Board believes that the balance of power
and authority is adequately ensured and the current arrangement is
for the benefit of the Group. However, the Board will also review
regularly the board composition and appoint a Chief Executive Officer
if a suitable candidate is identified.
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The balanced board composition has been formed to ensure strong
independence exists across the Board and save as the deviation
mentioned above, the Company has met the requirements under Rule
3.10 and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Board to include at
least three independent non-executive Directors, representing at least
one-third of the Board. At least one of the independent non-executive
Directors has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The brief biographical details of the Directors are
set out on pages 6 to 7, which demonstrate a diversity of skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications. The Company has received
from the three independent non-executive Directors annual
confirmations of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers such Directors to be
independent. In respect of code provision D.1.4 under the CG Code,
subsequent to 31 March 2012, formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their respective
appointment were subsequently executed by all Directors.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws"”),
at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the
meeting at which he retires.

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate fullest
possible attendance. The company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) assists the executive Directors in setting the
agenda of Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any
business that he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings. Board
papers are circulated to all Directors within reasonable time before
the Board meetings to ensure timely access to relevant information.
Directors may choose to take independent professional advice if
necessary. Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated to all
Directors for comments. Final versions of minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director. The Company held twenty-
three (23) Board meetings and two (2) general meetings in 2017.

The Board has established three Board Committees to oversee
particular areas of the Company'’s affairs and to assist in the execution
of its responsibility. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s
expense. As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board
and the Board Committees are given below and their respective
responsibilities are discussed in this report.

ExgflezRMeEAHENEERESEY
BREFEEE ARRIZARME ([2RARE D
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EER - URRKEA REMESHBAER - &
FEVERASKBEVERER - @& LY
BERERERTHEBEFEHME - @FTH
ZERERBATANERTE  HAEFELA
BEA NMEAeERRERHeHTH - R-F
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HRREHEHERABITERY - WAlRHAE
BRFRBYEEER - BAAARAXN - R
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Audit | Nomination : Remuneration :

Board of Directors Committee ! Committee ! Committee !
EEE ERERE RIZEE | FHEEE
T | 1

Executive Directors: HITES . ' ' '
Dr. Yang Zhihui (Chairman) ML+ () _ : _ : _ :
Ms. Zhou Xueyun AE=XT - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIAKHITESE : : :
Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas EERTE committee | committee | committee |
chairman | chairman | chairman |

ZEBEXE ! ZEEXFE ZEEeXE

Mr. Bao Jingiao R e member : member : member :
KA | D= KB |

Mr. Wong Chun Hung EIEME A member ! member | member |
mE mE | KB |

An updated list of Directors, identifying their roles and functions at
the Company, is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

ARAREHEFTZE(EFIAEEARAZA
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There is no service contract signed between the Company and any
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas was
appointed for a term of one year, which is automatically renewable
for successive terms of one year upon the expiry of the relevant term;
while Mr. Bao Jingiao and Mr. Wong Chun Hung were appointed for
a term of three years commencing from 16 November 2015 and 26
September 2017 respectively.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code (the “Board Diversity Policy”).
The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All director appointments will be
made on the basis of merit and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers to perform an audit
for the year ended 31 December 2017 at a fee of approximately
HK$3,300,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fok Ho Yin,
Thomas (Committee Chairman), Mr. Bao Jingiao and Mr. Wong Chun
Hung.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of the CG
Code.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review and monitor
the preparation of the Group’s financial statements and annual and
half-year reports and accounts; (i) monitor, develop and implement
the Group’s policy on external auditors; (iii) recommend the
appointment and reappointment of the Group’s external auditor; (iv)
supervise the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems; and (v) develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed
with the management and the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and has discussed
auditing and financial reporting matters and risk management and
internal control systems.

During the year, two meetings were held by the Audit Committee and
attended by all members to review and discuss financial reporting
matters, including the review of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements and re-appointment of an external auditor.
During the year, there were no disagreements between the Board and
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee is comprised
of three independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Fok Ho Yin,
Thomas (Committee Chairman), Mr. Bao Jingiao and Mr. Wong Chun
Hung.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of
the Nomination Committee are available on websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of the CG
Code.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; (ii)
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment and succession planning of
Directors; (iii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iv) assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

During the year, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee
and attended by all members to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Fok Ho
Yin, Thomas (Committee Chairman), Mr. Bao Jingiao and Mr. Wong
Chun Hung.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of
the CG Code.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to: (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure for Directors’ and senior management remuneration; (ii)
ensure that they are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to
the Group’s overall performance, having regard to the interests of
shareholders; (iii) make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management; and (iv) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

The remuneration payable to each of the Directors of the Company is
determined with reference to their individual performance,
comparable market statistics and the operating results of the
Company. During the year, one meeting was held by the
Remuneration Committee and attended by all members to review and
discuss the Company'’s policy and structure of remuneration of the
Directors. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.
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The overall attendance record of the Directors at the Board meetings, EEN T Lt+FLHEESCCE BEELE®
Board Committee meetings and general meetings in 2017 is set out ~ @ RARE A ® 7 BEEDSEFH N T X :
as below:

' ) ' ) [
I Audit 1 Nomination | Remuneration | I
Board : Committee : Committee : Committee : General :
Meeting | Meeting | Meeting | Meeting | Meeting |
| BRZE® | REZEE | FMZEE . |
Ezges | = e =6 BREAE |
(23 in total) : (2 in total) : (1in total) : (1in total) : (2 in total) :
(BHBR) | (BH2R)  BH#IR) 0 EHIR) 0 (B0
Number of meetings during the year AFEREZRH : : : : :
Executive Directors HITES | | | | |
Dr. Yang Zhihui (Chairman) PEgET(FE) 2323 | NA | NA | NA | 171
Ms. Zhou Xueyun BEP 233! NA | NA | NA | 0 !
Independent Non-Executive Directors B 3k#/TEE [ [ [ [ [
Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas BEAKE 2323 ! 2! n! n! 22!
Mr. Bao Jingiao W yEVER 0 " " 0
Mr. Wong Chun Hung (appointed on & EIER4E I I I I I
26 September 2017) (R=F—+% ! ' : : '
NA=Z 1A REE) " 00 | 00 | 00 | 00 |
Mr. Chen Lei (retired on BELE | | | | |
26 June 2017) (RZF—+F | | | | |
AA=HABER) 12113 | in' "' in' 20!
N/A: T
DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES EFERERERZEERE
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage for ZARREMARFEELSABRERFESTHNR
directors’ and officers’ liabilities incurred in discharge of their duties — BITHEEBERMEATTLTHAEHERE -
while holding office as the Directors and officers of the Company.

TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL BillRERER
DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive and AR B MBEZEZAHESRE2ERIEXDH
formal induction to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the ¥} UFERESAER 2 £BEEUREFH
operations and businesses of the Group as well as the director’'s 7 - Bt E L FRAI RABBIEE B R T HEE 2HE -
duties, responsibilities, and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant regulatory requirements.

Annual Report 2017 | — & — 4 4
39



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
inE Nk 43

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates on
the Group's business and operation, as well as its financial position
and budget. They were also provided with the information which
covered topics, including but not limited to, corporate governance
matters, disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates and
changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements in which
the Group conducts its business, and reading materials which are
relevant to their duties and responsibilities for their study and
reference. During the year, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its model code for securities
transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry to all
Directors by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
GROUP’S FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view, and
are prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards in force, and are published in a
timely manner. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
applying suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis and
ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s overall performance,
financial position as well as prospects in a timely manner; and the Board
is pleased to report that the annual and interim results of the Group are
announced within three months and two months limit respectively after
the end of the relevant periods.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives and maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group to safeguard
investments of the shareholders and assets of the Group at all times.
The risk management and internal control systems aim to help achieve
the Group's business objectives, safeguard assets and maintain proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information.
However, the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the consolidated
financial statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure when business objectives are being sought. The
Audit Committee reviews risk management and internal control issues,
if any, identified by the external auditor, regulatory authorities and
management, and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee in turn reports material issues, if any, to the Board. The
Board and management have conducted regular reviews during the
year on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls in areas of financial, operational
and compliance controls, various functions for risk management as well
as physical and information systems security. A year end review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems has been conducted annually and the systems are considered
to be effective and adequate. The Company has also received a
confirmation from the management of the Company to confirm the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems.

The Group has outsourced its internal audit function by engaging a
professional third party to assess and comment on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
during the year. There was no significant deficiencies in risk
management and internal controls reported by such professional third
party. The operating subsidiaries of the Group also engage
professional third parties and assign specific officers to conduct
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the systems, and have procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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To ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations on the
prevention of money laundering, especially for the Gaming Business,
the Group had engaged an internationally reputed consulting firm
having practices in both Hong Kong and South Korea to review and
advise on the anti-money laundering (“AML") and counter-terrorism
financing (“CTF") framework, the related design of controls and the
policies of the Gaming Business. Based on the applicable laws and
regulations and with reference to professional advices, the subsidiary
of the Company operating the Gaming Business has developed its
own internal control policy, including especially those related to
compliance with the applicable AML and CTF laws and regulations.
The responsible department will, from time to time, evaluate that
policy. Annually, the Group engaged an international consultancy firm
to perform assessment on the design and operation of AML and CTF
policies, procedures and controls, as well as the related monitoring
system. The Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, including the AML and
CTF controls, and found the result satisfactory.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Pui Sea ("Ms. Lam”) has been appointed as the Company
Secretary since 19 August 2013. Ms. Lam is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a
bachelor degree in Economics and Finance from the University of
Hong Kong. She has extensive experience in accounting and internal
control, corporate secretarial services and corporate administration.

The appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary are subject
to the Board's approval in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Whilst the
Company Secretary reports to the chairman of the Board on the
Group’s company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Lam has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2017.

VOTING BY POLL

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company are
taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are
explained to the shareholders at the commencement of each general
meeting, and questions from shareholders regarding the voting
procedures are answered.

RERETH IDAREZES 2 B ERED MR
- BRIERELEBMNS  AEECZERE
BLABYAEREZEERFNBERZADR
RoERE([RERE ) RITERM D FREE ([T
BRMo FRE ] BHAREYEHEE LR
ZHERARF A EETERRERER - RIBER
EPERA R L ERXER - KEBEERK 2K
REIMBRRE BITHEELAIBEIEER - F 5l
EREETERRAREMTERG D FREE
I R BRI 2 B - B E AP TR (5 A B
R AGEESFZEEBRZRARRRRIAERER
TR TREBE  BF RETNARARE
EHIE R R ERETTHE - EF g
BETERE R R AR EHIE (BRERERE K
TERMD FREERNE) 2R LRBHE
REANWE

LAFHWE
mEFRL(HZEHE=F—=F/\A+AIA
HEZEIRAAME ML ABEEIAE
KE - BRAEERBEERSRBELEN -
BN EET - NEPEHE - RRMERB R AFER
HEERE =L -

AREAMEZZERERBAREFTSREZTIEAA
HE- - RRWERESSIFRERARAEER
AMEREEEREY RAKEFSERKEY
AERARME 2B R NIRRT -

R ETRAE3 296 MEKEREBE-T—+
FHtZA=T—BULEFEEEITIRI5/NEZ
Gl S

BREBRRAARR

REFNAREARRARZARRARRBRE
FRER  BHETREZRFRERRAAE
PIAR AR - MR EBRRIEF 2120

AR -

Landing International Development Limited | & R B ¥ 3 E B R 2 7

42



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
inE g8 43

SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHTS

PROCEDURE TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Requisition to convene a special general meeting can be
deposited by the members of the Company holding at the date
of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company.

The requisitionists must submit their requisition in writing, in
which it must state the objects of the meeting, and be duly
signed by the requisitionists, mailed and deposited at Suites
5801-5804, 58/F., Two International Finance Centre, No. 8
Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary; and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
registered shareholders, provided that the requisitionists have
deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses involved in convening an extraordinary
general meeting. On the contrary, if the requisition has been
verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, an extraordinary general meeting will
not be convened as requested.
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(iv)  Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the directors do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.

(v) A meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by Directors in
accordance to the Bye-Laws and the Listing Rules.

(vi)  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by
reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting
shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

PROCEDURE FOR MAKING ENQUIRIES TO BE
PUT TO THE BOARD AND THE COMPANY

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board by
email: enquiry@landing.com.hk, fax: (852) 3621 0052, or mail to
Suites 5801-5804, 58/F., Two International Finance Centre, No. 8
Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

PROCEDURE TO PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS" MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Bermuda
Companies Act”), shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting right of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates;
or not less than 100 shareholders are entitled to request the Company to
give shareholders notice of a resolution which is intended to be moved at
the general meeting. A written notice to that effect signed by the
requisitionist(s) with detailed contact information must be deposited at
the Company'’s principle place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 5801—
5804, 58/F., Two International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance Street,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the proposed resolution
desired to be put forward at the general meeting, the reasons for such a
proposal and any material interest of the proposing shareholder in such a
proposal.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Bermuda or Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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BYE-LAWS

The Company’s Bye-Laws (in both English and Chinese) are available
on both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
During the year, there has been no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The purpose of the shareholder communication is to promote
effective communication with shareholders, encourage shareholders
to engage actively with the Company and enable them to exercise
their rights as shareholders effectively.

Information shall be communicated to shareholders through the
Company’s annual general meeting and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by maintaining a website
(www.landing.com.hk) on which information about the Company’s
notices, announcements, proxy forms, circulars, financial reports,
results announcements (for both interim and annual reporting
periods) and Bye-Laws are made available.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report is compiled in
accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules issued by the
Stock Exchange. It covers issues relating to environmental protection,
employment and labour practices, operating practices and community
which affected the Group’s business operations in Hong Kong and
South Korea for the year ended 31 December 2017. Through this
report, the Company aims to give its investors, shareholders and the
public a better understanding of the Group's practices and
governance in relation to environmental and social issues.

As a responsible corporation, the Group prioritises sustainable
development and social responsibility and regards them as being
extremely important to the creation of long-term value for
shareholders, clients, employees, other stakeholders, as well as the
general public. The Group strives to become one of the leading
enterprises in the leisure and entertainment industries and believes
that building “Landing” into an international brand is dependent not
only on the amount of revenue the Group generates, but also how
much the Group contributes to building a better environment for
society. To achieve such goals, the Group continuously streamlines
policies, optimises its deployment of resources and spearheads
initiatives to enhance environmental sustainability. The Company also
engages its stakeholders on an ongoing basis to collect their views on
the ESG issues that they regard as the most relevant and important to
them. Thus, at every stage of business development, the Group is
committed to conducting its business operations in an
environmentally-friendly way, and sharing the reward with local
communities.

ENVIRONMENT

With the launch of Shinhwa Theme Park in September 2017 and the
commissioning of more facilities at Jeju Shinhwa World in December
2017, Jeju Shinhwa World is on track to become a world-class
integrated destination resort. The Group is committed to minimising
its environmental impacts and operating in a sustainable way. To
achieve this, the Group has opted for greener solutions in construction
and its operations, and continues to engage its employees in
enhancing the Group’s environmental performance in line with
relevant policies and procedures.
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EMISSIONS

The Group recognises that some of the key sources of air and
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions from the construction and
operation of Jeju Shinhwa World include vehicle fuel combustion,
electricity consumption and the use of fuel-powered machinery in
construction work.

Clean air conservation planning has been undertaken to minimise the
air pollution caused by the construction of Jeju Shinhwa World. An
array of energy-efficiency measures and energy reduction initiatives
have been introduced with the aim of reducing indirect GHG
emissions. During the year, a total of 8,672 tonnes of carbon dioxide
("CO,") emissions from the operation and construction of Jeju
Shinhwa World was recorded.

Going forward, with the commissioning of more facilities at Jeju
Shinhwa World in 2018, the Group will continue to introduce more
low-emissions measures. Electric vehicles and electric carts will be
used for transportation around the resort.

The management of the Group carries out regular environmental
audits and reviews to manage emissions and implement relevant
initiatives and measures. This also helps ensure compliance with
national and local regulatory requirements.

The Group has also established waste management procedures to
handle the increasing amount of non-hazardous waste generated by
the rising number of visitors to Jeju Shinhwa World. The Group’s
estate management services team helps drive the implementation of
the waste management program by encouraging waste reduction,
reuse and recycling.

In line with the local regulatory requirements, food waste produced at
the resort is incinerated. An on-site food waste treatment facility was
built to reduce waste disposal, and ash generated in the combustion
process is converted into fertiliser for gardening. Other types of non-
hazardous waste from visitors and guests, including plastic bottles,
metal containers and packaging materials, are properly sorted and
recycled.

At Jeju Shinhwa World, rocks excavated as a result of the construction
process were utilised for landfill in roads, landscape sub-bases and
concrete for development projects. The use of local materials greatly
reduced the carbon footprint by minimising transportation during the
construction process.

Furthermore, no hazardous waste was produced in the construction
or operation of the Jeju Shinhwa World facilities that were already
built or in operation.

For luncheons, reusable dishes, silverware and glassware are used
instead of disposable utensils.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has in place an energy saving governance mechanism and
has invested heavily in resource efficiency programs including energy
conservation, rainwater and wastewater recycling as well as other
environmental conservation measures such as responsible sourcing
practices for office furniture and equipment.

An energy management system has been implemented at Jeju
Shinhwa World, including a green roof system being installed. LED
lighting systems and high-efficiency ice storage equipment with
control systems and sensors have also been adopted.

Additionally, the project makes efficient use of renewable energy. For
example, a photovoltaic power generation system with an installed
capacity of 340kW was installed and the captured solar energy is now
being used at hotels, condominiums and other facilities in Jeju
Shinhwa World.

At the head office, the Company has continually raised employees’
awareness of resource conservation by communicating its
requirements and expectations in this regard. Employees are strongly
encouraged to turn off electronic appliances and lights when not in
use. The Company promotes the use of softcopies whenever practical,
and the reduction of paper for printing. When printouts are necessary,
double-sided printing is strongly encouraged. Envelopes and file
folders are re-used. By conveying to our workforce the message that
living a green work life is not a challenging task, an eco-friendly
culture at the workplace has been successfully created.

The Group treasures water and monitors its wastewater discharge. In
2017, total water consumption at Jeju Shinhwa World was 183,362
cubic metres (“m3”). To reduce water consumption, an on-site grey
water and storm water recycling facility was installed at Jeju Shinhwa
World. Recycled water is used for multiple purposes, including plant
watering and cleaning. The water recycling facility has a treatment
capacity of 1,300 tonnes of grey water and 1,600 tonnes of storm
water per day. Only treated effluent that meets relevant
environmental standards is discharged to minimise the impact to the
environment.
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ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group strives to minimise its impact on the surrounding
environment and natural resources. To protect local ecosystems,
comprehensive environmental impact assessments were undertaken
by a qualified consultant and identified impacts were properly
mitigated prior to the development of Jeju Shinhwa World. The
impact assessments covered potential adverse impacts arising from
the project to the surrounding environment, such as water, land use
and biodiversity. Eco-friendly features have been incorporated in the
design, construction and operation of the project.

The Group’s in-house volunteer clubs work closely with Jeju’s
community service organisations and actively participate in
environmental protection activities that have direct impact on the
livelihood of local residents and the ecosystem. In June 2017, Shinhwa
Sharing Volunteer Group and the Jeju Ocean Conservation and
Environment Council jointly organised a cleanup activity at Aljakji
beach in Jeju. Looking forward, the Group will continue to support
and encourage employees to participate in a wide range of
environmental protection volunteer activities.
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Environmental Key Performance Indicators (KPI) Data Table

Environmental KPIs

REBRANER

Nitrogen oxides (NOx)
Sulphur oxides (SOx)
Particulate matter (Pm)
Total GHG emissions

Scope 1 — Direct emissions and removals
Scope 2 — Energy indiirect emissions
Total hazardous waste produced
Total non-hazardous waste produced
Total energy consumption
Total direct energy consumption
Gasoline/Petrol
Diesel
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)
Gas (exclude town gas, natural gas)
Natural gas
Kerosene
Charcoal
Other fuel
Total direct energy consumption intensity
(by revenue)
Total indlirect energy consumption
Purchased electricity
Towngas/Gas work gas consumption

Purchased steam
Total indlirect energy consumption intensity
(by revenue)
Water consumption
Water consumption intensity
(by revenue)
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kWh/Revenue HK$'000
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kWh/Revenue HK$'000
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Environmental Data :
(Group) |

RELE (7 £8) |
2017 !

ZE-tF |

01972 !
00017 !

NA !
867181 !

3,063.14 !
5,608.67
NA !

93400 !
24,958,260.95
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23984471
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NA !

NA !

NA !
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SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total number of employees was
1,950, among which, 1,868 employees were based in Jeju, South
Korea.

As an international enterprise, the Group ensures that it strictly
complies with the employment law of each area in which it operates
(Hong Kong and Korea) including in relation to remuneration,
dismissal, working hours and leave etc. The Group’s employees are
recruited and promoted in a fair and open manner regardless of age,
sex, physical or mental health status, marital status, family status,
race, skin colour, nationality, religion, political affiliation or sexual
orientation. Employees are recognised and rewarded for their
contribution, work performance and skills. The Group will do its best
to provide them with a good working environment and opportunities
to develop.

Company policies on equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and policies designed to facilitate compliance with the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance and Race Discrimination Ordinance
have been implemented by the Company. Equal opportunities to all
employees are provided on recruitment, training, promotion, transfer,
remuneration, benefits and termination of employment. Such
opportunities are not affected by factors such as age, gender, physical
or mental health status, marital status, family status, race, skin colour,
nationality, religion, political affiliation or sexual orientation.

The Group’s employees are the most important assets of the Group
and the Company strives to foster open communication with
employees through various channels. The Company provides a safe
and enjoyable work environment, equitable compensation, benefit
schemes, opportunities for career growth through a variety of learning
and development programmes, and a strong corporate culture where
employees’ contributions are recognised and rewarded. The Company
also ensures that all employees have equal opportunities in their
career path and strives to enhance employees’ sense of belonging. In
addition, the Company aims to become a conscientious employer by
taking an active role in advocating health at work.
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As a foreign-invested company in Jeju, South Korea, the Group wishes
to contribute to the local economy and society, and as such, it recruits
mainly local talents into its work force. Of the Company’s 1,868
employees in Jeju, approximately 79.4% were local residents.
Specifically, the number of local employees at Landing Casino in Jeju
increased to over 600 in December 2017 from 280 in July 2017.
During the year, the Group participated in the following projects to
increase local employment:

EREFE  AEEEAIIERECETMEE
MIZE  FEZEBREZHATHESHRE - AE
HAEEL R - AREEE A 1,868 %8 8
o EHE RGN R A 79.4% o H A EINEE
RIREENEWREBEABBH_ZT—EFLAN
2808 FAE T —+F+ - AM600ZE - FA -
REBRHEL TR UHSIEIE

@ Landing Career Design Programme: Landing Jeju signed
cooperation agreements with five local organisations in July
2017 to jointly conduct an education and employment
programme to promote the corporation’s recruitment in Jeju,
and since then 24 participants were successfully employed by
Jeju Shinhwa World in December 2017.
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@ Landing Jeju partnered with a local Jeju enterprise, Seogwang
Village Corporation, in April 2017 with the aim of directly
reviving the local economy by creating jobs for local
residents. Seogwang Village Corporation currently employs
over 120 employees to provide facility management, security,
landscaping, bed-making, cleaning and laundry services at
Jeju Shinhwa World.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group strives to be one of the leading international brands in the
entertainment and gaming industries. Apart from its current
operations in Jeju, the Group has also been seeking suitable
investment opportunities in other Asian countries, and recruited its
talented team from various global enterprises. Talent development is
always an important part of human resource strategy, and therefore
the Group provides comprehensive job-related training to its
employees to enhance their problem-solving skills and work efficiency.
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¥ JSW Integrated Resort — Overseas Internship Programme:
The Group collaborates with different Singapore enterprises
including Resorts World Sentosa from Singapore in
conducting a programme which provides Jeju’s university
graduates with an opportunity to undertake an overseas
internship, with the full support of the Jeju government, Jeju
Free International City Development Center and Human
Resources Development Service of Korea (Ministry of
Employment and Labor). The programme has recruited four
batches of participants since its commencement in 2015.
Selected students had the opportunity to work at Jeju
Shinhwa World upon graduation and gained experience
working at Resorts World Sentosa. 57 graduates from the
first batch and 37 graduates from the second batch have
joined Jeju Shinhwa World while students from the third and
fourth batches will graduate in 2018 and 2019 respectively.
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@ Since 2016, Landing Jeju has been working with the Jeju
government, Jeju Free International City Development Center
and five local universities to hold talent training programmes
for more than 800 students.
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¥ Landing Jeju held a one-year employment education
programme targeting high school students as prospective
employees. Currently, there are 466 participants in the
programme.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is committed to protecting the health and safety of
employees and the community. All employees are requested to
comply with all relevant occupational health and safety regulations
that apply to construction sites and offices. The Company provides
them with a safe and healthy working environment by implementing
the following measures:

ensuring the office and work environment complies with or
exceeds the requirements of relevant laws;

establishing safety procedures for dangerous work;

providing the required protective equipment and medical
insurance to employees;

ensuring the office and working environment is healthy and
safe and conducting regular checks of machinery and
equipment;

establishing emergency measures such as fire or explosion
emergency plans;
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o raising sexual harassment awareness with workplace;

o recording workplace injuries and analysing the cause of injuries
suffered on construction sites;

o providing and maintaining an environmentally-friendly, healthy
and safe workplace; and

o offering medical face masks to avoid the spreading of diseases
in working areas.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly prohibits child labour and forced labour. Child la-
bour refers to employment of people under 16 years of age, while
forced labour refers to people who provide labour or service against
their will and under the threat of punishment. Such conduct is prohib-
ited by international law and relevant domestic legislation.

The following policies are in place to prevent child labour or forced la-
bour:

o all employees must be at least 16 years of age;

o employees under 18 may not be engaged in hazardous work
and are prohibited from working at night to avoid affecting
their studies; and

o before hiring any job applicants, the Human Resources ("HR")
Department verifies their age, for instance, by checking docu-
ments that prove their age of the applicant or any other creden-
tials that prove their date of birth. Also, the HR Department will
ensure the applicant’s appearance is consistent with the photo-
graph on their identity documents.

If the Group discovers any employees are forced labours, the follow-
ing measures will be taken in accordance with the requirements of
the relevant legislation:

o removing the employee away from workplace immediately and
ensuring the employee's safety;

o immediately notifying the person in charge of the HR Depart-
ment to verify all relevant information and confirming whether
the employee has been subjected to forced labour; and

o immediately identifying the problem or issue in the recruitment
process that gave rise to the occurrence of forced labour and
rectifying this problem or issue within 90 working days.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As part of its development and operation of Jeju Shinhwa World, the
Group has worked with various contractors and suppliers for each
business function and has developed and maintained long-term
relationships with each of them. To ensure world-class products and
services, the Group has selected its business partners carefully and
procures all materials, services and contents with fair and open
procedures. The Group will only cooperate with business partners that
share common ethical values and standards.

o REHBSUREZER:
o  REIBEH - ADWEETHBINZKEA :

o RUNARRR RERZEZIERE K

o RUBEHROFNRRETIFEEE -

2T 3
5% TR

AEERRZL TREAEFNETLANET - ET
EREBI6BA T ZAL : MoEkl%TRIEERR
HERR N AET B NI S BRI Z AL -
BT ROXIBEREZRLEEBEARNRDEELL -

VAT A3 LEBS PR T sk 58 il 85 T i &R 2 BUR

J FrEEENVAEZELI68K

s 18U TNZEETAKRFEARR T
WEEILEBE ETE BRFESE N

o  EREMAKBEN ANBERHHEXE
HERK  PINEZABHARBAFERZX
e EEMm A ER LA BB - bt
S ADEBREBAGHERBFAGTER T
D RERANAT LIRS o

HASEEREMBRS T 2RE - BSRIEA
B RDER EBREUA T4 7 -

o HINEEIGEHIESMIERESLS

. DBBMANERBIE  NERAAN
MR LR RSB RTEE RS
R

o  HIREARIBIE T ENKRG S8 2 ME
R - W90 E TR MM IEARIR &
AR ©

HEEER

REMNEFER 2 EREXGEERH  AKH
—EREEXERERSZ AR REEES
1 WRFSEZAERIEFERHME - RIER
RHERAKEZ ERLRYE - AEBEERE
X ERBAAME - RERARTRIGR
ARFRRRA - AEEEREABRREREE
BIRISEZEBRHAE -

Landing International Development Limited | & R B ¥ 3 E B R 2 7

54



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RAR -~ #GRE 6 A

The Group engages construction teams for resort development,
among which, local contractors from Jeju have been awarded about
half of the construction projects available with the allocation set out
below:

Facilities B2

Hotels and theme park, etc.

BE - ETELEF

Resort condominium and dorms, etc. EBAE  BEE
Staff quarters s

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to providing world-class products and
services in its integrated resorts and casinos and settling all customer
complaints effectively.

part of the construction work at Jeju Shinhwa World was carried
out by reputable local contractors in Jeju, and some of the
materials were sourced from reliable local suppliers;

products and services comply with all relevant laws and
guidelines;

safety labels and signs are placed prominently for the customer’s
information;

documents are archived properly after customers’ complaints or
disputes are resolved, and the relevant department(s) shall
review the complaints and develop measures to prevent the
recurrence of similar complaints, in order to improve the
Company'’s quality of service; and

club membership information will only be used for business
purposes, and not for other unrelated purposes. All employees
are required to handle and use membership information with
extreme caution, protect customer information, and comply
with all relevant in privacy laws.

Responsible Gaming

As a foreigner-only casino, Landing Casino is currently not required to
comply with any regulations regarding responsible gaming in Jeju,
South Korea. Nevertheless, the Group will work closely with the local
government to ensure that all visitors can enjoy their activities in a
safe environment. The Group also trains its employees on responsible
gaming and encourages its patrons to play responsibly.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION
Money laundering

To ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations on the
prevention of money laundering, especially for the Gaming Business,
the Group had engaged internationally reputed consulting firms to
review and advise on the AML and CTF framework implemented by
the Group, the related design of controls and policies of the Gaming
Business, and perform annual assessment on the relevant policies,
controls and monitoring system. Based on applicable laws and
regulations and in accordance with professional advice the Group has
obtained, the subsidiary of the Company operating the Gaming
Business has developed its own internal control policy, which complies
with the applicable AML and CTF laws and regulations. The
responsible department will, from time to time, evaluate that policy.
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of implementation of the
internal control system, including the AML and CTF controls, and
found the result satisfactory.

The Group’s Landing Casino ranked first in the 2017 Anti-Money
Laundering Assessment of 16 foreigner-only casinos in Korea
conducted by the Korea Financial Intelligence Unit (“"KoFIU"). Landing
Casino is the first foreigner-only casino to top the ranking for three
consecutive years in Korea’s casino history, having been ranked first in
the 2015 and 2016 AML assessment by KoFIU.

In addition, Ms. Baek Jae Won (“Ms. Baek"”), Senior Manager of
Landing Casino’s Legal and Compliance Team, was awarded the
Financial Services Commission Commissioner Award on the 11th Anti-
Money Laundering Day Award Ceremony organised by the Financial
Services Commission in Korea at the Korea Federation of Banks on 28
November 2017, in appreciation for the contribution made by Landing
Casino’s Legal and Compliance team to preventing money laundering.
Ms. Baek was the first Korean casino employee to have been awarded
this honour, and was also the only representative from the Korean
casino sector to have received an invitation to the award ceremony.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group cares about the community and aims to deliver
overwhelming joy and happiness to the world. During the year, the

Group shared its love with the community in various ways:

HERE

AEEFELR  SERGERERRLE - FR-
REBATRDEAEZHE

¥  The Group is optimistic about the development of Jeju
tourism and has established a world-class leisure and
entertainment resort in Jeju — Jeju Shinhwa World. As of
31 December 2017, the Group has invested approximately
KRW1.7 trillion as foreign investment in South Korea, making
it the largest foreign investment in an integrated resort in the
history of Korea.

v AREEEHEMNHKEXER YEE
B EY — @A RRERREER
B—EMREER - BE— T F+ =
A=+—8Bi AEEREZEBRIN
RIREFRREA 1.7 KEE - RERNTE
BRENGAERRERERRARIE
HSMEIRE

)
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MRS ARYAN HHGE EEaR =
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¥ Landing Jeju will donate KRW50 million
annually for ten years to Jeju National
University Landing Programme, which
is a youth talent training programme
targeting Year 3 and Year 4 students from
the College of Economics & Commerce of
Jeju National University.

v EREMNBHNBTFEATEIREE
Mgttt R EF L2 - T FHEFEY
5 TE®E  EMNGEEASFERE—
EFFATEIER  HRBEMBE L
REBLEMBR=FREMFERBL

@ The Group donated KRW1 billion to Jeju National University’s
Talent Development Foundation in 2017.

¢ AEEFAMREMBELKEATFIZEREES (Talent
Development Foundation) 185 10 {288 E -
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@ Landing Jeju sponsored various activities organised by local A 4
groups and the community in order to foster goodwill with
local residents. Such activities included:

ERENENZHAERERILREE -
BOGEEHERTEYAR - BRAEHE
EEOE

A year-end countdown party was held in
Shinhwa Theme Park on 31 December
2017. Admission was free for local
residents, and approximately 15,000
people attended the party.

R-ZT—+FE+-"A=+—8 F8FE
BLRBRITHRIESMRE  WEFSLEE
R&eB A% - €8RS T4 15,000 A
BIS2 B -

e Landing Jeju provided sponsorship to the welfare foundation o
of Seogwangseo-ri village. The foundation funds the
operation of welfare facilities in the village and charitable
activities held on Father's Day and Mother’s Day.

EpmERENRENENES - £&
AR ABFRRENEEE RN - &
FENEE B R PEHEE -

e Landing Jeju sponsored local festivals, alumni associations,
sports days and other events during the year, and encouraged
its employees to participate in them.

o EPZEEMEA KRS BEAELRLASE  IF
EhEE 2 -

Local residents, students and families
were invited to visit Jeju Shinhwa World
and a variety of discounts were offered to
them.

BREEWER - BERRKEDFHBEME
AR - YR TERTINES -
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@ Landing Jeju has partnered with local Jeju enterprises and A4 h#mJll/\mJ\l”‘imii/\f’E 37375 38 A
revitalised the local economy as follows: BIUREE A

o

LU LN - RN ENRAN
BRUYH

° an agreement with Jeju Samdasoo to
cooperate in enhancing brand awareness
and boosting sales of products

o BN=ZK—RFTEIEHEERE  UES

Emr A EMEE

* an agreement with Jeju United FC to cooperate in raising o EINELE FC—RFTAEHREHR - IR
brand awareness mmEaaE

* an agreement with Jeju Air under which customers can enjoy o BN ZE— TR N 2 B T AT
discounts on tickets to Jeju Shinhwa World upon presenting PN A8 55 T SR P 430
the boarding pass from Jeju Air

e an agreement with Jeju’s local tourist spots under which o BMIRIEZBAEE—L T E RIS B
customers can enjoy discounts on tickets to Jeju Shinhwa /P9 S AT I p Rt R PIEHTIN

World upon presenting the tickets to these local tourist spots
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@ The Group is honoured to be recognised by the local
government and local residents for its contributions to the
local community’s development with the following awards:

e Dr. Yang Zhihui, chairman of the Board and executive
Director, was awarded the “Presidential Commendation” at
“Foreign Company Day 2017 — Korean Investment Award
Ceremony” organised by the Ministry of Trade, Industry &
Energy and coordinated by the Korea Foreign Company
Association.

e Landing Casino won the Tourism Promotion Award from
the Ministry of Culture, Sports and Tourism on the 44th
Anniversary of Tourism Day for achieving an annual turnover
of over USD20 million in Jeju’s tourism industry.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to issues such as environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices and
the community.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are set
out in notes 21, 22 and 27 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review
OVERVIEW

Details of (i) business review and relevant principal risks and
uncertainties and (ii) future development of the Group’s business are set
out respectively in the “Operation and Business Review"”, “Outlook”
and “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” sections under “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of the Letter from the Board.

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on
the support from its key stakeholders, including employees, customers,
suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group will continue
to ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship with
each of its key stakeholders.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Details of the Group’s business performance are indicated in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of the Letter from the
Board, and other financial ratios are set out below:

Debt to equity ratio BREEHL =X
Quick ratio WRED HE R
Notes:

(1) Debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total equity. Debt
to equity ratio decreased from 90.6% in 2016 to 19.0% in 2017.

2) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less inventories and
completed properties for sale by total current liabilities. Quick ratio decreased
from 10.1in 2016 to 5.3 in 2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Details of the Company’s environmental policies and performance are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance of the applicable rules and
regulations. The Group has been allocating system and staff resources
to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and to
maintain cordial working relationships with regulators effectively
through effective communications. During the year, the Group has
complied with, among others, to the best of our knowledge, the
following major laws and regulations:

Hong Kong
— the Listing Rules;
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO");

Companies Ordinance; and

the Gambling Ordinance.

South Korea
Tourism Promotion Act;

Special Act on the Establishment of Jeju Special Self-governing
Province and the Development of Free International City;

Jeju Special Self-governing Province Tourism Promotion Ordinance;

Foreign Exchange Transaction Act;
Building Act (and its Enforcement Decree);
Landscape Act (and its Enforcement Decree);

Environmental Impact Assessment Act (and its Enforcement
Decree);

Road Act;

Jeju Special Self-governing Province Building Ordinance;

Commercial Act; and

Foreign Investment Promotion Act.
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ik {2 3 A Z (Tourism Promotion Act)

BB INES Bl B a8 & 3 R B B B
F5RI7AZ (Special Act on the Establishment
of Jeju Special Self-governing Province and
the Development of Free International
City) :

BN Bl B 6 38 ik 2 (2 4 (5 (9) (Jeju Special
Self-governing Province Tourism Promotion
Ordinance) :

S B R 5 k& Z(Foreign Exchange
Transaction Act) :
BEZEIR(REEBES) (Bulding Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) :

AR (REEHAS) (Landscape Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) :
EREYEITIHEAR(REERES)
(Environmental Impact Assessment Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) ;

3B 1% % (Road Act) :

BN Bl B A B 2 EE 15 B (Jeju Spedial
Self-governing Province Building
Ordinance) :

5 5% 22 (Commercial Act) i &

SN 15 & (2 #E 0% = (Foreign Investment
Promotion Act) °
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United Kingdom
—  Gambling Act 2005;
—  Licensing Act 2003;

—  Money Laundering Regulations 2007;
—  Proceeds of Crime Act 2002;
—  Terrorism Act 2000; and

— Mandatory and Default Conditions (England and Wales)
Regulations 2007.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 85 to 86.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Prepaid
Land Lease Payments

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
Share Capital

Movements of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
Distributable Reserves of the Company

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 212.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Dr. Yang Zhihui (Chairman)

Ms. Zhou Xueyun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas

Mr. Bao Jingiao

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (appointed on 26 September 2017)

Mr. Chen Lei (retired on 26 June 2017)

Mr. Chen Lei retired as an independent non-executive Director on 26 June 2017 at the
annual general meeting of the Company and did not offer himself for re-election due
to other business commitments.

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws and code
provision A.4 of the CG Code under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
Ms. Zhou Xueyun and Mr. Bao Jingiao will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-Law 83(2) of the Company’s Bye-Laws and code
provision A.4 of the CG Code under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
Mr. Wong Chun Hung will be subject to election by shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company and any
other body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to Bye-Law 164 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and relevant
provisions of the regulations stipulated, every Director or other officers
of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all losses and
liabilities which he may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no Director or
other officers shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune which
may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the execution of the
duties of his office or in relation thereto, provided that this Bye-Law
shall only have effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the
Bermuda Companies Act.

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year. The
Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for the
directors of the Group.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
And/Or Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or Any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV the SFO), which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Name Capacity
#"E S

Dr. Yang zhihui (“Dr. Yang”) (Note)
s EiE 4 ([piEE ) (Fs)

Held by controlled corporation

PRES| 2 AR A

Note: 74,078,364,892 ordinary shares are held by Landing International Limited
(“LIL"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued
share capital is held by Dr. Yang. Dr. Yang is one of the directors of LIL as at 31
December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
was a director or employee of a company which had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO and none of the Directors, the chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had any other interests or
short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which any
such Director or the chief executive of the Company is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required to be
entered into the register maintained by the Company, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective close associates was interested
in any business apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business
as at the date of this report.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests And/Or
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Name Capacity
HnEEB 85

LIL (Notes 1 & 2) Beneficial Owner
ESBR (Wit k2) BB A

Ms. Xu Ning (“Ms. Xu") (Note 2) Interest of spouse

trrat ([k&E])(Hz2) [k e
Notes:
1. LIL, whose entire issued share capital is held by Dr. Yang, is interested in

74,078,364,892 shares of the Company.

2. Ms. Xu is the spouse of Dr. Yang. Under the SFO, Ms. Xu is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Dr. Yang is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of other
Directors or their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of, the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Confirmation of Independence of
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Connected Transactions

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

On 11 January 2017, the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement with LIL and Kingston Securities Limited in relation to the
underwriting arrangement in respect of the 2017 Rights Issue, as varied
and supplemented by an amendment letter agreement dated 23
February 2017 made by the same parties (the “Underwriting
Agreement”). LIL is wholly owned by Dr. Yang, an executive Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, and thus LIL was a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the payment of the underwriting commission of
approximately HK$50,176,000 to LIL under the Underwriting Agreement
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, which was approved by both the Board (with Dr. Yang abstained
from voting) and the independent shareholders at a special general
meeting held on 21 March 2017. Details were disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 24 February 2017.

CONSULTANCY SERVICE AGREEMENT

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a consultancy service
agreement (the “Consultancy Service Agreement”) with Mr. Ng
Kwok Fai (“Mr. Ng") whereby Mr. Ng agreed to provide advisory
services on corporate management and capital structure and other
consultancy services as required by the Company and its subsidiaries
from time to time. Mr. Ng was the executive Director of the Company in
the last twelve months and thus Mr. Ng was a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. An annual service fee
in the amount of HK$6,000,000 was payable to Mr. Ng by the Company
pursuant to the terms and condition as stipulated in the Consultancy
Service Agreement. The Consultancy Service Agreement was terminated
on 31 March 2017.
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SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENTS

On 11 November 2016, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement with Algona Pte. Ltd (“Algona”) (the “Callisto
SPA"), pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire
and Algona conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share capital
of Callisto at a consideration of USD380,760,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,952,611,000) plus the premium. Callisto, through
HBL, indirectly owns 50% of the issued share capital of Landing Jeju, a
50% owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 11 November 2016, Landing Singapore Limited (“Landing
Singapore”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, also
entered into a conditional date and purchase agreement with Genting
International Resorts Management Limited (“GIRML") (the
“Autumnglow SPA"), pursuant to which Landing Singapore
conditionally agreed to acquire and GIRML conditionally agreed to sell,
50% of the issued share capital of Autumnglow at a consideration of
SGD1.

Algona, through Callisto and HBL, was a 50% shareholder of Landing
Jeju, and GIRML is an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
Algona, and therefore, each of Algona and GIRML is a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Callisto SPA and
Autumnglow SPA constituted connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, which were approved by the independent
shareholders at a special general meeting held on 30 December 2016
and were subsequently completed on 3 January 2017. Details were
disclosed in the circular and announcement of the Company dated 13
December 2016 and 3 January 2017 respectively.

Save as the abovementioned, no disclosure requirement is needed for
the connected transaction(s) according to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of material related party transaction(s) are disclosed in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of any listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, sales to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for approximately 50% of the annual
revenue and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers represented less than 10% of the Group's
total purchases. The sale to the largest customer represented
approximately 38% of the annual revenue. None of the Directors or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers.

Retirement Benefits Schemes
Information on the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in note 2.24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
management of the Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are considered and reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Equity-Linked Agreements

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year are set out below:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 11 July 2010 (the
“Adoption Date”) (the “Share Option Scheme”). Apart from the
Share Option Scheme, the Company has no other share option scheme
currently in force. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to the participants, including any Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and any employees of the Group or any
invested entities or substantial shareholders and any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers, services providers of any members of
the Group or any invested entities or substantial shareholders, and any
other groups or classes of participants at the sole discretion of the
Board, for their contribution to the Group and to enable the Group to
attract and retain employees of appropriate qualifications and with
necessary experience to work for the Group and any invested entities.
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may invite any eligible
person including any Director and employee of the Group to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The Share Option
Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years from its Adoption
Date.

There is no minimum holding period before any options can be
exercised. The maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) under the Share Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant to any participants shall not in aggregate
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being unless the proposed grant has been approved by the shareholders
of the Company in a general meeting with the proposed grantee and
his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

The subscription price at which a grantee may subscribe for shares on
the exercise of an option under the Share Option Scheme is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of the grant of
relevant option and in any case shall not be less than the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer
of grant; or (c) the nominal value of the shares.

Save for the grant of options on 15 December 2014 which was
subsequently cancelled on 8 January 2015, as at the date of this report,
no share option has been granted or exercised by the Company since
the Adoption Date, and the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 12,339,527,554,
representing approximately 8.37% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

Donations

The Group made charitable or other donation of approximately
HK$7,309,000 during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Auditors

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 were audited by Zenith CPA Limited (“Zenith").
PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the auditor of the Company
to fill the vacancy following the retirement of Zenith as the auditor of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
17 June 2016. The Company's consolidated financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Save for the above, there were no other
changes in the Company’s auditor in the past three years.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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On behalf of the Board

Yang Zhihui
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 February 2018
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LANDING INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

OPINION
WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of Landing International
Development Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 85 to 210, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Carrying value of property, plant and equipment of integrated
resort development business and gaming business operated in Jeju
Shinhwa World

o Impairment assessment on goodwill and other intangible asset of
gaming business operated in Hyatt Regency Hotel in Jeju, South
Korea

o Provision for impairment of gaming receivables

o Determination and presentation of discontinued operations
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BB FFE R

EETER ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
H APz &t 2 R R B f@ & 5t FIH

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment of integrated
resort development business and gaming business operated in
Jeju Shinhwa World
REMNWEZEHEHRAAZECFEERERREBREBEEBCHE B
BR#HZREE

Refer to note 4(c) and 14 to the consolidated financial statements
FREGRE TR EN T4 R 14 -

The Group has been developing the integrated resort development
business, which include hotels, theme park, and gaming facilities
operated in Jeju Shinhwa World (the “Jeju Shinhwa World"”). During
the year, phase one construction of the Jeju Shinhwa World was
completed and the Group has commenced certain hotel and theme park
operations in late 2017. As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group incurred capital expenditure of
HK$5,322 million related to the Jeju Shinhwa World during the year.
The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment of the Jeju
Shinhwa World amounted to HK$9,659 million as at 31 December 2017
which included hotels, a theme park and area designated for gaming
facilities.

EEBIRREFEEREERES  STEERNBEMEEER(EM
MEER ) LERE  FEAERIEHRME o BN EH R E—H
BERIREERFATK X BEXREER_Z—tFRERHEMBLEE
ETRERETEAERER - BUGEVBBRERMT4MERE - F
W EEBEREIMNPE R E £ B AR 5,322,000,000 7T =
T—tF+-A=1+—8 BEMNEREERYE  BEIREBEZEEE
/%9,659,000,000/8 7T » EFBIFEE - TEAE RS IEBR R
ZIEmI e

Our procedures in relation to the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment of
the Jeju Shinhwa World included:
BEMHENWEHERDE BERRGERE
ZEFSHE:

— Understanding, evaluating and validating
the operating effectiveness of the controls
over additions of costs to the Jeju Shinhwa
World
TR BV R RER R PIE M A st SR
SMRAEITERIE R S E 2 AU

—  Performing substantive test of additions
during the year on a sample basis by
examining relevant documents such as
invoices and the qualified surveyors’ report
to evaluate whether additions have been
properly capitalised
REANMEERBIMNNAETEEERH -
FERBEERREEBRBEMBESNA
EXHATHERINK AR B D EEERNE

— Evaluating management’s policy in
determining the date of commencing
depreciation

FHEEEEARETITERB B R ZHER

—  Evaluating management’s estimation of
economic useful lives and residual values by
considering our knowledge of the business
and market practices adopted in the
industries
AHEEREUREERFHRLRBREEZ
5t TEREZEERMEEB L ERIER
w58 Pz FE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
EBsgEFa1 EE

EETER ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
Pz &t 2 EE E i & 7t FIH

There are a number of areas where management judgement impacts
the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and the related
depreciation profiles. These areas include:
EREHESUUATZETELENE  BE &R
FEBR

52 BRE (A & AH

— determining which costs, including borrowing costs, meet the
criteria for capitalisation;

EERA (BREERA) ZREFAENMEMEME

— determining the date on which construction-in-progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciation

commences;
ETRERTREREERAME BEARBEFTERKZA
H

—  estimation of economic useful lives and residual values assigned to
property, plant and equipment; and

mEtE  BEMREBZEEERFHRRHRER &

— determining if any impairment indicators exists at the year end.

BEERERERERELFHE

We focused on this area due to the significance of the carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment of the Jeju Shinhwa World to the
consolidated statement of financial position and the high level of
judgements required by management in assessing if impairment
indicators existed at the date of consolidated statement of financial

position.
BB AIRRERE - REENEMNSETRME  BEIREZ R
BEHGFEMBRRARNBEEE - N EEIRENGS MBI R B HET

EREERERLFERHIFLEAHL -

Understanding and evaluating the Group's
procedures regarding the identification of
sources of information relevant to
impairment indicators

TG EEEEEYEREREZN
BRRIRZ 2R

Assessing the reasonableness of the sources
of information used by management in
identifying impairment indicators, including
likelihood of relocating the gaming license,
number of visitors, average hotel room rate
and occupancy rate, construction costs and
staff costs by comparing these assumptions
against relevant market data and industry
research

BRI A BRR AT IS BIR RTER
RIELE @ FHAEEERDERERSR
P AR E’JE%’#X?J?ZAE%’I‘EE C BRERBEY
KRRt 2 ATREME  HRE AL BEETH
BERAEER - &2F% ﬁkﬁ&s\l}ﬂz$

We found the carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment of the Jeju Shinhwa World
to be supportable by the available evidence.

IR A

CEMERERYE  BERREZ

HEETEZ*?”E BRE SR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
EBsgEFa1 EE

EETER ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
Pz &t 2 EE E i & 7t FIH

Impairment assessment on goodwill and other intangible asset of
gaming business operated in Hyatt Regency Hotel in Jeju, South
Korea
RERENNRNESAZTEZHAEEBCHER A B REREF
1%

Refer to notes 4(b), 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

(ks & IS RA M i 4b) ~ 17 K 18 »

nﬁ/ MRE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group carried goodwill and other
intangible asset amounting to HK$876 million, which were recognised
upon the acquisition of the gaming business in Jeju, South Korea. The
other intangible asset represents the gaming license, which has an
indefinite useful life and is subject to annual impairment review.
RZE—+F+_A=+—H E5ERERHEMETVEER
876,000,000 7T » A BFIA N WA m 78 BN R E B2 1R - HAt
BIVEERBVER  HEAERAERAFHEAELFERESH -

Management engaged an independent valuer to assist in performing an
impairment assessment on the goodwill and intangible asset using a
value-in-use calculation.

ERELZRE Y HEMBSRACREEAECBENETLEEE
R -

L —

17T

We focused on this area due to the fact that significant management
judgements were involved in the underlying assumptions of the
impairment assessment, including the revenue growth rate, terminal
growth rate and discount rate. These require significant auditor’s
attention.

BMEFRWER - RETARETHZEARE P RENEEREH
B BREREERE  REERERTER - LS EEEZEE A
AR o
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Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included:

BN EERETREFGEZEFRHE -

—tFFR

Evaluating management’s future cash flow
forecast and the process by which it was
prepared
HEEREAKRESRERARERRE
RS

Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external valuer used
by management

AR E RTINS AR 2 B
RENRE M

-3

Involving our internal valuation expert in
assessing the methodology and certain key
assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculation of the gaming business
AT 2 AEBIEERR A BRI

ErEREBEREEFERMBZAE
METEFERFZ

Discussing with the external valuer their
work scope, and assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used based on our industry
knowledge and market practices
EHNEREERD SR 2 TIE S B E 1T A
C WARIR AN 2 1T R A8 K T 5 1 BIET

1EFﬁ%Z1ETEE/£%T aE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
EBsgEFa1 EE

EETER ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
Pz &t 2 EE E i & 7t FIH

Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by the external valuer
and management such as revenue growth
rate, terminal growth rate and discount
rate by comparing these assumptions
against relevant market data and industry
research
FHEINBEEMMEREMAZEE/HE
EARAE  MKHEERE BRERERER
PrgEx  HERBZERREEET SR
BRITERFTETLER

Comparing the current year actual results
with the prior year forecasted results
prepared by management for the gaming
business to ascertain the reliability of
management'’s forecast
hﬁEFAW%EEE@F%% Z 300
R EFEIERI A NETTELR - LATE
EERERR A 5EM

Testing the arithmetical accuracy on the
value-in-use calculation of the gaming
business

AR B EGEREENE 2Bl 5t
BE

Evaluating the procedures performed by
management to identify any instances of
non-compliance with the applicable rules
and regulations relevant to gaming
business in South Korea which may have
an adverse impact on the Group's
operations
%V”ﬁFﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁ%% CRIG 2@
FRRRIRROIZREERGITETZIZF R
BY BEEEXBAETNTE

We found the judgements and assumptions
made by management in relation to the value-in-
use calculation to be supportable by the available
evidence.
BAMBEREREREREEFTEEL Z A R
RERB IS BIRSH -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EETER ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit

Key Audit Matter Matter

EBsgEFa1 EE Pz &t 2 EE E i & 7t FIH

Provision for impairment of gaming receivables Our procedures in relation to the provision
T8 52 B U R IR o iRk {E 1 for impairment of gaming receivables

Refer to notes 4(a) and 26 to the consolidated financial statements
FFREERE TSR RN i 4(a) & 26 -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had gross receivables from gaming
customers of approximately HK$233 million (2016: HK$1,353 million)
and provision for impairment of these receivables of approximately
HK$136 million (2016: HK$151 million).

RZZE—tF+A=+—RH EXERKBECEFFIBRENS
233,000,000 7% 7T (ZF —7X4F © 1,353,000,000 %8 7T) + 1M1 5% 5 & K
T 2 BB BRI /136,000,000 7% 7T (= F —7<4F : 151,000,000 %
JT) °

Gaming receivables are assessed on an individual player basis to
estimate the future cash flows that will be recovered. Management
considers all available information, both prior to and after the year end
in assessing the level of impairment provision, such as settlement track
record of respective player, gaming receivable ageing, background and
financial condition of individual player and cash settlement from
individual player subsequent to the year end.

BRI WKIA Ty IR AR B R BN AT - EE BRI E 2R &R
E-BRECRTLREREREERZRFEAMNRZIAAAIBE
K PIInE R 2 BERERRE  BRRYFIERKR  @ARET 25
RREBMRRA R BRI BEERF LR 2R ERIBN

We focused on this area because determining the provision for
impairment of gaming receivables involves significant management’s
judgement.

HME IR UER - REERETHEVERFERERBIREESRE
RERELIE -

included:

BEMRBEENRAZAERBZEF2E

— Understanding and evaluating the Group’s
credit control procedures regarding the
credits granted to gaming customers
THERHE ESEEREERTEEEFRE

EZEEERRER

—  Performing testing on ageing report to
ascertain the accuracy of classification of
receivables by ages
AR BQ TR 5 38 1T R B DARE (R FE W R IB BR BR
DM IEHERE

— Comparing track records of play and
settlement by each of the individual players
LB ERERNER 2B kiEE T AR

—  Performing inquiry with management on
the likelihood of recoverability of the
gaming receivables
FIE R PR YR IR AT U (=] 2 A B 1 BB IR [
T

— Testing subsequent settlement of
receivables from gaming customers
BHA B Z P R 2 &%

We found the assumptions made by
management in relation to the provision for
impairment of gaming receivables to be
supportable by available evidence.
BMBERERERE KRR ERBIEL
ZIRBREFIISEE X HF -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
EBsgEFa1 EE

EETER ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
Pz &t 2 EE E i & 7t FIH

Determination and presentation of discontinued operations

EEREHRCKILEY

Refer to notes 30 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements
FE2EERE TR EN E 30 K 40 -

The Group has disposed of several investments and operations during
the year, including the disposals of the light emitting diode lighting
business in the People’s Republic of China and gaming business in
London at cash considerations of HK$50 million and HK$2,500 million,
respectively. Management determined and presented the operating
results up to the date of disposals and gains on disposals of these two
businesses as discontinued operations in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2017.
EEEENFRALELETREREY  HheESRINRERE
50,000,000 % 7T } 2,500,000,000# T i & 2 A R HME 2 85 —
EERAEE R RAELELE - EREEREE T —+tF+H
=t -HAEFEZGEARARRNBEEHERPI L2 REXENEE
ARG REE 2 WEEE R ERBERILETR -

We focused on this area due to the materiality of these disposals and
the significance of the discontinued operations to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

BTN EE  DHRNEFRALEFE+HEZAERIEEBSY
REVBBRRBEBENEATE -

Our procedures in relation to determination
and presentation of discontinued
operations:

BMEEREBNCRIERBZEFEE -

— Understanding and evaluating
management’s assessment for the
determination and presentation of
discontinued operations
THEFLEEEEHETREMDKILE
Bz aHE

—  Assessing the terms and conditions of the
sales and purchases agreements and
discussing with management with respect
to the detail terms of the transactions
ST B B e 16 R M G A I R IR [ g
B 5 2 s AR

— Testing the receipt of disposal
considerations and other terms to assess if
the transactions has been completed
BIE &R BT W B M R A R
BHARXSHEETK

— Assessing the appropriateness and
completeness of disclosures of the gains on
disposals of discontinued operations
AHEHECRIERBMELARAZREZ
HEMRTERML

We found the determination and presentation of
discontinued operations to be supportable by the
available evidence.

BMBERETRERERIEEBAAGSERS

# o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Egﬁiﬁﬁi%‘fﬁ:éﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬂdﬁz
=

HPZBR  RUSRAUMBHEREBEETE
EHNRFFHHERMER 7 EAERRAINEF
BRRAE  THABRRHRMER 2 ZBEHRE -
HFERRERE NN\ —FRFDAF 90 KM
BTUEFRBR)BERMZER  BRILZINK
BERNEREME D - R TERARERETR
FHEMATE ERFEBEEMET - BRRE
EEKFZRE  BIERBRBEBRE
AEfT 2 &t EX - BABRRAGTERZ
BE IR o SHARMRIM AT A R ERFF SN SERR B - fi
EEEMEMEBVEAERAETERAY
AR ERERBREMBERERAAEL ZEE
RTE - BB RS SRR A R E K ©

ERBEAENEAETENBRES  BIFE
RTEZEAE  REFEXEREE - HFIN -

o BBIMFHEARNRFFRERMERG S
BHRERFEERERBL AR - &Rt &
WITEHEF A ZERR - ARIER
RRMEE ZBAEE  EREMERZ
At - ARAFFRAIBES RRR - RiE - &
BER - ERBRM - SOEBRAREZEZ
b FBREEFE R A ME B 2 EAH
MRz R = AR AL 3R E SRR T G B
ZE AR B o

o THRERFEABMIAMERE  URHEE

B

BEEF  BEMAIFYE BERERE
ZZHEMMHRER -

o FMEEEMRASTHEZRE M RED
SEHERT AR RE AN -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

BEHMHBEGEEMBERRRIEZ
RIEGE)

s HEERAFEKESTERIIBENE
hiEw o RIBPIERESRE  BELE
FHEEEHERIFNEBIERNTHEEE -
femAge gy BERERELLERNE
EERRE - MEAMBSFEEATETE
o AL BEZEMBETIRFERE
IRRAMBHERT CHEBEKE - REH
RARESR  MRMESERFEREE
R o Bz w2 N8R E A

S22 BB - AW - REFEFIERA

e

t
REH% BERBETRSELE -

o HERAMBmARIERIHmIA BB
AR BIERE  URESFB#REKE
BRERRRZHMEIE o

e B BEXEEANERAXBEBHHBEH
EEGER  EE CENRE  WEHEA
MHBEREEEEL - ZMAR BEKEFE
ft2dim s BEMRT  RAAEFER
EEREHEE-

HPREZZESLTAR (AT EE)FE
B EE BEAZHENEAETER  BER
PIfEER AT R th R BB ER R 2 (AR E N IR A

BHATREZZEQRERIBH  SHARMEH
EEBBU M EEERERAE  YRARE
BEATRAENEARSETERMBIEZ
FIEREMEMERUREBER ZBERT » 18
ElE Ry
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Ka Keung Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 February 2018

BEHMHBEGEEMBERRRIEZ
RIEGE)

HREZZEQBBZFAT  HAIHEEHL
FRUAFEGAMBRRZEITNERAE
2 - AMEKBRETEE - RIAEZBER
EPHERZEFER  RIPDEEIERTAFFA
FEEEEER IEHERFRBERAT  HME
ERMERMRETABEXFREN ZAEE
REBELEZ ARG RFRENEERS
FUBEZLEIR

HEABIZBMBEZETHEABARE
FBIE

& SRk EE A E B PR
E e
BB T \F-A-+—H
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Consolidated Income Statement
ARG W 7 2%

For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bl Z = —t+F+_A=-+—HIFE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZERE
Continuing operations B EER Notes HK$000 ! HK$'000
F5E FET ! FHET
! (Restated)
! (&71))
Revenue 1y §=3 5 896,250 ! 363,447
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR (204,583), -
Other income and other gains, net Ha U A R E U5 F 58 6 85,312 ! 5,353
Gaming duties and other related taxes IEE = =l bR (24,264)! (17,582)
Commission and allowances to gaming BYEKAERENZABE !
counterparties KOERG (56,006)! (108,609)
Amortisation and depreciation HIHRITE (157,053)! (61,234)
Employee benefit expenses EERMNER 8 (569,167), (303,689)
Other operating expenses Hih @& R (625,758)! (613,326)
Changes in fair values of financial assets EATFEEFABRZ !
at fair value through profit or loss U EELATEERED 172,914 ! (665,334)
Changes in fair values of investment properties & &% 7 A EBEZH 15 40,305 ! (45,956)
Share of result of an associate DE—KEE R A2 EE 22 (122)! -
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment of FEUN B 5 7k 18 & H A FE U 7k !
trade and other receivables, net HRERBE(BE) 5 26 209,041 | (2,184)
Returns on available-for-sale financial asset At ER A E 2 [0 5 20 89,632 ! -
Finance income, net BT 10 3,589 | 48,800
Loss before income tax FrFrSRATE IR 7 (139,910);  (1,400,314)
Income tax expenses Frigfif s 11 (15,778), (6,590)
Loss for the year from continuing operations SEEEXBZEEESE (155,688)!  (1,406,904)
Discontinued operations BH¥IEER :
Profit for the year from discontinued operations & 4% |- ¥ 7% 2 5 E % A 30 656,910 | 85,488
Profit/(loss) for the year EERF(5E) 501,222 ' (1,321,416)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE(ERR(Ei8) : :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ SN 505,067 ' (1,067,455)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AE 2 (3,845)! (253,961)
501,222 ! (1,321,416)
(Loss)/earnings per share from continuing FATFIHREABEGLSERES !
and discontinued operations attributable RERLEEBZEE :
to owners of the Company (B548) 27 !
Basic and diluted: BEARREE :
From continuing operations FHEISE X 12 HK(0.16) cents | HK(5.18) cents
Bl il
From continuing and discontinued operations BEEEMBRILERS 12 HKO.51 cents ' HK(4.80) cents
Bl B

The notes on pages 91 to 210 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 2591 £ 210 B 2 M AZEEAMERE 24
financial statements. PREBS ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Fr I A% A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bl Z = —t+F+_A=-+—HIFE
2017 2016
—E—tF! —ZT—RF
HK$:000 ' HK$'000
FET FET
| (Restated)
| (E51))
Profit/(loss) for the year EERF(EBRA) 501,222, (1,321,416)
1
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Htt2mEkE (BiF) \
1
]
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified RS T gEN D EEER !
to profit or loss: HE - :
Remeasurements of employee benefit obligations BN EERERMNEME (6,597), (285)
Items that have been reclassified or may be BEH SR LA fE B |
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: DHEEER AR - \
Imputed interest on amount due to a shareholder FERt—RRR A HE RS - 193,993
Currency translation differences EWEN 5 1,373,586 | (450,718)
Revaluation of properties, plant and equipment PRSI AT E !
upon transfer to investment properties, net ME - WEMRE TR 85,256 | -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEENBEEZ A TFER :
financial asset E 89,632 ! -
Release of reserve upon disposal of REERMEEETKEER !
available-for-sale financial asset B (89,632), -
Realisation of translation reserve upon REEWNEB AR FEEIE !
disposals of subsidiaries b 5 118,687 ! 25
|
]
1570932 |  (256,985)
1
]
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FE2EIE (§5i8)EH 2,072,154 !  (1,578,401)
|
]
Total comprehensive income/(loss) BE2EEE (E5R) 88 : |
attributable to: |
Owners of the Company iN/NGIEZ =N 2,075,274 ! (1,279,646)
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS RERS (3,120)! (298,755)
|
2,072,154 ! (1,578,401)
|
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ZFATFIHAEAEBGEEERR |
attributable to owners of the Company e (EiE)aEky : |
arises from: |
Continuing operations B EET 1,179,100 ' (1,094,105)
Discontinued operations EARIEFT 896,174 ! (185,541)
|
]
2,075,274 ! (1,279,646)
The notes on pages 91 to 210 are an integral part of these consolidated CRE e

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BB AR U

As at 31 December 2017 R =L —+F+=F=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF! EF
Notes HK$’000 | HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
ASSETS RE |
Non-current assets ERENEE \
Property, plant and equipment M BEKE 14 10,198,071 | 3,437,671
Investment properties LB 15 845,911 ! 239,800
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT b HH EFRIE 16 - 13,868
Goodwill SES 17 5798 | 419,045
Intangible assets BIVEE 18 872,498 | 1,734,441
Prepayments, trade and other receivables FENFUA - EWE SFIB R |
H A fE Y FRIE 26 477,984 | 21,037
Deferred income tax assets RIEFAISTEE 35 - 11,763
Available-for-sale financial asset A EMBEE 20 - 117,000
|
1
12,400,262 ! 5,994,625
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, boon DI
Current assets RENEE :
Inventories FE 23 86,164 | 52,057
Completed properties for sale FECERME 24 1,267,895 | -
Properties under development EERAYE 25 260,448 ! 2,079,841
Prepayments, trade and other receivables TERFRIE - BB HRIBR :
H th FEUCRRIR 26 537,573 ' 1,495,283
Amount due from a joint venture B —REEERIE 21 - 87,116
Amount due from an associate F& I — SR Bt i A R UA 22 16,708 | -
Financial assets at fair value through BAVEEFARSEZ |
profit or loss B 7574 B 28 319,015 ! 859,095
Income tax recoverable EEEEEY 2,839 ! 2,715
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBLEEY 29 4,338,022 ! 6,774,501
|
6,828,664 ' 11,350,608
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e
Total assets BEME 19,228,926 ' 17,345,233
|
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES RERAR \
Equity attributable to owners of EAFHBABLESR |
the Company |
Share capital [N 36 1,473,953 | 2,056,588
Reserves G 37 14,682,795 ' 5,896,689
|
1
16,156,748 : 7,953,277
Non-controlling interests FEIERRES 42 -! 1,147,864
|
1
Total equity s 16,156,748 ! 9,101,141
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR B AR U AR
As at 31 December 2017 R =L —+F+=F=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF! EF
Notes HK$°000 ! HK$'000
BiaE FHET FET
LIABILITIES R :
Non-current liabilities FRBAGE :
Trade and other payables FERTE 53k R HA |
FEFRIB 31 46,667 | 9,402
Bank and other borrowings RITRHAMEE 32 1,965,155 ! 195,250
Amount due to a non-controlling interest FET IR AR M 5 FRIE 33 - 1,376,959
Amount due to a shareholder R — BRI 34 - 5,361,193
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFTIST B E 35 36,204 ! 181,733
|
]
2,048,026 ! 7,124,537
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, oot
]
Current liabilities mENER :
Trade and other payables BB S5 IERHEAM !
JE S 5R0R 31 1,001,094 ! 875,506
Bank and other borrowings BITREMES 32 19,424 ! 230,609
Income tax payable FERTETIS R 3,634 13,440
|
1,024,152 ! 1,119,555
1
]
Total liabilities AiREE 3,072,178 ' 8,244,092
1
]
Total equity and liabilities HESRAR 19,228,926 ' 17,345,233

FBEE2I0EZHAMBBREN T —\F
“AZ T HEESSHESHUATALIRE
BE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 210 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 21 February 2018 and were
signed on its behalf.

Yang Zhihui Zhou Xueyun
wES RAEx
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director
FERHNTES HiTEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

gl ) e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% —

—tF+t-A=+-RALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERAEFAEL
Non-
Share Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserves losses Total interests equity
BEx p=giny RitER it FERER B
(Note 36) (Note 37) (Note 37)
(5t 36) (HzE37) (et 37)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2017 —+FE—-fF—RZi&EH 2,056,588 8,418,209 (2,521,520) 7,953,277 1,147,864 9,101,141
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREN/(B1) - - 505,067 505,067 (3,845) 501,222
Other comprehensive income Ht2EKE
Remeasurements of employee benefit obligations ~ E#:t2ESEFIE T - (6,597) - (6,597) - (6,597)
Currency translation differences 4‘?¥E)DL§§E - 1,372,861 - 1,372,861 725 1,373,586
Realisation of translation reserve upon disposals A ENE R FRERE R ERE
of subsidiaries - 118,687 - 118,687 - 118,687
Revaluation of properties, plant and equipment RERERENERERYE
upon transfer to investment properties, net lﬁ&%& CiEFE - 85,256 - 85,256 - 85,256
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial asset A {1 & 814 E 2 N FE(E
E@ - 89,632 - 89,632 - 89,632
Release of reserve upon disposal of available- W ER SIS ER
for-sale financial asset BUHHE - (89,632) - (89,632) - (89,632)
Share of other comprehensive income of: DEEM 2 E K :
Joint venture BEDE - - - - - -
Associate B AT - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FE2EME /(§5i8) @8 - 1,570,207 505,067 2,075,274 (3,120) 2,072,154
Transactions with owners in their capacity LEEASRBBAZES
as owners
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAR - (2,552) - (2,552) (17,424) (19,976)
Change in ownership interests in a subsidiary *%W% T%ﬁ@é%ﬁéﬁ
without a change of control FHETE - (723,252) - (723,252)  (1,127,320)  (1,850,572)
Cancellation of paid-up capital &iﬁ,allﬁlé$ (1,850,929) 1,850,929 - - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares by rights issue FBRMURETLRR 1,028,294 4,034,958 - 5,063,252 - 5,063,252
Issuance of ordinary shares by placing ERRERTERR 240,000 1,550,749 - 1,790,749 - 1,790,749
(582,635) 6,710,832 - 6,128,197 (1,144,744) 4,983,453
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—+&+-_A=1+—H
iR 1,473,953 16,699,248 (2,016,453) 16,156,748 - 16,156,748
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZT-R"F-A—Hz&# 2,056,588 8,630,400 (1,454,065) 9,232,923 455,477 9,688,400
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Loss for the year FEER - - (1,067,455  (1,067,455) (253,961)  (1,321,416)
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2EEHE
Remeasurements of employee benefit obligations ~ E#ft EEEFHEE - (285) - (285) - (285)
Imputed interest on amount due to a shareholder  fEft —&REFHIA L HEF & - 193,993 - 193,993 - 193,993
Currency translation differences EHENER - (405,924) - (405,924) (44,794) (450,718)
Realisation of translation reserve upon disposal A ENTE R RR SR E KR
of subsidiaries - 25 - 25 - 25
Share of other comprehensive loss of: HEEMREEE -
Joint venture BERE - - - - - -
Associate Hﬁ%ﬂ A - - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year EERXEERES - (212,191)  (1,067,455)  (1,279,646) (298,755)  (1,578,401)
Transactions with owners in their capacity LEASSRBBAZES
as owners
Capital contribution from a non-controlling shareholder & B — % FEZ B E T & - - - - 991,142 991,142
Balance at 31 December 2016 <73 ANFETZA=T—H
R 2,056,588 8,418,209 (2,521,520) 7,953,277 1,147,864 9,101,141
The notes on pages 91 to 210 are an integral part of these consolidated 91 E 210 & 7 fiiT A EiF A M KHRE 24
financial statements. B EB S
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR EF

For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bl Z = —t+F+_A=-+—HIFE
2017 2016
:ﬁ—tﬁ: —E-RF
Notes HK$°000 ! HK$'000
B aE FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities BEEBZHaRE !
Cash used in operations KETARE 41 (289,085)!  (2,006,344)
Interest received EHFE 3,615 49,514
Interest paid ERFLE (57,797)! (67,461)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (Eﬁ)/ e (23,912)! 14,229
I
Net cash used in operating activities KE BRI S F8 (367,179)!  (2,010,062)
1
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHZHRERE !
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEZRAFEBE ABR !
through profit or loss B EE - (222,869)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at PERANFEERAEZR !
fair value through profit or loss 2B EFTSHIA 577,121 274,324
Contribution on available-for-sale financial asset %7 (1 EBI B E 2 #2520 (858,000)! (117,000)
Returns on available-for-sale financial asset AEHEMBEE 2 BH® 20 1,064,632 ! -
Dividend received B E 1,663 | 2,265
Advance to a joint venture M—KE & ERR - (87,116)
Advance to an associate m— Zﬁﬂﬁﬁ%’& AIEARK (15,780), -
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (6,000)! (230,756)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME - BWEM&E (5,245,769)'  (1,360,895)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - f%&?&ﬁ !
plant and equipment Frig kT 7,869 ! 2,149
Acquisition of subsidiaries Hﬁl,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ Al 38 - (1,495,868)
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AR TEHRIE 40 2,318,755 ! 168
1
Net cash used in investing activities KEEYMARG 558 (2,155,509)'  (3,235,598)
1
Cash flows from financing activities MEETHZRERE !
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares FEiRHERR T LR 36 !
by rights issue FriS kI8 5,063,252 -
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares FHRLEBITERRK 36 !
by placing Fﬁ?%?ﬂléi 1,790,749 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1y =N 39 (3,206,434)! -
Capital injection from a non-controlling interest  3E1Z A A& 25 Ié - 991,142
(Decrease)/increase in amount e — B TE '
due to a shareholder WA/ 10 (5285,634)! 5,536,635
New bank and other borrowings FERIT R EAMEE 2,321,347 ' 3,017,212
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERITREMEE (782,715)"  (2,669,545)
1
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEES (FTE)/ s !
financing activities REFEE (99,435), 6,875,444
I
Net (decrease)/increase in HeRREEEM(RD)/ :
cash and cash equivalents BRE (2,622,123) 1,629,784
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of REVZREe RREEEEY !
the year 6,774,501 ! 5,191,990
Currency translation difference BHIEH =5 185,644 (47,273)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERZRERESEED 29 4,338,022 : 6,774,501
The notes on pages 91 to 210 are an integral part of these consolidated £ 91 E210 8 2 Wit A% S HEA M BREx 24

financial statements.
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General information

Landing International Development Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together refer to the “Group”), are principally
engaged in development and operation of the integrated leisure
and entertainment resort (the “Integrated Resort
Development”); gaming and entertainment facilities (the
“Gaming Business”); and property development (the “Property
Development”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda, and the principal place
of business of the Company is located at Suites 5801-04, 58th
Floor, Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central,
Hong Kong. The holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Landing International Limited (“LIL"),
which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

As at the date of this report, phase one construction of Jeju
Shinhwa World in Korea has been completed. Shinhwa Theme
Park started operating on 30 September 2017. Hotel facilities
operating under the international hospitality brands of Somerset
and Marriott and the Group’s own Landing brand were opened in
2017.

The Group disposed the Gaming Business in the United Kingdom
(the “UK") and the business of design, manufacturing and sales
of the light emitting diode (“LED") and semiconductor lighting
related products (the “Lighting Business”) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") during 2017, which related results
were presented as discontinued operations.

Further, on 21 February 2018, the Group obtained conditional
approval to relocate its Landing Casino in Jeju, South Korea
currently located in Hyatt Regency Hotel to Jeju Shinhwa World
(the “Relocation”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars ("HK$’000"), unless
otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and investment properties, which are carried at

fair values.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumption and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

(@) New and amended standards adopted by

the Group

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1

January 2017:

o Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014 —

2016 cycle;

° Disclosure initiative — Amendments to

HKAS 7; and

o Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses — Amendments to HKAS

12

FEEHHREE

REZEHEEVBRRRAZEZGTR
REN T - R BRAI  ZFHERE
EWMBEFENT ERER -

2.1 wEHEHE

ZEFRAMBWERIIVRIEAA E A
FEVBRESEA((FEEMBERE
A ) RE - RAMBHRERC R
BERAEmE - WL AT E 8
BEE BATEEAABEZZHM
BEERREYMERZEMHBRAF
BEJIER) MIEHLER] -

RAEZENEBEYHREERZ
HEMBRRFEECRETHRS
AEE TREEEBERAAE
Bz &t AR T ERHE A -
FREREE A REME BT
KRR MAEFEEEMBHRERNF
BERZBBNHE4RE -

211 BitBREERIFE

() AZBMEMHZHTRE
a7 R

-+~

AEBER =B %
—A-BRZEMBK
B BRI AA T
AR 2 53T

e T MFEE=ZT
—REFBRHRZEE
MG E LR FE
G

° WERETE — BA
B ERETR
CEIR

o  BAEREEER
EEMRAEE —
BAGRTERIE12
S ER]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 BASISO

F PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

The adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the current year or any prior year
and is not likely to affect future years.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these new standards and
amendments to standards and interpretations is
expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except those set out below:

(i) HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the
classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”
(Continued)

The Group has reviewed its financial assets
and liabilities and is expecting the
following impact from the adoption of the
new standard on 1 January 2018:

The financial assets held by the Group
include equity investments currently
measured at fair value through profit or
loss which would likely continue to be
measured on the same basis under HKFRS
9.

There will be no impact on the Group's
accounting for financial liabilities, as the
new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or
loss and the Group does not have any
such liabilities. The derecognition rules
have been transferred from HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and have not been
changed.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”
(Continued)

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions
based on expected credit losses (“ECL")
rather than only incurred credit losses as is
the case under HKAS 39. It applies to
financial assets classified at amortised cost,
debt instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts. Based on
the assessments undertaken to date, by
considering the recent track record of play,
credit history and subsequent settlement
by the individual player, the Group does
not expect material change to the
impairment provision for the gaming
receivables.

The Group has assessed that its financial
assets currently measured at amortised
cost or fair value through profit or loss will
continue with their respective classification
and measurements upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”
(Continued)

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent
of the Group’s disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by Group

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The Group will apply the new rules
restrospectively from 1 January 2018, with
the practical expedients permitted under
the standard. Comparative figures for
2017 will not be restated.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B A M

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with

customers”

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a new standard
for the recognition of revenue. This will
replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts
for goods and services and HKAS 11 which
covers construction contracts. The new
standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a
good or service transfers to a customer.
The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B A AT
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)

policies (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 mELEYE (&)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(ii)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

Management has accessed the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements and has
identified the following areas that are
likely to be affected:

211 BRREERIKE (E)

(b) AR ZHETEAR
2E ()

(i BEYBEHREAER
FISHIBFEAEH
Uz | (48)

EIEEE HF LR
B R K
AHBRE LY
® - WEBSITI

Sy AR TT AL S B 428
REAREXEE Y

AL
o Revenue from services — the . BR % Uk 25 —
application of HKFRS 15 may result JE R B B R 7

in the identification of separate
performance obligations which could
affect the timing of the recognition
of revenue. The Group recognises

HEERE
155 7] g€ &
S RallE AVl
B HAT

revenue when (or as) a performance TR
obligation is satisfied, that is, when Z A o A&
‘control’ of the goods or services B (shEE)
underlying the particular TEREAHE
performance obligation is transferred £ - JRBEPELRS
to the customer. Based on the ERAETN
assessments undertaken to date, by 82 sk ik
considering the recent contract T2 [y
terms and applicable laws, the HE TR
Group does not expect that the RIS © 1R
adoption of HKFRS 15 will have a BeSRIEFT
material impact to the timing of the T2
recognition of revenue based on the ZRIEEE
current business model of the Group A K s

as at 31 December 2017.

AR R
EER=_F
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=—+—HZR
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REETEHH
BB SR
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R 2k 2 B
BEKE KXY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A G R B BAE M
2 Summary of significant accounting 2

policies (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

o Revenue from sales of completed
properties held for sale are
recognised when (or as) the control
of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the
asset may be transferred over time
or at a point in time. Based on the
assessments undertaken to date, by
considering the recent contract
terms and applicable laws, the
Group does not expect that the
adoption of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact as the control of the
property is transferred at a point in
time, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains the physical
possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and
the collection of the consideration is
probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 70 B B WA M
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)
policies (Continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 mBEE(F)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and 211 EEtBERSERIEE (&)

Disclosures (Continued)
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(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b) EREMZHFHEITERR
adopted (Continued) = (&)
(i) HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with (i BBYEHREAER
customers” (Continued) FISHIBFEAEN
Wz [ (48)

e Accounting for certain costs incurred o  BITEHIFE
in fulfilling a contract — certain EETRAZ
costs which are currently expensed 5% — B
may need to be recognised as an AIX$H2 BT
asset under HKFRS 15. The Group B 7R R] e ZE AR
has assessed that these costs are not BEBMBE®
likely to be significant to the &R E15
contract. KHERAE

EoAEEE
S SR AR
HEAMET
ANA gL @ &
* o

At this stage, the Group has commenced AEERBRD A

an assessment of the impact of other new CEREEE RPN

and amended standards and BASET R 272

interpretations to existing standards and BUHIRBRA %

does not expect a significant impact on its & YHEETEY
results of operations and financial position. HigE B RUH%
RSER EARFE

Date of adoption by Group XEEFHBH

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years BB 1% ¥R 5 AR

commencing on or after 1 January 2018. FISHER TN

At this stage, the Group intends to adopt F—HA—Hs 2%

the standard using the modified 746 2 B IR F JZ oR

retrospective approach which means that Bl AR - AEER
the cumulative impact of the adoption, if REEEAZEA
any, will be recognised in retained B2 7R
earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that ZER] BIRER

comparatives will not be restated. me Rt g(m
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

55 o B B M
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHHREEGE)
policies (Continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 mBEE (F)
2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and 211 B EREBRIKE (B
Disclosures (Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b) MAREMZFHTERR
adopted (Continued) 2 (E)
(i) HKFRS 16, “Leases” (i) FERMBHRSER
165 [HE]
HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases BEBEPEREER
being recognised on the consolidated F16RIGBEEK

statement of financial position, as the
distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating
leases. As at the reporting date, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$25,091,000 (Note
43). However, the Group has not yet
determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the recognition

Mo HERERA R
BARREHER - R
AR =HEHER
EHEZEHER
il B - AR 4% % %
) EE(HER
Bz EmRE) RX
NHEZHBaE
B ERER - M — Pl
MBI A R HHE (B
BZHE -

HREBEAZ &5
RESTEHRE

HLERIG EETE
rEEKERE 2
FETEE - RAHR
SR NEEEF
25,091,000 7T 2
T HHEERE
AHE (P5E43) » A&
i AEBEEKE

of an asset and a liability for future THE&RELeSE
payments and how this will affect the BER A E LR

Group's profit and classification of cash
flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low
value leases and some commitments may
relate to arrangements that will not qualify
as leases under HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ey

o B A M i

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16, “Leases” (Continued)

Date of adoption by Group

The new standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

Other than mentioned above, there are no
other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations
that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the
Group.

The Group is assessing the full impact of the
new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations.
According to the preliminary assessment, other
than the assessment results of HKFRS 9, 15 and
16 stated above, none of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

new interpretations and

2

FEEHBREE(E)

2.1 REEE (E)

2.1.1

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B A AT
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)

policies (Continued)

2.2 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND 22 RERBEREZETTEEZ

EQUITY ACCOUNTING R A
2.2.1Subsidiaries 2.2. 1B~ &

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (Note
2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of financial position, respectively.

2.2.2Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (Note 2.2.4), after
initially being recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)
policies (Continued)

2.2 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND 2 MERERERESTTEERZ

EQUITY ACCOUNTING (Continued) R 8l (&)

2.2.3Joint arrangements 223BELH
Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” investments in IREEBMBmEENE 115
joint arrangements are classified as either joint (Bt LB Rt L&
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends BEnlRBagEdagd
on the contractual rights and obligations of each X -nBERIBEREEZEDN
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint BRREEME  MIEBEZE
arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of its PE 2R RERE - ARBE B
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint HEtELhk o e WHEE
ventures. TEABEDE -
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the REEREZERITFIEKAR
equity method (Note 2.2.4), after initially being WRIE  EEEUERREK
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement of RREREAR(HE2.24) -
financial position.

2.2.4Equity accounting 224 mEEE
Under the equity method of accounting, the BEEREE  REVDIR
investments are in initially recognised at cost and BRATER - BBERARIUARE
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of HERAEESEREHR 2
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in I igigiE s - W AMEE W
profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements in HEARNEEDHREHRZ
other comprehensive income of the investee in other Ht2miz=gg - o ekfE
comprehensive income. Dividends received or Wt ERNRIRAEELEZRE
receivable from associates and joint ventures are BRB/RERAETR -

recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

EAKEDERSAREELZ
EIEASNEBENZERE
Z R an (B ¥ fo] L fth 2 4 4
FEWHIR) - AR BT &
RE—FER BIFELKED
REMEBAZEEIELN

Eon
A °

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A5G B AR B
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)

policies (Continued)

2.2 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND 22 RERBEREZETTEEZ
EQUITY ACCOUNTING (Continued) Al (%)

2.2.4Equity accounting (Continued) 224 R EEE ()

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.

2.2.5Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B A AT
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)

policies (Continued)

2.2 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND 22 RERBEREZETTEEZ

EQUITY ACCOUNTING (Continued) R 8l (&)
2.2.5Changes in ownership interests (Continued) 225 EREREE (&)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in consolidated income
statement as a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in consolidated
income statement.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

2

FEEHBREE(E)

2.3
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2.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “Finance income, net”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
consolidated income statement within “Other income
and other gains, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties, principally comprising residential
properties and commercial properties, are held for long-term
rental yields and that are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequently, they are carried at fair value. Changes
in fair values are presented in consolidated income
statement as changes in fair value of investment properties.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to
allocate their cost net of their residual values over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter lease term as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of
the lease terms or
50 years

4.5% to 20%

18% to 20%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles 10% to 25%

Aircraft 5%
Plant, machinery and equipment 4% to 18%
Gaming equipment and accessories  20%

Structure and other facilities 2% 10 33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other income and other gains, net” in the

consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents buildings or assets under
construction which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.

2.9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Gaming licenses

Gaming licenses acquired in business combinations are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Gaming licenses have indefinite useful lives and are
carried at cost less any impairment losses (Note 2.10).

Trademarks and patents

Trademarks and patents acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks and patents have finite
useful lives and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (Note 2.10).
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademarks and patents
over their estimated useful lives of 8 to 18 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

2.1

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that
has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The
results of discontinued operations are presented separately
in the consolidated income statement.

2.12 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

ASSETS
2.12.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories:

o financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss,

. loans and receivables, and

° available-for-sale financial assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (Continued)

2.12 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

2.12.1Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial
recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss if they are acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. They are presented as current assets if
they are expected to be sold within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period; otherwise
they are presented as non-current assets. The
group has not elected to designate any financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. If collection of the amounts is expected
in one year or less they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. The Group’'s loans and receivables
comprise of “trade and other receivables” and
“cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Notes 2.16 and
2.17).
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)
policies (Continued)
2.12 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL 212 RERHEMBKEE (&)
ASSETS (Continued)
2.12.1Classification (Continued) 2121 7% (#8)
(¢) Available-for-sale financial assets (0 TFIEHHERBEE
Investments are designated as available-for-sale fi % & W A B A B 5
financial assets if they do not have fixed H B K [& E 5k 7] # i
maturities and fixed or determinable payments, 7o mMERERNP RS
and management intends to hold them for the BEZRERE  AEER
medium to long-term. Financial assets that are AIHEEENBERE - WK
not classified into any of the other categories (at DR R/EAEMER (&
fair value through profit or loss or loans and NEEEFABEZXE
receivables) are also included in the available- AR ERGIE) 2 B8 &
for-sale category. EMET AR GEHEER o
The financial assets are presented as non-current VBEEZYAIER
assets unless they mature, or management B E MY E E R E
intends to dispose of them within 12 months of HERERNRE R
the end of the reporting period. BET12EAANLE 28
BEERIRRIN o
2.12.2Recognition and measurement 2.122MER R 7t &2
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are BEREBCHMBEERRZHH
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the (MR EEAFBESHEZ
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial BEZBH)HER - & U EE
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive BEEMSREAEZEND
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or JEmE B EE - MAKED &
have been transferred and the Group has transferred HHEZ BRI B & E 5w
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 2ENT - AR IEERMEE -
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, ENEAVHHEZERFEE
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in i AREMEEREERZ
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the 2RV EERBETHEE
consolidated income statement as part of other FEWERIEAEMIAZE
income. Hh—E5 .
2.13 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 213 B ITA
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount A EERGFESARTAITEE
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position CHEREBIEN - TAERBFER
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to EELESRAREREERENEA
offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to B AMBEERBER THEE
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability WREREFBRAKREHRFE -
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into BRI EIEREZ 225 -
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but ENATHEASENEESKIES
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain HNEETBERT TUEH -
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.14 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in consolidated income statement. If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value

using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in

consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in

Note 26.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)

policies (Continued)

2.14 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

214 B EERE (&)

PEBTHMEZEE

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale (b)

If there is objective evidence of impairment for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
consolidated income statement — is removed from
equity and recognised in consolidated income
statement.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
consolidated income statement in a subsequent
period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases in a subsequent period and
the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
consolidated income statement.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average method.
The costs of work in progress and finished good comprise
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2

policies (Continued)

2.16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
See (Note 2.12) for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and (Note 2.14) for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call

with banks.

2.18 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.

2.19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within one year or less of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other

income or finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments

issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A5 M
2 Summary of significant accounting 2

policies (Continued)

2.21 BORROWING COSTS

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs. The exchange gains and losses that are an adjustment
to interest costs include the interest rate differential between
borrowing costs that would be incurred if the entity had
borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on interest
rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s functional

currency.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more
than one accounting period, the amount of foreign
exchange differences eligible for capitalisation is determined
for each annual period and are limited to the difference
between the hypothetical interest amount for the functional
currency borrowings and the actual interest incurred for
foreign currency borrowings. Foreign exchange differences
that did not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous
years should not be capitalised in subsequent years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development and held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Development cost
of properties comprises cost of land use rights, construction
costs and borrowing costs incurred during the construction
period. Upon completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are classified
as current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

2.23 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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5 7o B B A
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)

policies (Continued)

2.23 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

223 BN RIEE PS8 ()

(b) Deferred income tax (b) EFEFTISH

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

bl = & A
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)
policies (Continued)
2.24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 224 EEER
(a) Pension obligations (a) EBUEEMEF

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries, which
operate in Mainland China, are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The Mainland China
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the central
pension scheme based on certain percentage of the
wages for the year of those employees in Mainland
China. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense as incurred in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s certain subsidiaries,
which operate in South Korea, are required to
participate in a defined contribution is a pension plan
under which the South Korea subsidiaries pay fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when an
employee has rendered service.

In addition, the subsidiaries in South Korea also
operates a defined benefits scheme in South Korea,
the assets of which are generally held in separate
trustee-administrated funds.
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5 7o B B A
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHRFEEGE)

policies (Continued)
2.24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 224 BERA (&)

(a) BRUKEEIE(E)

(a) Pension obligations (Continued)

The schemes are generally funded through payments
to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds,
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. A
defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a
defined contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit
plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years
of services and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Past-service
costs are recognised immediately as income.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries, which
operate in the UK, are required to participate in a
defined contribution plan. The defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the UK subsidiaries
pay fixed contributions into a separate entity. The UK
subsidiaries have no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all the benefits relating to
employee service during the period. The UK
subsidiaries have no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the date of

consolidated statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.25 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same

class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of

time is recognised as interest expense.

2.26 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net
of returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics

of each arrangement.
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o W R M it

2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (Continued)

2.26 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
(a) Integrated resort revenue

Revenue from integrated resort, mainly comprised
hospitality; food and beverage services and theme
park ticket sales. Revenue from hotel room rental,
food and beverage sales and other ancillary services is
recognised when the services are rendered. Revenue
from theme park ticket sales are recognised when the
tickets are used.

(b) Gaming revenue

Revenue from Gaming Business, representing the net
gaming wins, is recognised when the relevant services
have been rendered and is measured at the
entitlement of economic inflows of the Group from
the business.

(c) Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when
the risk and rewards of the properties are transferred
to the purchasers, which occurs when legally binding
unconditional sales contracts were entered, the
construction of the relevant properties has been
completed, the properties have been delivered to the
purchasers pursuant to the sale contracts and
collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured. Deposits and installments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as pre-sale proceeds received from
customers under current liabilities.

2.27 INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans and receivables is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B A M

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.28 DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.29 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

2.30 COMMISSION AND ALLOWANCES TO

GAMING COUNTERPARTIES

Commission and allowances to gaming counterparties is
calculated based on certain percentages of net gaming wins
or rolling amount and is recognised when the relevant
services have been rendered by gaming counterparties.

2.31 GAMING DUTIES AND OTHER RELATED

TAXES

According to the respective local legislation by the
Government of South Korea and the UK, the Group is
required to pay certain percentage gaming tax on the net
gaming wins from gaming operations. In addition, the
Group is also required to make certain variable and fixed
payments to the Government of South Korea and the UK
based on the gaming wins generated from tables and slot
machines in its possession. These expenses are recognised as
“Gaming duties and other related taxes” in the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

2.32 LEASES

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.
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o W R M it

3 Financial risk management
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central finance
department (the “Finance Department”) headed by the
Financial Controller of the Group. The Finance Department
identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation
with the Group’s operating units to cope with overall risk
management as well as specific areas such as market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in HK$, Korean Won
("KRW") and United State Dollar (“US$"). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in HK$, KRW and US$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities which are denominated in a
currency other than HK$, KRW and US$, which
are the functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group. The
Group currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes
that the exchange rate risk for translations
between HK$ and US$ do not have material
impact to the Group. The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against KRW with all other
variables held constant, other comprehensive
income for the year would have been
approximately HK$645,621,000 higher/lower, as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of KRW denominated assets and
liabilities.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for cash
and bank deposits, which earn low interest rate.
The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by cash held at variable rates.

As at 31 December 2017, if interest rate on
floating rate borrowings had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,954,000
lower/higher (2016: loss before income tax
approximately HK$3,083,000 higher/lower),
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expenses on floating rate borrowings.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 FINANCI

AL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because of investments held by the Group
are classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position at financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk
arising from investments in equity securities and
unlisted investment fund, the Group diversifies
its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the limits set by the
Group.

The fair values of listed equity investments are
based on quoted market prices. The fair values
of unlisted investment fund are determined by
the quote from the intermediary. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
are dealt with in consolidated income statement.
The performance is monitored regularly,
together with an assessment of its relevance to
the Group's strategic plans.

As at 31 December 2017, if the price of the
listed equity investments increased/decreased by
5%, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit before income tax for the year
would have been increased/decreased by
HK$15,951,000 (2016: loss before income tax
would have been decreased/increased by
HK$23,103,000) mainly as a result of the fair
value change of these investments.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis, except for
credit risk relating to trade receivables and receivables
from gaming customers. Credit risk arises from cash
and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, amount due from an associate,
amount due from a joint venture and deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions. For banks and
financial institutions, only independently rated parties
with a high credit rating are accepted.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
from Lighting Business are made to reputable and
creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and appropriate percentage of
down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

The Group has policies and guidelines in place to
assess the credit worthiness of customers from
Gaming Business to ensure that credits are made to
parties with an appropriate credit history and a good
history of performance records. As at 31 December
2017, approximately 10% of prepayments, trade and
other receivables represent receivables from gaming
customers (2016: 79%). The Group monitors the
issuance of credit on an ongoing basis to minimise the
exposure to credit risk. The activities of individual
credit account are monitored regularly for
management to decide if the credit facility should be
continued, changed or cancelled. Management
regularly evaluates the allowance for doubtful
receivables by reviewing the collectability of each
balance based upon the age of the balance, the
customer’s financial condition, collection history and
any other known information. See Note 26(ii) for
details of debtors and further disclosure on credit risks.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December
2017 is the unimpaired carrying amounts of respective
financial assets.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by Finance
Department. The Finance Department monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to
ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs
while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities at all times.

At the reporting date, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$4,338,022,000
(2016: HK$6,774,501,000) (Note 29) and trade and
other receivables, net, of approximately
HK$258,552,000 (2016: HK$1,516,320,000) (Note
26) that are expected to readily generate cash inflows
for managing liquidity risk.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MBEMREE(HE)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 MKEKREZE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () REEZEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TERAOMAEE 2 HBEE -
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on ZEVHABEERBRESH
the remaining period at the date of the consolidated BRAKRABZHRTEHEES
statement of financial position to the contractual HENEBE S REED A
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are Ble TRAABESEARITR
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. BH|MEME o
Less than 1to 2to More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
DPRI1E 1E2HF 2F5F EBESF At

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TET FET FET TET

At 31 December 2017 WRZ-E—+tE

+=A=+-H
Trade and other payables JE{ & 5318

R Eo A FE A 5B 916,994 277 8,382 14,288 939,941
Bank and other borrowings #7717 & E b (& & 120,670 1,206,384 928,293 - 2,255,347

1,037,664 1,206,661 936,675 14,288 3,195,288

Less than 1to 2to  More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
DPR1E 1224 2Z5F BESEF et

HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TAT TAET TAT TET

At 31 December 2016 WZE—XE

+-A=+—H
Trade and other payables [E[HE 571A
R H M ER RIE 584,043 3,748 5,654 - 593,445
Bank and other borrowings $R17 K B b {& & 250,070 28245 197,028 - 475343
Amount due to JER S A 2
a non-controlling interest I8 - - 1,580,062 - 1,580,062
Amount due to R — B IRER IR
a shareholder - 5,536,635 - - 5,536,635
834,113 5,568,628 1,782,744 - 8,185,485
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MERBER(E)
3.2 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 3.2 EXREE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEBEBEAZ BRAREARE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern Bis@ELE ze - LAREIEM
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for Bl I A E K 25 B R A R R =5
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital WIRFHREEAEBLUREE X
structure to reduce the cost of capital. AN
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the RRFBIARERER  AEEL
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to SREARRKNZRESHE - [
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new fRREEEER  BITHBHOIEE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. B ERIEET
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. NEBENBEHRERER - ZIt
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. EIREHFERUNAERTE - &
Net debt is calculated as bank and other borrowings less BERBERBITREMEERERE &R
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as REFBYHE - RERIRGEEH
‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of financial BRI [#5] S NERFER
position plus net debt. The gearing ratios at 31 December HE -RZIZ—tEFR-FT—X
2017 and 2016 were as follows: TZA=T—RAZBELENT :
2017 ! 2016
ZE—+tF! ZT—KF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FAT
Bank and other borrowings (Note 32) RITREMEE (FE32) 1,984,579 ! 425,859
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 29) i : ¥4 RIE £ ZEY) (M5 29) (4,338,022)'  (6,774,501)
Net cash REeFE (2,353,443),  (6,348,642)
Total equity B 16,156,748 ! 9,101,141
Total capital BWET 13,803,305 ' 2,752,499
Gearing ratio BELxE NATEFE ' NATEA

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group attained net
cash position. Therefore, there was no gearing ratio.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and
liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 by
level of inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

See Note 15 for disclosures of the investment properties that
are measured at fair value.

3
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are at fair value at 31 December 2017 and

3 MERBREEGR)
3.3 AFEEME (&)
TREJREER - F—LFR-

=

T-AE+-A=+—BRATE

2016. B2 BEERARE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total :
F— F=H E=4 At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 |
FET FET FETT FETT |
At 31 December 2017 B-Z—tF |
+=-RA=+—H :
1
]
Financial assets at fair value AT EER AER |
through profit or loss LB ARE :
— Equity investment — RIS E 319,015 - - 319,015 !
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H E-H E=H #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET FH&TT
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=-—A=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEER ABR
through profit or loss LB EE
— Equity investment — RERE 462,070 - - 462,070
— Unlisted investment fund ~ — JEETIREES - 397,025 - 397,025
Available-for-sale financial asset ] it H & 81 75 & &= - - 117,000 117,000
462,070 397,025 117,000 976,095
There were no transfers among Level 1, 2 and 3 during the FA-BEREFE—H - FoRHESE
year. =R EEE -
(a) Financial instruments in level 1 (a) FE—#HRBHFEILA

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quote market prices at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, price services or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length

basis.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated
as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves.

° The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward exchange
rates at the date of consolidated statement of
financial position, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

Note that all the resulting fair value estimates are
included in level 2 except for certain forward foreign
exchange contracts as explained below.

For the estimation of the fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, please see Note 28
for details.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments in level 3

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December

R RMREE (R)
33 AFEEME )
() F=MUBIA

TRENEHEZE-_ZT—tF+=
A=+—RLFEF=AMB

2017: TAZE%:
Available-for- |
sale financial |
assets |
AHRHE
BIBEE
HK$°000 '
FET
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and B-Z—RFE—HF—H  ZF—RF |
1 January 2017 +ZA=+—HRZZE—tF |
—A—H 117,000 '
Addition NE 858,000 |
Change in fair value recognised in other REAM 2 WS ERZ :
comprehensive income N EEEE 89,632 !
Distribution DK (1,064,632)!
|
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-_HA=+—H -
:
Total gain for the year included in profit or loss FtEEKR I EET AR FE |
for asset held at the end of year Wessaza -
Changes in unrealised gains for the year SPAFRIER CFEAREIR |
included in profit or loss at the end of Wz 2 E) |
the year -
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

(b)

(@)

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (INCLUDING
GAMING RECEIVABLES)

The Group determines the provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of trade and other
receivables and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness, past collection history and the subsequent
settlement from each customer.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible
assets has suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 17).

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group tests annually whether impairment indicators
exist. Both internal and external sources of information,
including likelihood of relocating the gaming license,
number of visitors, average total room rate and occupancy
rate, construction costs and staff costs, are considered to
assess whether there is such indicators. Where impairment
indicators exist, the recoverable amounts would be
estimated.
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Segment information

The executive directors of the Company are considered to be the
Group’s Chief Operating Decision-Maker ("CODM").
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to make strategic
decisions. The CODM considers the Group is operating
predominantly in three operating segments as follows:

(@) Integrated Resort Development;
(b)  Gaming Business; and
(c)  Property Development.

The CODM monitors the results of the operating segments
separately for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing
performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of adjusted profit
or loss before income tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit or loss before
income tax except that finance income, finance costs, changes in
fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
changes in fair values of investment properties, gain/(loss) on
disposals of subsidiaries as well as head office and corporate
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, income tax recoverable,
investment properties in Hong Kong, amount due from a joint
venture, available-for-sale financial asset, deferred income tax
assets and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings, amount
due to a non-controlling interest and a shareholder, income tax
payable, deferred income tax liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Annual Report 2017 | — & — 4 4 4

141

SBEH

ARRZHPTEETRA/AREZEES
BERRE((EBBERKRE]) - BIEER
TEREEAREMBHRAMELREORE
ZHREBELEDH - TBZERRER
RARETBELE —AREDHOT

@ HAERRER:
(b) BEESH: K
© MEEE-

TRLERREB Y EELEDMEE
AR EER N FHERR - D8RI TIIRA
WE D B EAERE - AFTERABHATK
HEBG - HERAESHAKLHERS
o T3 OREET B AN B R TS B s A =X
BE—B0 HHBWRA - BB - BA
FEEFABRGE M HEE 2 A FEER
B REMEZAVEEEZD  HEHSB
RElZ W, (EE) AR AAE RN R A
RFEAXAITEEER -

DHEETERRELRNEFEY O
FEEFABRSZVBEE  ATREME
W BEZREME BR-—RELEDLE
I AHHEEMBEE BTEMERE
EAREMRD AT EAREE KRR
REEFEENEEEEMER

DHBETERRITIEMES - B
2R KR — B RRHOR - BNAEH
BEEFMGRAENAREMRD AT LA
AAE REASZERENZEEERE
# -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A5G B AR B
- - - -
5 Segment information (Continued) 5 SEHEHE(E)
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 BE-_ZE—+tHF+=-A=+—H
FEE
Integrated :
Resort Gaming Property 1
Development Business  Development Total |
F o !
EBREZRE BEEH VIES #it
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 !
FE7x FE7 FiEx FET !
Segment revenue: SBER |
Sales to external customers FINPEPIHE 69,681 235,801 590,768 896,250 !
Segment results SWER (566,213) (117,015) 295,384 (387,844) !
Reconciliation: R E
Finance income and unallocated income BB ARRD B 31,433 |
Corporate and other unallocated expenses, net RAREMKRAERELFE (323,696) !
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair RATEEF A ER HBEREL !
value through profit or loss AYEEEE) 172,914 |
Changes in fair values of investment properties RENE ATEEED 27,100 !
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMBRR 2 M 39,885 |
Reversal of impairment of other receivables ﬁfﬂ@lﬂl JE R ERE 210,788 !
Share of result of an associate AE-RBE AR EE (122) !
Returns on available-for-sale financial asset ARNENKEE 2 @R 89,632 |
Loss before income tax from continuing operations B R E R TR (139,910) !
Segment assets PMEE 9,788,326 2,061,988 1,528,342 13,378,656 |
Reconciliation: Wi |
Amount due from an associate W —RE 2 ARHE 16,708 |
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRATFEEF A BR HBEE 319,015 !
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLEZEN 4,338,022
Investment properties REME 62,900 |
Income tax recoverable AR EATEH 2,839 |
Other unallocated assets HihRpEEE 1,110,786 |
Total assets BEEE 19,228,926 !
Segment liabilities SHMAR 815,899 109,328 39,217 964,444 !
Reconciliation: B - '
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEE 1,984,579
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMSHAR 36,204 |
Income tax payable AR 3,634 |
Other unallocated liabilities HihxpEEE 83,317 |
Total liabiltes & 3072178 1
Other segment information: Hihp#bEs .
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 74,624 36,104 - 110,728 !
Impairment of trade and other receivables, net BE 5708 R E M YR !
REFE - 1,747 - 1,747 |
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5 Segment information (Continued) 5 SEHEHE(E)
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BE-_ZFE—R"F+=-A=+—H
IHFE
Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
(Restated) (Restated)
28 B ,
EBRERE BRER MEER ot
(E31) (Z31)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL T T FAT
Segment revenue: SEBE
Sales to external customers MNP EEHE - 363,447 - 363,447
Segment results SHER (93,571) 93,637 (404,640) (404,574)
Reconciliation: HR
Finance income and unallocated income BIMA R A EYRA 8,776
Corporate and other unallocated expenses, net NAREMRDERZFE (293,370)
Changes in fair values of finandial assets at fair value BATEEFABREIHBEEL
through profit or loss ATEEED (665,334)
Changes in fair values of investment properties RENE ATEEED (45,956)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries PERBRRZ NS 144
Loss before income tax from continuing operations BERLER I RITEHAIEE (1,400,314)
Segment assets SUREE 2,620,480 1,207,489 2,079,841 5,907,810
Reconciliation: ik -
Amount due from a joint venture e —REEPEFIE 87,116
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEEFABE HBEE 859,095
Available-for-sale financial asset AENETKEE 117,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRLSEN 6,774,501
Investment properties RENE 239,800
Income tax recoverable AREFEH 2,715
Deferred income tax assets BREFAEHEE 11,763
Other unallocated assets HtWRABREE 703,062
Total assets from continuing operations BEREER 7 EERE 14,702,862
Total assets from discontinued operations BRIEEBEAERE 2,642,371
Total assets BERE 17,345,233
Segment liabilities ABAR 375,561 75,134 - 450,695
Reconciliation: ,#f@E :
Amount due to a shareholder ER—ERETE 5,361,193
Amount due to a non-controlling interest JE SRR IR 1,376,959
Bank and other borrowings fEﬂ&HWﬁ“ 230,609
Deferred income tax liabilities ERAMEHAR 181,733
Income tax payable ERFEH 13,440
Other unallocated liabilities HEADEEE 219,205
Total liabilities from continuing operations Bt B EmE 7,833,834
Total liabilities from discontinued operations B& LK BEEE 410,258
Total liabilities BESRE 8,244,092
Other segment information: (AR :
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 8,610 12,808 - 21,418
Impairment of trade and other receivables, net JEUE 5 508 I Efth RE AR IR
REFER - 2,184 - 2,184
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5 Segment information (Continued)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

(a) Revenue from external customers

(b)

5

DEEE ()
h & &
(a) REIBEF Z2 Wz

For the year ended
31 December

EJ?_—‘E‘/':HEI‘/'—ELHF"E

2017 2016
ZE—+F ! ZT—RF
HK$000 ' HK$'000
FET ! FHT
| (Restated)
! (&%)
South Korea [ 896,250 ! 363,447
|
896,250 : 363,447
Discontinued operations B4R ER 1,356,505 ! 1,357,200
|
2,252,755 ! 1,720,647
Non-current assets (b) FREEE
As at 31 December
R+=ZBA=+—H
2017 ! 2016
—E-tF | —ETXKF
HK$°000 ! HK$'000
FET ! T
Continuing operations: REC a7 E
South Korea [ 10,613,561 ! 2,842,212
Hong Kong &5 428,784 ! 631,137
Others Hi 1,637 -
11,043,982 ' 3,473,349
Discontinued operations B IEET - 217,990
11,043,982 E 3,691,339
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5 Segment information (Continued) 5 SEEE(E)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (Continued) HEER (E)
(b) Non-current assets (Continued) (b) FREEE (&)
The non-current assets information above is based on the NEERBEEERTRBEEM
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill, intangible EUE(TRERE  BREAE &
assets, prepayments, trade and other receivables, available- FIE - BIRE 5 5RIE & E A fE UL
for-sale financial asset, deferred income tax assets, I AHEENBEE  BRITEFT
investment in a joint venture and investment in an associate. BUHEE RN—ZRXeLhEIRE
ARAR—REE AR ZIRE) S| -
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EREEEFZ2EH
During the year ended 31 December 2017, one external customer HE_ZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE"
(2016: four (restated)), contributed over 10% of the Group's total —ZINBEL (ZZE—RF : WEZ(FF)))
revenue from continuing operations. The revenue generated from EAEEFELEEB N =BERA
these customers was amounted to HK$336,958,000 (2016: 10% - B & F 8 B 2 336,958,000 8
HK$276,335,000 (restated)). 7T( =& — X% :276,335000/8 L ( &
) e
The Group'’s revenue consists of the following: REBRSBIETHIEE :
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—FA=1+—HIFE
2017: 2016
—E—tF | —T—XF
HK$7000 ' HK$'000
FET ! FAT
| (Restated)
! (EH)
Revenue W |
Gaming revenue IR E 235,801 ! 363,447
Integrated resort development (Note) FeEEREERE () 69,681 ! -
Property development MEERE 590,768 ! -
896,250 ' 363,447
Discontinued operations RESIE 1,356,505 ! 1,357,200
2,252,755 | 1,720,647
Note: Revenue from integrated resort development mainly consists of Wit e EBREERREEZREEBENIEE
hospitality, food and beverage and theme park operated in Jeju Shinhwa HREEZHE  BRRFBAE -
World.
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6 Other income and other gains, net 6 HttkAREMISIBEH
For the year ended
31 December
Eﬁ.—zé‘/':HE‘/'—Eith"/E'
2017 2016
ZE—tF |, —T—RF
HK$7000 ' HK$'000
FHET FET
| (Restated)
: (&%)
Exchange gain/(loss), net PN Wz (E518) F 58 5,446 | (793)
Management fee income (Note 45) EIREWA (M15E45) 2,880 ! 2,400
Dividend income (Note) Hﬁ A (BT 1,663 | 2,265
Loss on step acquisition (Note 21) & ER Wi B 2 1598 (P sk 21) (1,317), -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (Note 40) Hj%ﬁﬁ% alz Yz (ftsE40) 39,885 ! 144
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment i S - B K& &E 2 E1E (112)! (441)
Expenses recharged and rental for aircraft usage b FAREEUE 2 & R R FH S |
(Note 45) (Ff3E45) 27,163 | -
Others Hib 9,704 ! 1,778
85,312 ' 5,353
Note: Dividend income represented dividend shares received from equity MiEE : AR B U AR AR IR & W 2 IR SRR 17 ©
investments.
7 Loss before income tax 7 BRFIEWMANEGIR
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1—HILFE
2017 2016
ZE—tF |, —T—RF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET FAT
| (Restated)
: (&)
The loss before income tax is arrived at MRATIS T AT 1B 2 kR |
after charging: THIEIE - :
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN |
— Audit services — ZHARB 3,300 | 3,500
— Non-audit services — AR 3,604 | 3,037
Minimum lease payments under operating leases +ith MIEF 7 & LSHEE T !
of land and buildings RIEMEFA 35,474 ! 29,059
Promotion expenses HEFX 23,191 | 22,136
Aircraft operating expenses TR 2 F S 34,424 | 33,150
Legal and professional fees EENEEER 104,411 ! 99,278
Sales and marketing expenses PHE LA EM Y 193,816 ! 350,850
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8 Employee benefit expenses (including 8 REEARFIFAXZ(BEEEHM)

directors’ emoluments)

For the year ended
31 December

E@.—‘E‘/‘IEEI‘/'—ELHF"/E

2017 2016

—E—tF! —ZT—RF

HK$°000 | HK$'000

FET FET

| (Restated)

! (&%)

Wages, salaries and other staff costs TE HFeNhEME TKAK 536,539 | 286,746
Retirement benefit costs (Note (a)) BRIRERIAA (B 5 (a)) 32,628 ! 16,943
569,167 ! 303,689

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2017, there were no forfeited contributions available
to offset future retirement benefit obligations of the Group (2016: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year included one director
(2016: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in Note
9. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2016:
three) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

(b)

WZZ2—tF+-A=+—8  BEERK
AR AR B 2 RRRAKBHEE

(ZE—RF:8|) -

RERREHAL

RAFE DIARSFALEE-—RES
(Z2—RF MEESE) BREZMEHE
R HEI RAFE EHMA(ZF
—RFZR)BRSFHER (UFARRE
EHFBETBRAB) ZHESFBENT ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1—HAULFE

2017 ! 2016

—F—t#F ! —EAE

HK$000 ! HK$'000

FBT ! FHT

! (Restated)

! (&%)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREDAE 27,653 E 32,502

Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B 54 | 382
:

27,707 | 32,884
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8 Employee benefit expenses (including 8 RBERMAX(BFBREEHMH)

. - —
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (#&)
Notes: (Continued) fsE : (48)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) FEEZEFALTE)
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose WHEEZERFEEZHFMEEN T
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: TR -
For the year ended 31 December
HE+=A=1—ALFE
2017 2016
—e—tF ]  —TAE
HK$/000 ! HK$'000
FH5 | FH
! (Restated)
! (&731)
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 & 5,000,000 7 7T 2 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T % 5,500,000 7% 7T [ 1
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 12,500,001 78 7C £ 13,000,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 77T £ 13,500,000 7% 7T . -
HK$15,000,001 to HK$ 15,500,000 15,000,001 % 7T, % 15,500,000 % 7T - 1
4, 3
() During the year ended 31 December 2017, no emoluments have been (0 BEZ—+tF+-A=+—HILFE XK
paid by the Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals SETESNELIEEIAEERHFAL
mentioned above as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, FEE - ERRSIHMARER K MAAR
or as compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil). SEGBEZEDABERBEE(ZE—XF:
/) o
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9 Benefits and interests of directors 9 EEJZREZ(FHLTEH
(Disclosures required by section 383 of (5£622% ) £3831F + N F (K
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance REEHREHE) B (F 622G
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of BE)RFEELTHAMEZH

Information about Benefits of Directors) &)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing
Rules)
(@) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S (a) EERFETHAEZME
EMOLUMENTS
The remuneration of every director and chief executive for HEZZT—tFR-ZFT—R"F+=
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are set out A=1t—BLFE SE=RXE
below: TTRABZ#HMEFINT
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_T—tF+-A=+—HL
K
Other |
emoluments :
paid or X
receivable in !
respect of :
director’s other X
services in 1
connection :
with the :
Employer's  management 1
contribution to  of the affairs :
Allowances  a retirement of the Company :
Discretionary  and benefits benefit - or its subsidiary |
Name #E Fees Salary bonuses in kind scheme  undertaking Total :
HEBEE !
oA !
AANELT |
¥HEE X
V£ 324 ZAf !
RYE ENERHE  ERER |
fizka % BEHA ENFE #3 AERALHE @it
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 !
TiET FiET TiEn TiEn TR FiEn FET |
Executive directors: nES: E
Yang Zhihui (“Dr. Yang") e (L)) 10,000 7,481 623 - 2,595 - 20,699
Zhou Xueyun (“Ms. Zhou”) BAEZ (A%t 2,000 - 500 - - - 2,500 !
,,,,,, oo s - s - B!
Independent non-executive BUFRTES !
directors: :
Fok Ho Yin, Thomas (“Mr. Fok”)  Z4% ([B%4)) 360 - - - - - 360 !
Chen Lei’ ("Mr. Chen") Z([WEE) 176 - - - - - 176 |
Bao Jingiao (“Mr. Bao") HEF([REE]) 480 - - - - - 480 !
Wong Chun Hung® (“Mr. Wong”) &1 (&%) 95 - - - - - 95 !
1,111 - - - - - 1 71771 ) E
13,111 7,481 1,123 - 2,595 - 24,310 E
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9 Benefits and interests of directors
(Disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing
Rules) (Continued)

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

9 EENRREZ(FELFIEH
(5$622 %) 553831& 25 (%
BEFHREH)AL(%F 622G
;))(%?%J:?EMH'JHEZH

(a) EERFETHRAEZHE

(&)

BE-_F-R"F+-A=+—HL
FE

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director's other

services in

connection

with the

Employer's management
contribution to of the affairs

Allowances aretirement  of the Company
Discretionary and benefits benefit  or its subsidiary
Name #4 Fees Salary bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
HEEER
YN
HEMBAR
$%%E
Bz ZEAM
EER RINERNEE RBER
e #e Wi EMilE H FEREMHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T FHT FAT FAL TiEx TR
Executive directors: WTES:
Yang Zhihui (“Dr. Yang") neEs(wHEt) 10,000 9,693 - - 863 - 20,556
Zhou Xueyun (“Ms. Zhou") AE=((A%L]) 2,000 - - - - - 2,000
XuNing' ("Ms. Xu") wr (&) 928 - - - - - 928
Ng Kwok Fai' (“Mr. Ng") SER ([REE]) 2,783 17,640 - - - - 20,423
15,711 27,333 - - 863 - 43,907
Independent non-executive BUFNITES:
directors:
Fok Ho Yin, Thomas (“Mr. Fok”)  EAA ([B%%E]) 360 - - - - - 360
Chen Lei* ("Mr. Chen") Z2([MEE)) 360 - - - - - 360
Bao Jingiao ("Mr. Bao") e ([HEE]) 480 - - - - - 480
1,200 - - - - - 1,200
16,911 27,333 - - 863 - 45,107
' Resigned on 17 June 2016 R E—AEAN A+ BRE

2: Retired on 26 June 2017
3. Appointed on 26 September 2017

2R TE—EFRASTRARE
DRIBE—LFNA T RBEEERE
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9 Benefits and interests of directors 9
(Disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing
Rules) (Continued)

() DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EFENRRER(FELTIEL
(5$622 %) 553831& 25 (%
BEFHREH)AL(%F 622G
;))(%?%J:?EME'JHEZH

(a) EERFETHRAEZHE

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)
2017 2016
ZE—tF |, ZT—RF
HK$’000 | HK$'000
FET | FET
Aggregate emoluments paid to or BEEREETES(THRA |
receivable by directors in respect of PN NN EYNCIES ) |
their services as directors, whether BT . &85 :
of the company or its subsidiary E
undertaking 13,611 ! 16,911
Aggregate emoluments paid to or EEREETEAQTHE :
receivable by directors in respect of MEAREBEE 2 HAb :
their other services in connection with RSB sk W~ Bl & 4258 |
the management of the affairs of the E
Company or its subsidiary undertaking 10,699 ! 28,196
24,310 ! 45,107

(b) DIRECTORS' RETIREMENT BENEFITS

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

(c) DIRECTORS' TERMINATION BENEFITS

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2016: Nil).
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9 Benefits and interests of directors
(Disclosures required by section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing
Rules) (Continued)

(d) CONSIDERATION PROVIDED TO THIRD

(e)

()

PARTIES FOR MAKING AVAILABLE
DIRECTORS’ SERVICES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2016: Nil).

INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI-
LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN
FAVOUR OF DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED
BODIES CORPORATE BY AND
CONNECTED ENTITIES WITH SUCH
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no loans,
guasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors, or controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2016: Nil).

DIRECTORS’" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2016:
Nil).

9

EFHaRER(FEAFGH
(5$622 %) 553831& 25 (%
BEFHREH)AL(%F 622G
;))(%?%J:HEHH'JHEZH

(d) RMEHEESRBRAE=TR

(e)

(f)

HzRE

BE_T—tFt+-A=t—HL
FE ARABERFLESTRS
AEME=ZTXNRE(ZF—X
FE) e

BRUES  ZEGZEAH
BLZEZEEZHREERER
ERAZER EERRHE
X5 2ER

HE-F-—tF+-A=+—AL
TEOBMEMAES 224z
NEBERSER BEERAT
BAZER  EERREBZDR
PH=F—AE )

EERXZ  ZHERESHF
ZERER

ARBMEREEBILARER
HpFTH A RARREEFERNME
BERAEEABDEMNFRAFARE
ABENAFEZERRS B
REH(ZF—NRF : §) -
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10 Finance income, net 10 MBBABER
For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HIFE
2017 2016
—E—tF, —TRF
HKS000 | HKS'000
| (Restated)
! (&%)
Interest expenses: FBEMAX !
— Bank borrowings — RITIEE (21,576), -
— Other borrowings — HEE (34,908) (62,992)
— Amount due to a non-controlling interest — FE IR R 2R IR -! (66,435)
— Imputed interest on loan from a shareholder — —ZBREEH Z HEF) 5 (175,441), (18,551)
(231,925): (147,978)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets i : @ BB EEEMML &5 231,925 ! 147,978
Finance costs 5 95 %:N - -
Interest income: MEBWA : |
— Bank interest income — RITH BHA 2,539 ! 17,179
— Other interest income — HA R 2UWA 1,050 ! 31,621
Finance income 83 PN . 3589, 48,800
Finance income, net B WA R 3,589 ! 48,800
Weighted average interest rate on BERMEE 2 N F IR :
capitalised borrowings (per annum) 8% ! 10%
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11 FriS#RBAX

11 Income tax expenses

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: same). Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for
the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

South Korea corporate tax has been provided at the rates of 11%
on the first KRW200 million of the tax base, 22% up to KRW20
billion and 24.2% for amounts over KRW20 billion on the
estimated assessable profits of the Group’s operations in South
Korea (2016: same).

BE-T—tF+-A=+—BLEE
e 0 2 4 B3 A0 2 M AR B i
B LIRS E RIS B B (=2
—X4F ¢ ABR) o AN R 2 BB Ty AR
S5 8] 3 7540 24 A 0 5 9F PO AR
2 RITHEEE -

EASEEEEBEL 2 B ERTR
FID AR E11% (FER G 2EEE) -
22% (5% A 200188 B) }24.2% (BB
200 BBE 2R HRm B EREE
(ZZ—R5F : 4[) »

For the year ended
31 December

%5§+:HEI+—ELHF/§

2017 : 2016
—E—tF ! ZT—KF
HK$’000 : HK$'000
FET | T
| (Restated)
! (&%)
Current tax: BERIE - :
South Korea Corporate Tax R 1,061 ! 6,772
1
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BAFERETR(BEEE) !
South Korea Corporate Tax BRI R 11,389 ! (182)
|
12,450 ' 6,590
Deferred tax (Note 35) PEAEFIE (B 5E35) 3,328 -
|
Income tax expenses FriSfif X2 15,778 ! 6,590

During the year, the Korea National Tax Service (the “NTS")
initiated a tax audit on the income tax affairs of a Korea subsidiary
for the years 2014 and 2015. NTS decided that several
transactions and expenses which were previously considered as
non-taxable and deductible were taxable and non-deductible in
nature respectively. Accordingly, the Group recorded an under
provision of income tax amounting HK$11,389,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and such amount has been fully paid
during the year. The Group considered that there is no other
under provision on income tax expenses.

FR OB Tt BB (Korea National Tax
Service) (| IREE ) B AR =T
—EN - ZE-REFEZAEHEEE
IR EZ - BB LG B IE
ERERANMBZETXSEAZZHE
DR B R LA IR - Fitt - ANEE
REE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE
BRISFT IS B T B & 2011,389,000%8
T BRSHEERERBEE T - AEE
REBEHAT T EEBEETE -
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11 Income tax expenses (Continued) 11 FRSMBAX(1])
The tax on the Group'’s loss before income tax differs from the REERAEHRAIBE HERRARS
theoretical amount that would arise using weighted average tax ERRMER e AR EAEMEE
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows: MERELERNT
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+—HIFE
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
HK$000 ' HK$'000
FET FAT
| (Restated)
: (E7)
Loss before income tax FREFSTRTEE (139,910),  (1,467,777)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates BAEBBRZ & i@ EH |
applicable to profits in the EEZHIE :
respective countries (39,758), (269,243)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR IR 15,600 | 119,446
Income not subject to tax BARBIA (88,342), (15,166)
Tax losses for which no deferred income WEEREEMBHEE Y :
tax asset was recognised HIEEE 116,889 | 171,735
Under/(over) provision in prior years BAFERETR(BEEE) 11,389 ! (182)
Income tax expenses FriSHif X2 15,778 ! 6,590
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 28.4% (2016: IEFEBMER28.4%(ZF—RF :
18.3% (restated)). The increase was caused by the change in the 18.3% (&) - EIEITI A AREER
profitability mix of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective BRBER 2 WB AR 2 BFAEEZEME -
countries.
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12 (Loss)/earnings per share 12 BE(GR) 2
The comparative of weighted average number of ordinary shares BETTBRRMETFIH 2 ERBETE T
in issue has been restated because of the rights issue which was z2Y - REAAEKRER T —LFMUA
completed on 26 April 2017. ey A= A
(a) BASIC (@) EZX
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the BREARRF,(FE) HIRARF
profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by the HA ARG (BE)BRIAER
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during BT EBRMETLSEEE -
the year.
For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-FA=1+—HIFE
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF |, —ZT—KF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FETT | FAT
| (Restated)
! (&)
From continuing operations SECEER (155,688)!  (1,152,379)
From discontinued operations EARIEER 660,755 ! 84,924
Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners RREHEB AEL T, (&E) |
of the Company 505,067 !  (1,067,455)
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12 (Loss)/earnings per share (Continued)

(a)

(b)

BASIC (Continued)

12

w5k (BR) &2F ()

(a) E& ()

2017 : 2016
—E—tF —TRF
No. of shares ! No. of shares
RUEEE | Pin 2k B
‘000 ' '000
T TR
| (Restated)
: (E51)
Weighted average number of BT E BRI 8 E
ordinary shares in issue 99,666,064 | 22,251,607

Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing and discontinued
operations attributable to owners of the Company:

Basic and diluted: EAREE
From continuing operations SECEETS
From discontinued operations BRIEER

From continuing and discontinued 354484 & 2 4% | F 7%
operations

DILUTED

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 were the same as the basic
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no potential dilutive
ordinary shares outstanding during the respective year.

13 Dividends

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

ARBEEARERFELERER
E¥EB 2 SRERN, (BE)

HK(5.18) cents 1l
HK0.38 cents &1l

HK(0.16) cents 4L
HKO0.67 cents AL

HKO.51 centsj&fl ' HK(4.80) cents &Il

13

(b) #8

RN FRESRERITHEIINZE
BEERR RBEE_T—tFR
TE-RFETA=T—BLFE
ZEREERN,(BE) BERE
AEM, (B R -

R
EFTRERBE-_T—LF+ -5

=+-BIEEERS KBRS (ZF K
T )
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A B B A M

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 Y% -BERER

Freehold Furniture, Plant, Gaming
land fixtures, machinery  equipment Structure
outside Leasehold  and office Motor and and  andother  Construction
Hong Kong Buildings  improvements  equipment vehicles Aircraft - equipment  accessories facilities  in progress Total
AU HENE A %ER 85 B8  BRARR BEIR
KAEELY #7 26 FLZRE g bii | Rk Bt AttaE  #RIE it
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$:000
721 FEr 3 23 3 i3 i3 i3 &1 &1 FEr
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-RETZAZt-ALEE
At 1 January 2016 i
Cost 420,188 101,451 31,159 30520 34232 426531 100,156 25129 38349 647,333 1,855,048
Accumulated depreciation e - (18,980) (3.844) (825 (9954) (33,767) (86972) (1,164) (2,645) - (165,578)
Net book amount FESE 420,188 8241 21315 2,268 2218 392,764 13184 23,965 35,704 647333 1,689,470
Year ended 31 December 2016 E
Opening net book amount 420,188 8241 21315 22,068 2278 392,764 13184 23,965 35,704 647,333 1689470
Addtions e 11,165 156 2,346 13619 12,051 - 10540 7,664 3% 1,373,900 1431,1%
Acquistion of a subsidary WE-FHERT - - 10379 19117 684 - - 8871 - 39377 171839
Disposals -4 - - (10434) (128) (1,020 - - (18) - - (12,200)
Depreciation it 3 - (1799) (12,79%) (20274 (8274) 21327) (2,074) (8.965) (4,047) - (85,555)
Transfer ax 235,884 168,440 - 42,056 - - - - 22,708 (469,088) -
Transfer from properties under development HEERRINE 374481 - - - - - - - - - 374481
Currengy translation difference EHEREE (35572) (15,090 (14812) (5.234) (760) - (100) (2103 (1,630) (56,859) (132,160)
Closing net book amount 1,006,146 28179 95,409 70824 26959 a7 21,550 9414 53,09 1,534,663 3437,6M
At31 December 2016 RZE-E+ZBZt-B
Cost A 1,006,146 257,265 106,244 95,355 409 426531 100434 37483 59,532 1,534,663 3,667,882
Accumulated depreciation and impairent ZHTERAE - (29,086) (10833) (24531) (17.270) (55,094) (78.884) (8069) (6442 - 230211)
Net hook amount EESE 1,006,146 28119 95,409 70824 26959 N4 21550 29414 53,090 1,534,663 3837671
Year ended 31 December 2017 BECZ-tE+2AZT-R |
L58 |
Opening net book amount BEEEE 1,006,146 28179 95,409 7084 26,959 3437 21,550 29414 53,09 1,534,663 343761 |
Addtions e 48,281 - - 808923 39315 - 10,862 766 12 4494223 5,402,488 |
Acquisiion of subsidiaries WEHBAR - - 8 13 2237 - - - - - 23,
Disposals o subsicaries (Note 40) HEMBAR () - (43430) (53775) (18.949) - - (2273) (9183) - ®06)  psa107) |
Disposals 4 - - - (665) - - (1253) (12) (51) - (7980 |
Depreciation it - (35,760) (46,188) (50,295) (11,49) (21,326) (3,104) (9415) (18,561) - (196,139,
Revaluation of properties, plant and equipment ~ REBERENEREENE 1
upon transfer to investment properties BEREE - - - - - - - - - 114,951 114351 |
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE - - - - - - - - - (730,930) (120930 |
Transfer ax - 3,341,495 - - - - - - 818460 (4,159,955) -
Transfer from properties under development EREYRMZ 795 1456212 - - - - - - 11,54 B2 1604363 |
Currengy translation difference SHESZE 142,082 326,220 6312 54727 3869 - 677 3,084 56,612 229,868 341
Closing net book amount BREERE 1,234,410 5267916 1842 864,578 60890 350,111 - 14,652 921,186 1482486 10,198,071 :
31 Dt 2017 HT-LEFzATH-A :
Cost e 1234410 5318526 6,347 916,721 89443 426531 - 20591 948218 1480486 10443273 |
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHERRE - (50,610) (4,505) (52,143) (28553) (76,420) - (5,939) (27,032) - (245,200) |
Net book amount FH5E 1234410 5267916 1842 864,578 60,890 350,111 - 14652 921,186 1482486 10,198,071 :

Landing International Development Limited | & & 5 & % E G R A 7

158



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ey

14

15

o B A M i

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, certain property, plant and equipment
with a net carrying amount of HK$1,392,395,000 (2016:
HK$435,436,000) were pledged to banks and other financial
institutions to secure general banking facilities and other facilities
granted to the Group (Note 32).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, property, plant and
equipment with cost of HK$4,651,411,000, HK$636,165,000 and
HK$34,796,000 were added to Integrated Resort Business,
Gaming Business and corporate asset which are related to Jeju
Shinhwa World. Property, plant and equipment with net carrying
amount of HK$9,658,683,000 were related to the Jeju Shinhwa
World as at 31 December 2017.

14 W% - BEREBMm (&)

RIE—+HF+A=+—0  REFE
#1,392,395,000% jL( = & — X F:
435,436,000/ 7T) 2 & THE - BE K&
HBERTEEREE 2 —RIBITREE R EAD
B (M 5E32) IR T 4R 17 Jo B i B 5
% o

HE-_E—+F+-_A=+—RHIFE -
K A 5 Bl A4,651,411,000% T -
636,165,000 7 7T % 34,796,0007% 7T 2 ¥
¥ BEERBFAAGEEBREEBLD
B RO R EE N SET REE A
ABE -N_ZE—+F+_A=+—8"
BN B RE T AR 2 W 2 - B KRG
2 BRE®{E /5 9,658,683,000 /8 7T ©

Investment properties 15 BEME
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF —ZT—REF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FHT T
At the beginning of the year REA] 239,800 ! 55,000
Additions NE 6,000 ! 230,756
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEREME  BE R |
(Note 14) (FiaE14) 730,930 ! -
Transfer from properties under development EREERTYE |
(Note 25) (FfaE25) 36,180 | -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RME AT (210,000), -
Changes in fair value of investment properties & &% 7 AP EE# 40,305 ! (45,956)
Currency translation difference HHIE R =5 2,696 ' -
At the end of the year RFL 845,911 ! 239,800

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2016:
Nil).

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment properties were
performed by the valuers to determine the fair values of the
investment properties , Roma Appraisals Limited for the properties
in Hong Kong as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 and Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited for the properties in
South Korea as at 31 December 2017. The change in fair value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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A B B A M

15 #BEMER (&)
TREBAEERAYE L AT EENE

15 Investment properties (Continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group'’s investment properties: £8 -
Fair value measurement as at X
31 December 2017 using |
KoF—tF+-F=1—BEAUT 5
SE2 A TEEHE |
Quoted Significant Significant X
prices in Observable  Unobservable |
active markets Inputs Inputs E
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total!
EATEE EBEATTHER :
BT SHE BAZE BAZE :
(E—#) (E=#) (Z=4) w3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 |
FET FET FET FET,
Recurring fair value measurement for: A F&RIBZ L& :
ATEEE :
Investment properties: REWME :
— Residential properties in — BAEEDE - - 62,900 62,900
Hong Kong |
— Commercial properties in ol A SEYES - - 783,011 783,011
South Korea !
1
Total investment properties REYEES - - 845,911 845,911
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2016 using
RZE—AF+ZA=+—HERUT
&HEz N TEEGE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in Observable  Unobservable
active markets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAAHE EATAHEER
ERTISRE AR AR
(B—H) (/) (F=H) wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET ThEx TET
Recurring fair value measurement for: A T &IBZ &1
RYEETE:
Investment properties: REME -
— Residential properties in — BEEEDE - - 239,800 239,800
Hong Kong
Total investment properties LB E BT - - 239,800 239,800
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15 Investment properties (Continued) 15 BEME(\E)

VALUATION PROCESSES OF THE GROUP

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 December
2017 and 2016 by independent third party qualified valuers who
hold a recognised relevant professional qualification and have
relevant experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. For all investment properties, their
current use equates to the highest and best use.

The Finance Department reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held with valuers at least
once every six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting dates. The fair values have been determined by Roma
Appraisals Limited for the properties in Hong Kong as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 and Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited for the properties in South Korea as at 31
December 2017.

At each financial year end, the Finance Department:

o Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
reports;

o Assess property valuations movements when compared to
the prior year valuation report;

° Holds discussions with the independent valuers.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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15 Investment properties (Continued) 15

VALUATION PROCESSES OF THE GROUP
(Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

As at 31 December 2017

REME (&)
ARE 2 HERE ()
TR IR B Y S B R TR 2 B
EREBHARE

A =8—t¥+=A=+-H

Range of :
Valuation unobservable inputs |
techniques Unobservable inputs (weighted average) !
TUBE
BAREEHE |
118 )% T BB AB5 (EFHE) |
Residential properties Direct comparison Adjusted market yield 27,300 E
— Hong Kong (HK$/square feet) !
FEYF* —BE BEREY EHE TS (B FHR) !
Commercial properties Discounted cash flow — Market Unit Rental (KRW/square feet) 1,060 to 14,957 !
— South Korea analysis — B EE (EE FHR) 1,060 F 14,957 !
BEYF —BE RERTREDH — Discount rate 7.25% !
— B
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+HA=1+—H
Range of

Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs

unobservable inputs
(weighted average)

TABE

BABERE

B % TR BERARE (hiHEF98)

Residential properties Direct comparison Adjusted market yield 26,000 to 33,900
— Hong Kong (HK$/square feet)

EEME — BB BRIEBE gAEmSkEa (B, FAR) 26,000 % 33,900

VALUATION TECHNIQUE

Fair values of residential properties in Hong Kong are generally
derived using direct comparison method. The fair value is
estimated using assumption regarding the market value of the
similar properties of the investment properties. A significant
increase/decrease in the estimated market value in isolation would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair values of
residential properties in Hong Kong.

Fair value of commercial properties in South Korea are generally
derived using the discounted cash flow analysis. The net present
value of the income stream is estimated by applying an
appropriate discount rate which reflects the risk profile.

HERE

BEEEMEZIAFEE-RAEERLR
AETE - AFBENVERRERRENEZ
BLmEREZRRMEL G - AErH
B2 BRI AEEM L EEHEEEE
Wz N EEKREEM HD

HRBERNEZIATFEE-RAUAEDR
BAMERE - WMARZFREEAERR
BRER IR R 2l E TR R ML A o
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A B B A AT
16 Prepaid land lease payments 16 FAfTXBERERR
2017 2016
—E—+tF ! ZT—RF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET | FET
At the beginning of the year REA]) 14,234 | 14,942
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 40) HE—RM B AR (FFE40) (14,173), -
Amortisation 2 (157)! (358)
Currency translation difference BsE S ERE 9 ! (350)
At the end of the year RE# - 14,234
Less: Current portion R BVERER S - (366)
Non-current portion FERNERER - 13,868
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s prepaid land lease RZEB—RE+ZA=+—H xEEE
payments with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$14,234,000 F#AE 5 14,234,000 L 2 B L&
were pledged to a bank to secure general banking facilities FECRERAEEER 2 —RIR1THE
granted to the Group (Note 32). (MF3E32) A FIRT -
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17 Goodwill 17 @8
HK$000 '
FET !
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RE—HA—H :
Cost [D#%N 208,830 |
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (203,392)"
Net book amount BREFE 5438 |
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_Z—REF+A=1T—HIFE :
Opening net book amount AR BR A 5,438 |
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) WiE — KM B~ a] (FiFE38) 488,778 |
Currency translation difference EsE S ERE (75,171)!
Closing net book amount B BREFE 419,045 !
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+=-A=1+—H !
Cost &N 610,448 |
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (191,403)!
Net book amount REDFE 419,045 !
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+A=-+—HLFE :
Opening net book amount )RR A 419,045 |
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 40) HEME A E (M 40) (445,229)!
Currency translation difference EHEH = 31,982 !
Closing net book amount B4R BRTE A 5798 |
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-_A=+—H |
Cost AR 5,798 !
Accumulated impairment 2ERE -
Net book amount REFE 5798 |

Landing International Development Limited | & & 5 & % E G R A 7
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17 Goodwill (Continued)

17

IMPAIRMENT TESTS OF GOODWILL

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs as follows:

8 (&)
R R E R
BESREFEB BEEEFRUMT

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$°000 | HK$'000

FHT ! FHT
Lighting business (“Lighting CGU”) in AT BIR 2 FRAA % 75 :
((RARSEEEM]) :

—PRC — _ _
Gaming Business (“Gaming CGUs") in RATBR 2 IERER :
(BB eEEEM]) :

— London, the UK — R mE - 413,954

— Jeju, South Korea — FE M 5,798 | 5,091

5798 ! 419,045

LIGHTING CGU

As at 31 December 2016, the balances of goodwill and intangible
asset in relation to the Lighting CGU were fully impaired.

On May 2017, the Company has disposed the entire issued share
capital of Ace Winner Holdings Limited (“Ace Winner”) of
Lighting CGU in the PRC (Note 40).

GAMING CGUs

The recoverable amounts of the Gaming CGUs were determined
based on value-in-use calculations performed by an independent
valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited. Key assumptions used for value-in-
use calculations:

RARSELEN

RZZ—RE+T-A=+—8 HRHAR
CELBUERZAERRETLEERZHD
ZHERE °

RZZE—+FHA ARBEHEFER
B9 3 & & 4 ¥ fIAce Winner Holdings
Limited ([ Ace Winner]) & 32 #17AR A
(PFif7E40) -

BERTELEN

BB EE B 2 TN E S E RS
ST (T e R B 3R IR 2 R A 7T
PEEEmERE - S EEREETAE
SR

Year ended 31 December

ﬁ%+:ﬁ£j—5¢¢§

2017 2016
Gaming CGU in Jeju, South Korea MR EMNER IR EEEM ZE—+tF! ZERF
Growth rate of revenue Wi R & 13% ! 13%
Pre-tax discount rate MR Fi BT IR X 20.0% | 19.2%
Terminal growth rate REIEREK 3% ! 3%

Management considered the value-in-use calculation of the
Gaming CGU based on the current condition and location (Hyatt
Regency Hotel in South Korea) as at 31 December 2017, as the
Relocation (Note 1) is not yet committed as at year end.
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17 Goodwill (Continued) 17 HE(48)

GAMING CGUs (Continued)

BEXREELEN (&)

Year ended

31 December

HZE

+=ZA=+—8

IEEE

2016

Gaming CGU in London, the UK ERmAELReEEEN S ANCS
Growth rate of revenue Wi R R 4.7%
Pre-tax discount rate BRI RTITIR & 20.9%
Terminal growth rate R RR 3%

Management determined the average annual growth rate of
revenue based on past performance and its expectations of
market development. The discount rates used reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant segments.

The recoverable amount of Gaming CGU in Jeju, South Korea
calculated based on value in use exceeded the carrying value. The
increase in discount rate of Gaming CGU in Jeju, South Korea by
1 percentage point (2016: 1 percentage point) would not remove

the remaining headroom. Fler =58 o

On 11 October 2017, the Company has disposed the entire issued
share capital of Jolly Champion Holding Limited (“Jolly
Champion”) of Gaming CGU in London, the UK (Note 40).

£40) -
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bl = & A
18 Intangible assets 18 |iLKRE
Gaming
Patents  Trademarks licenses Total
=7 BE EFER A5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
(Note)
(Htst)
At 1 January 2016 AZE—-RE—A—H
Cost [B#:N 41,801 41,801 784,820 868,422
Accumulated amortisation and 2t KR E

impairment (41,801) (41,801) - (83,602)
Net book amount RHEHE - - 784,820 784,820
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE_E—XF+_H

=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount HAYBR T FE - - 784,820 784,820
Acquisition of a subsidiary WS —R I B A 7] (FiT3E 38)

(Note 38) - - 1,145,736 1,145,736
Currency translation difference EHETE =R - - (196,115) (196,115)
Closing net book amount H#IRESE - - 1,734,441 1,734,441
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"FE+-A=1+—H
Cost [B#:N 39,101 39,101 1,734,441 1,812,643
Accumulated amortisation and 23t KOR{E

impairment (39,101) (39,101) - (78,202)
Net book amount REFE - - 1,734,441 1,734,441
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_Z—t%$+=H !

=t+—HLFE !
Opening net book amount MY SHE - - 1,734,441 1,734,441
Addition NE - 1,831 - 1,831 !
Amortisation i - (16) - (16) !
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 40) 1 & ¥ B2 7] (Miz£40) - - (1,043,453)  (1,043,453)!
Currency translation difference  &#5E i =58 - 112 179,583 179,695 !
Closing net book amount RI¥EEPE - 1,927 870,571 872,498 !
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-A=1+—H E
Cost DN - 1,944 870,571 872,515
Accumulated amortisation and 2t KR E |

impairment - (17) - (17)
Net book amount BEEE - 1,927 870,571 872,498 !

Note: Gaming licenses have indefinite useful lives are subjected to annual
impairment review. The recoverable amounts of the Gaming CGUs were
determined based on value-in-use calculations as disclosed in Note 17.
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19 Financial instruments by category 19 RENBSCMBIR

2017 ! 2016
:ﬁ—ti: —E—RF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET FET
Assets as per consolidated statement of ERSMBRARZEE :
financial position |
Loans and receivables: BEREERRIE - :
Trade and other receivables excluding FEUS B 5 3038 I E A FE U GRIE |
non-financial assets (TEREIMBEE) 563,814 | 1,372,541
Amount due from a joint venture JE—KEEENIE - 87,116
Amount due from an associate JEW — KBk 8 A R FRIE 16,708 | -
Cash and cash equivalents HEMEEEED 4,338,022 ! 6,774,501
|
]
4,918,544 | 8,234,158
|
]
Available-for-sale: AHHE - :
Available-for-sale financial asset AEHEMSEE - 117,000
1
]
Fair value through profit or loss: BOAFRERMARR - :
Listed equity investments at market value RMEE 2 LMRERE 319,015 ! 462,070
Unlisted investment fund FELETRERES - 397,025
1
319,015 ! 859,095
2017 2016
ZE—+t4F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of TEHFAMBRARZAER
financial position
Trade and other payables excluding T 5 kI8 I Eo A J& < 5k 1A
non-financial liabilities (NBEFMBEE) 866,363 584,043
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,984,579 425,859
Amount due to a shareholder JE — B IRERFRIA - 5,361,193
Amount due to a non-controlling interest JE 1< FEI3 IR 25 IR - 1,376,959
2,850,942 7,748,054
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Available-for-sale financial asset

20 AHHEMBRE

2017 2016
—E—+F! A
HK$°000 : HK$'000
i FHT
At 31 December nt+t—_B=1+—H - 117,000

Available-for-sale financial asset is denominated in US$.

The available-for-sale financial asset represented the investment in
the TAR Private Equity Fund (the “Fund”) by the Group as a
limited partner. The Fund operates in or derives significant
business opportunities from the financial services, natural
resources and/or property investments sectors through investments
identified by TAR Investments (Cayman) Limited, the general
partner of the Fund, as set out in the Exempted Limited
Partnership Agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
contributed US$110,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$858,000,000) (2016: US$15,000,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$117,000,000) to the Fund. Upon the close of
the Fund on 15 December 2017 which is decided by the general
partner, there is a distribution of the original investment principal
of HK$975,000,000 and returns of approximately US$11,491,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$89,632,000). This return is
recognised in consolidated income statement.

Investment in a joint venture and amount
due from a joint venture

Set out below are the balances of the investment in a joint venture
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

21

A S EEIARITRHE

AHfHENBEERANEBIERBRE
AJATAR Private Equity Fund ([EE& |) 2%
BoHMERECBEREBRHEME - Ed
# R A L B A % ATAR Investments
(Cayman) Limited W & 2 128 - K& 2@
R RAERR KM ERETESM
FRESE R -

BE-_Z—+E+-_A=+—HILEE -
AEB D RESMEL 110,000,000 7T (17
B 72 #9858,000,000/8 L) (ZZT — /K F ¢
15,000,000 27T (AHE #47 117,000,000 %8
T ZHR - EEBERBARER S
—+E+ - A+HBERESLE  RER
& 7K 4 975,000,000/ T K @ 4
11,491,000 3 7T (48 & M #989,632,000 /%
T BRI DR - BB HRMNERE WEKRF

a

KEELECHRBREW
SELEREA

AEER_ZE—FR_E— R F+=A
ZT+—HR—REECEZIRE ZFIESE
HIEATR -

At 31 December Rt+—A=+—8H
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21 Investment in a joint venture and amount 21 R—EKXSEBE L EZKRERERK
due from a joint venture (Continued) —REELRFRE(#])
Particulars of the Group's joint venture as at 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF R T —R"F+ZA=1+—
and 2016 are as follows: H AEEEEREFROT
Particulars of
issued/registered Place of
share capital registration Percentage of
Name and business ownership interest Principal activities
BET Rl
i /MR Egrsiikd BEERGRSL FEEH
2017 | 2016
ZE—+F | ZTRF
Dragon Step Global Limited Us$100 British Virgin Islands, NIA | 25 Investment holding
("Dragon Step”) limited liability company |
ERERERRA 100ET KERAES TER RERR
(T8ERE]) BRAFE '

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has shared
the losses of the joint venture to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the joint venture. The Group has no obligation to take up
further losses. The amounts of the Group's unrecognised share of
losses of this joint venture for the year and cumulatively were
HK$329,000 and HK$329,000, respectively.

On 15 May 2017, the Company completed the acquisition of the
75% issued share capital of Dragon Step, which was a joint
venture company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. As at
the date of acquisition, Dragon Step’s assets and liabilities mainly
consisted of a non-current deposit. Subsequent to the acquisition,
Dragon Step became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
A loss on step acquisition amounting to HK$1,317,000 is recorded
for the acquisition.

HEZZ—R"F+A=+—HLFE "
REEZERGECEMEERED LA
BOE T EE AEEIEETRERE—
FEE - RAFEREEFTE  AKE
DM EECEZABREED BB
329,000 7T £ 329,000 7T °

RZZE—tFRATHA  AREIZHRK
BEREPE 2 75% BB TR A - sZ AR ARKE
BEZBEEAMKZZEEDRE - RIKE
HE R CcEERBEEEZEREIFAE
A& o METIREEETRE - EEREK AR
RElZEENBAR - MMBEEEMS -
PP ER IR 2 518 41,317,000 7T ©
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21 Investment in a joint venture and amount 21
due from a joint venture (Continued)

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET FHT
Amount due from a joint venture (Note) B —RE&EDERIE () - 87,116
Note: The amount due from a joint venture was unsecured, interest free and M ER—REEEFIBAEER 22 RA

repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of HK$85,800,000 and
HK$1,316,000 were denominated in US$ and HKS$, respectively. The
carrying amount approximated its fair value.

% B Sk (€ 2 - BR M {&.85,800,0007%8 7T &
1,316,000 8 LD BIAE L RBTLEHE © BR
HEEEAFEERS

22 Investment in an associate and amount 22 R—RBIBLFICRERERK
due from an associate —XBHELAFREA
Set out below are the balances of the investment in an associate AEBR-_ZE—+HFR_ZT—RFT+=A
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016: ZT—HR—RBEQRRZEE 2B
LT
2017 2016
—E—tF! ZT—RF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET FET
At 31 December W+—HA=+—8 - -
Particulars of the Group's associate as at 31 December 2017 are RZEB—tHF+A=+—H £&EZ
as follows: B R elEEnT
Particulars of Place of
issued/ registration Percentage of
Name registered share capital and business ownership interest Principal activity
BET i RisE RS
i /MR A ESrsiika B FEEHK
20171 2016
ZE—+F  ZTRF
Autumnglow Pte. Ltd. Singapore Dollar (“SGD") Singapore NIA E 50 Hotel management
("Autumnglow") (Note (i) 2 | ERRE
Autumnglow Pte. Ltd. 23T A FBA |
(T Autumnglow |) (fif3 (i) (#migT)) !
Tiger Wheel Incorporated Philippine Pesos (“PHP") Philippines 40 E N/A Dormant
("Tiger Wheel”) (Note (i) 2,000,000 |
Tiger Wheel Incorporated 2,000,000 EREHZR FEE . RER EEEH
(ITiger Wheel ]) (Ff3E (i) (#%]) f
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22 Investment in an associate and amount
due from an associate (Continued)

The Group's shareholding in the associate is held through a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Notes:

(i) On 3 January 2017, the Company completed the acquisition of 50%
issued share capital of Autumnglow. Prior to the acquisition,
Autumnglow was an associate of the Company, which has entered into
the hotel operator agreement with Landing Jeju Development Co. Ltd.
(“Landing Jeju”). Upon the completion of the acquisition, Autumnglow
became the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(ii) On 3 October 2017, the Group acquired 40% equity interest in Tiger
Wheel from independent third parties, with a consideration of
PHP800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$122,000). After the
acquisition, Tiger Wheel became an associate of the Group and has
been accounted for using equity method. Share of loss in an associate of
HK$122,000 is recorded in the year ended 31 December 2017.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

22 ﬁé—:ﬂﬁﬁ’&ﬁl;z&)i&ﬂﬁl&

KBZE QTR (1
REBEREE R R 2 RIETE B A RA
T—REEAWBARRE -

BsE -
) RZT—tF—-HA=H KRAAZTHKKE

(ii)

Autumnglow Z 50% BB 1TARAN o F#ETTIR
FE EIEAT - Autumnglow &R 7] 2 Bt & A
A WERESEMNAEKX2 T ((ER
BEM DR L EEGE RIEEIE
A% - Autumnglow BN AARRIZ 2 E
=N

RIZB—F+HA=0 AEERBIFE=

77 U & Tiger Wheel 40% 3% 1 - KX (B A&
800,000 3F 2 & # = (48 & M %9 122,000 %

JL) © AT EIEIE - Tiger Wheel i A& A&
EEZBERR) - WEIREREAR - 1RE
E-E—+E+-A=+—HILEE S
B N A E1E A 122,0008 7T ©

FEUN — KB & N T FRIE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
ZE—tF| —T—RF
HK$°000 | HK$’000
FET ! FHETT
Amount due from an associate (Note) JE U — SR B R R FRTE (T RE) 16,708 ! -
Note: The amount due from an associate with principal amount of FRaE - P UL — KB & A Bl ;B AN & %8 15,780,000

HK$15,780,000 is interest-bearing at 7% per annum. During the year,
the Group recognised interest income from the associate amounting to
HK$1,050,000 and presented as finance income. The balance is

23

BILEFRTI%E - TR AEBEER
B2 X A) 2 F UK 1,050,000 T - I i
BRABAZY|AHFIBIA - BRAZIENUNET

denominated in US$, unsecured and repayable on demand. The carrying FHE - B RRERER c REBERARD
amount approximated its fair value. FEEMRS -
Inventories 23 #8’
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF! —ZT-RF
HK$°000 ! HK$'000
FEz ! AL
Raw materials [E A 80,483 | 6,921
Work in progress E&m - 7,321
Finished goods BUAK o 5,681 ! 37,815
|
86,164 ' 52,057
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24 Completed properties for sale 24 REEERDME
As at 31 December
Rt+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF! ZT—KF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FHET
Completed properties for sale comprise: HEDERKMERS \
Construction cost and other capitalised BRERAREME AR |
expenditures 1,190,536 | -
Interest capitalised BRI E 33,963 ! -
Land use rights 3 b A 43,396 | -
1,267,895 ' -
Less: Current portion R BVERER S (1,267,895), -
Non-current portion FERNHAER - -
Completed properties for sale expected to be ~ FEHRRJUL[El 2 FE D B ME - :
recovered: |
Within one year —F R 1,267,895 | -
Beyond more than one year HiB—Fi& - -
1,267,895 ! -
The analysis of land costs with an aggregate net carrying amount FFARE RSB YE 2 LK AE R BRE
included in completed properties for sale is as follows: FELE2HTWAT -
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF | ZE—RE
HK$000 ' HK$'000
FHT T
South Korea oL !
Freehold land KAERE T 43,396 ! -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, cost of completed BHE_Z—+F+_A=1+—HLFE"
properties for sale amounted to HK$200,370,000 (2016: Nil) were FEEEKMEZKNABERAEEEFEK
recognised as cost of inventories sold. 75200,370,000 BT (ZF—7R4F - &) o
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25 Properties under development 25 BHERPYE

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—H
2017 ! 2016
—E—+tF! ZT—KF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FHEIT
At the beginning of the year REFH] 2,079,841 | 1,135,733
Additions NE 972,649 | 1,306,190
Transfer to completed properties for sale HREFECERYE (1,399,168)" -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEREYE  BERRE |
(Note 14) (MH5E14) (1,604,363)! (374,481)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 15) EREREDE (MisE15) (36,180), -
Interest capitalised BRI 75,206 79,451
Currency translation difference EHTE H E5E 172,463 ! (67,052)
1
1
At the end of the year JINCEHES 260,448 ' 2,079,841
|
1
Properties under development comprise: BRAMERRE :
Construction cost and other capitalised AR EME AR |
expenditures 118,234 | 1,785,665
Interest capitalised =N IAIIEN 15,692 ! 101,733
Land use rights T Hb A A 126,522 ! 192,443
|
260,448 | 2,079,841
1
1
Less: Current portion A BIERER (260,448)'  (2,079,841)
1
1
Non-current portion JEBNHARL 5 - -
|
1
Properties under development expected to be ~ FEERRTUL[E] 7 B4R 1 1 2 |
recovered: |
Within one year —FR - -
Beyond more than one year BiE—F% 260,448 ! 2,079,841
|
260,448 2,079,841
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25 Properties under development (Continued) 25 TR ()
The analysis of land costs with an aggregate net carrying amount S AERERYEZ TR AER REFE
included in properties under development is as follows: BE 2 DMAT -
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF | ZT—XF
HK$'000 ' HK$'000
FET ! FET
South Korea 3] !
Freehold land KARHEL M 126,522 ! 192,443

26

Prepayments, trade and other receivables 26

AARE - BURSEREARE

ft FE U SR IR
2017 2016
—E—tF! ZE—RF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5018 8,461 | 121,914
Bills receivables FEWE TR - 3,234
Less: provision for impairment of R EWCE B RIA R E R !
trade receivables -! (37,670)
|
Trade and bills receivables, net (Note (i) FEUNE 58 L EIN E i %5 |
(F=EG)) 8,461 ! 87,478
Other receivables H At eI IR 205,210 | 48,387
Receivables from gaming customers (Note (i)  1B% &P 2 el IE (M5 (i) 97,448 ' 1,201,925
Prepayments B RIE 293,433 ! 61,320
VAT recoverable B EE R 158,310 ! 82,459
Deposits Hk= 33,651 | 34,751
Restricted deposit for non-current borrowings  JEENER{E & 7 Z R #I123X 219,044 ! -
1
Prepayments, trade and other receivables TERNFRIE - EIE 5B R :
Hfth FE YRR 1,015,557 ' 1,516,320
Less: Non-current portion A FERNEREE > (477,984)! (21,037)
|
Current portion BIHEASES 5 537,573 1,495,283
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26 Prepayments, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes:

0}

Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bill receivables based on the invoice
date and net of provisions are as follows:

26 AMARE BEREZREARH
il P My 3R IR (#8)

Bt

(i)

B BRI R B RS

AREREFZADGERIBEREE - EH
BEPRIN EP —RATEEMNK - FEH
—e—MEAa - Ix%?‘TLEiEMH
BREPHRER o AEBEFLRE
T%T %‘Jﬁﬂiisﬁzfgu&z WA LA EREER
CMBRESREEREREARTERR

I:l/\

Eﬂ‘o

R EXX Rl R A B 2 FEWE F5R0A
REDHMEFPER M FEERETEE
R o ﬂS%Ij’Iﬂ?ﬁRJ&’HQ%%?&E EERFF
BEMERRIMETEMINREEEE - &
WE ZFHBEFE -

BEREARRNBBERR2ICERES
RIANEWEIRRE DT -

2017 ! 2016
ZE—tF ZE—RF
HK$000 | HK$'000
Fi#x ! Tt
1
Within 30 days 30HA 8,356 | 34,781
31 to 60 days 31260H - : 15,428
61 to 90 days 61£90H - 11,219
Over 90 days HBiE90 H 105 ! 26,050
i
1
8,461 | 87,478

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$3,202,000 (2016:
HK$67,973,000) were fully performing. The credit quality of these trade
receivables has been assessed with reference to historical information
about the counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties did not
have defaults in the past.

RZZE—+tF+ZA=1+—8 BREIK
183,202,000 70 (=Z — 74 : 67,973,000
BIT) I RHEBRRET ZERWE SHRIE
ZEEERC2ZEAHMRHGHFENER,
[EsL BRETTIL - BAERZHFBAWE
EHIROER
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26 Prepayments, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

0}

Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$5,240,000 (2016:
HK$19,505,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent debtors for whom there is no recent history of
default. The Group does not hold any collateral as security over these
debtors. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired is as follows:

26 AMARE BEREZREARH
il P My 3R IR (#8)

Mg (8)

(i)

T 1r 0 5% R TR e PR A SR 488 ()

RZTF—+F+ZA=+—H BRESK
185,240,000 70 (=Z —7<4F : 19,505,000
FBIT) BB EMEARIRE o 1t HE T B0
BHREBILERANEE - AEEILER
BEEAERRERZEERAZER - 28
HERREZEEEZHIEZRE DTN
T

2017 ! 2016
—F—tg —EAE
HK$’000 X HK$'000
FET | FHET
Less than 1 month past due BE R E A 5135 | 5,933
1 to 3 months past due A1 2 31EA - 7,955
Over 3 months HBiB31EA 105 ! 5,617
1
5240 19,505
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as JEWE SFIB 2 REREZFHNAT
follows:
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF | —E-RE
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET | FHT
1
At the beginning of the year REF] 37,670 | 36,633
Provision for impairment of trade receivables JEWE 5 FRIA 2 R (B B (T ET) X
(Note) 353 3,502
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWEBAR (38,285)! -
Currency translation difference HsHE K2R 262 | (2,465)
i
At the end of the year NG - 37,670

The impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties or were in default in principal payments and only a portion of
receivables is expected to be recovered.

Note: The provision for impairment of trade receivables amounting to
HK$353,000 is included in the profit for the year from
discontinued operations.
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26 Prepayments, trade and other receivables

(i)

26 AMARE BEREZREARH

(Continued) fitb BB L FRIE (48)
Notes: (Continued) fsE : (48)
Receivables from gaming customers (i) HWEERZERRE
2017 ! 2016
ZE—tF —T—RNF
HK$°000 X HK$'000
FET | FHET
Receivables from gaming customers BERE 7 WA 233,080 | 1,352,942
Provision for impairment DRI ] (135,632)! (151,017)
Receivables from gaming customers, net BYEP 7 EIN G TEF58 97,448 | 1,201,925

As at 31 December 2017, receivables from gaming customers of
HK$16,858,000 (2016: HK$137,697,000) were fully performing.
Receivables from gaming customers include receivables from individual
gaming players, which are interest-free and repayable on demand. These
balances are granted with reference to their credit history and track
record settlement.

The movements in provision for impairment of gaming receivables are as
follows:

R-ZE—+F+-F=1+—8 BEEFZ
JfE U 7% T8 16,858,000 JT (= T — N & ¢
137,697,000 70) A] 2 HUES BT - 1§
BEZEBZECEENSEYHER ZEK
B BERBEARERERENREE - %
EREBRNEDEREZEECHBREELS

HEHEMRH -

w~

BEERRSIRZ REREEEIT

2017 2016
—E—tE | STAF
HK$000 X HK$'000
FET | FHT
1
At the beginning of the year REY) 151,017 | -
Provision for impairment of gaming receivables, net 1835 & Y 3038 2 Ji B #1852 58 1,747 ! 152,001
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMHERAF (29,621) -
Currency translation difference EHE R ERE 12,489 ! (984)
i
1
135,632 | 151,017

As at 31 December 2017, receivables from gaming customers
amounting to HK$135,632,000 (2016: HK$151,017,000) were impaired
and fully provided for.

The ageing analysis of the receivables from gaming customers which are

R-Z—+F+-_A=1+—8 BE¥EFZ
JE g 318 135,632,000 7T ( =B — /<4
151,017,000 7T) BB K& 1E 2 S -

B HME RIR(E Z 185 % P 2 8 YRR IR

past due but not impaired is as follows: BT -

2017 2016
-+ | —E—XF
HK$000 | HK$'000
FHET | FHET

1
Less than 1 month past due BELRER - 2,465
1 to 3 months past due w1 =318 A 4,837 | 186,859
3 to 6 months past due BHEI3E6{A A 42,682 ! 518,202
Over 6 months HiEeEA 33,071 ! 356,702

i

1
80,590 ! 1,064,228
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26

27

Prepayments, trade and other receivables 26

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(i) Receivables from gaming customers (Continued)

The remaining balances mainly relate to individual gaming players that
have a good repayment track record with the Group. Based on recent
track record of play, credit history and subsequent settlement by the
individual players, management concluded no impairment is necessary
for these balances and these balances are considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, trade and other receivables
approximated their fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

AARR BERRERERH
il P My 3R IR (#8)

MYaE - (8D

(ii)

WEERZERREA(K)

HETERAAREAHERFENEHEL
B ERNERETAR - REEREE 2T
BT EARLs  FRIHENEREE &
BE#HRBARZSERIELRE @ LR
RS EHA 2R -

AREBBEN R - BUE 5 RIR K E Al & YRR
ZIREEREAFEERE  WATIIEEE:

2017 ! 2016

—E—tF | —ERF

HK$000 ! HK$'000

FET | THET

HK$ BT 195,810 | 62,966
Renminbi (“RMB") ARB(TARE] 10,393 ! 52,890
KRW WRE 581,220 ! 247,354
UK pound sterling (“GBP") ESE 1 2 17,991 ! 901,886
us$ eV 207,809 ! 251,224
Others HAith 2,334 ! -
1,015,557 ! 1,516,320

Principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2017:

27 FEMELT
i

Tt A=t AZEEWE

AEET

Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/ Particulars of issued
registration and registered share capitallpaid-up
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital ~ share capitalldebt securities
AMETHHR ERTEER - CEIRE BURE
=t EEERES TEXK B EREFHE
Directly Indirectly
B it
Autumnglow (Note (i)) Singapore, limited liability Hotel management SGD2 - 100%
company
Autumnglow (FzE (i) g - BRAR BEERE 23T T
Bright House Company Limited Macau, limited liability Investment holding Macau Pataca - 100%
(Note (i)) company ("MOP")25,000
BEERAR (M) R BRARA REER 25,0002 7T
(F&r 7))
Callisto Business Limited (Note (i)) British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding US$76,470,000 100% -
("Callisto”) liability company
Callisto Business Limited ([ Callisto)) ~ XBRLEHE - AR A RERR 76,470,000 %

GEA0)
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27 Principal subsidiaries (Continued) 27 EEMBLT(#E)
Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/ Particulars of issued
registration and registered share capitallpaid-up
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital ~ share capitalldebt securities
AMATHER ERTEER -  CEIRE BRRE
EB EEERES TEEK B BEEFHE
Directly Indirectly
B it
Datsun Industrial Limited (Note (i) Hong Kong, limited liability Asset holding HK$10,000 - 100%
company
AEBEERRA (M) &% BRLA BERA 10,000787T
Dragon Step British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding Us$100 100% -
liability company
HER RERTES  BRAT REER 100%T
Elite Miles Holdings Limited (Note (i) British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding Us$100 100% -
liability company
Elite Miles Holdings Limited (Ff3E () ~ RERZES  ARAF REER 10037T
Empire Fame Limited British Virgin Islands, Staff quarter Us$1 100% -
limited liability company
EE2BRAA RERLES  BERAT BIEE (E
Esteem Idea Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding Uss$1 100% -
limited liability company
ERERAA RERLES  BRRA REER 157
Golden House Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands, Marketing Us$2 - 100%
limited liability company
RERNEE  BRAT 2 2ETT
Gold Rise Management Limited Hong Kong, limited Residential management HK$1 100% -
liability company
SREEERDA B4 BRAA FEEE 187
Grace Wide Corporation Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding HK$1 - 100%
(Note (i)) company
EHERAR (M) BE ARAA REER 18T
Grand Express Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding HK$1 - 100%
limited liability company
BEXBERAF BE ARRF REER 18T
Great Treasure Management Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$100 - 100%
liability company
BEERERLA BE BRLA REER 1007%7T
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27 Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

27 XEMBAT ()

Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/ Particulars of issued
registration and registered share capitallpaid-up
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital ~ share capitalldebt securities
AMETHHR ERTEER -  CEIRE BRRE
EB EEERES TEXK B EREFHE
Directly Indirectly
B it
Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. (Note (i) Singapore, limited liability Investment holding SGD97,472,000 - 100%
company
Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. (Fif & (i) Mg - BBRAF REER 97,472,000
g
Jubilant Forth Limited (Note (i)) British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding Us$100 100% -
liability company
ERBRAA () RERAES  BRAT RERR 100%7T
Jumbo Step Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$1 - 100%
liability company
ERERAT B ARRF REER 1T
Landing Entertainment Korea Co., Ltd ~ South Korea Gaming business KRW - 100%
27,176,895,000
M 23 27,176,895,000 8 &
Landing Estate Management Services  South Korea Residential management KRW100,000,000 - 100%
Co., Ltd (formerly known as
“Hi-Young Property Management
Co., Ltd")
Landing Estate Management Services 8% FEEE 100,000,000
Co., Ltd (A7 [Hi-Young Property
Management Co., Ltd )
Landing Jeju South Korea Construction,management, KRW 50% 50%
operation and rental of 465,000,000,000
facilities for tourism,
commerce,
accommodation
and recreation
EREN M R EE K2R 465,000,000,000
BERE &% &
(BT RIREE R 1
Landing Korea Co., Ltd. South Korea Establishment of training KRW - 100%
center 20,567,240,000
M FRILEHI R L 20,567,240,000 %
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27 Principal subsidiaries (Continued) 27 EEMBLT(#E)

Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/ Particulars of issued
registration and registered share capitallpaid-up
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital ~ share capitalldebt securities
AMETHHR ERTEER - ERTKE BEWRES
= EEERES TEXK B EREFHE
Directly Indirectly
B it
Landing Management Company Hong Kong, limited Management office HK$100 100% -
Limited liability company
ERERERRA Bt ARRA EENER 1007
Landing Resorts Management Hong Kong, limited Management office HK$100 100% -
Company Limited liability company
ERREERARAR B BRAF EEMER 1007
Landing Resorts Philippines The Philippines Lease PHP10,300,000 - 100%
Development Corporation (Note (i)
Landing Resorts Philippines FEE HE 10,300,000
Development Corporation (Fifz i) FRERR
Landing Singapore Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding US$100 100% -
limited liability company
ESMMRERAR EBRAHE  BRAA RERR 100%7T
Leader Rainbow Limited Hong Kong, limited Securities Investment HK$1 100% -
liability company
BT ARAT Bt ARRA BHRE 1AL
Magical Gains Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding Us$200 100% -
limited liability company
TEERBRAA RERLES  BRRA REER 200E7T
P D International Turism Limited Macau, limited liability Travel agent MOP1,500,000 - 100%
(Note (i)) company
REERREARAR (HEE) B BRAR IRERE 1,500,000 2F37
Pearl Shine Global Limited (Note (i)) British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding Us$100 100% -
liability company
VRRIRAR AR () EERIES  BRAT RERR 100%7T
Rainbow Source Developments British Virgin Islands, Asset holding US$100 100% -
Limited limited liability company
TRERARAA RBRAHE  BRAF EERA 100X
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27 Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

27 XEMBAT ()

Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/ Particulars of issued
registration and registered share capitallpaid-up
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital ~ share capitalldebt securities
AMETHHR ERTEER - ERTKE BEWRES
= EEERES TEXK B EREFHE
Directly Indirectly
B it
River East Developments Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding Us$100 - 100%
limited liability company
NRERARAF RBRAMES  BRAA REER 100%7T
Royal Dragon Limited Hong Kong, limited Property holding HK$1 - 100%
liability company
&R BRAF ESSEC] 187
Shinhwa World China Co Ltd.* The PRC, limited liability Sales and marketing RMB500,000 - 100%
(Note (i) company services
BREFELEA(LE)ERRT P BERAR HERLHRE ARH500,0007
(AL ()
Sino Pearl International Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding Us$100 - 100%
limited liability company
EYRRERAT EBRAHE  BRAA RERR 100%7T
Stepwide Developments Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding US$1 100% -
limited liability company
ERERERAT RBRAMSE  BRAA RERR 1%L
Ultimate Fame Global Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment Holding Us$100 100% -
limited liability company
EERFARAT RERLES  BRRA REER 10057
Ultra Matrix International Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding US$50,000 - 100%
limited liability company
ABRIEE BRAF REER 50,0005 7T
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27 Principal subsidiaries (Continued) 27 EEMBLT(#E)
Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/ Particulars of issued
registration and registered share capitallpaid-up
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital ~ share capitalldebt securities
AMETHHR ERTEER -  CEIRE BRRE
EB EEERES TEEK B EREFHE
Directly Indirectly
B it
Wider Success Global Limited British Virgin Islands, Fund investment US$100 100% -
limited liability company
BRRFERAT] EEERES  BRAT HeRE 100%7T
Win Rich Group Limited British Virgin Islands, Asset holding US$50,000 100% -
limited liability company
BEEEARAR RBRLHE  BRAF EERA 50,000%7T
Notes fieE
(i)  These entities were incorporated/acquired during the year. (i) RSty Sea i AV ¢
* The English name of the company referred to in these consolidated *

28

financial statements represent management'’s best effort to translate the
Chinese name of the company, as no English name has been registered.

BRI EE MR CEH  ZEFEAMFRE
Freliiiz ARl 2 RN AR EREREAK
BAYZ AR R X AWML 285 -

Financial assets at fair value through 28 MAFREFARRZMBER
profit or loss 3
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET | FHT
Listed equity investments at market value BRMEE ETRERE |
(Note (a)) (FifiE (@) 319,015 ! 462,070
Unlisted investment fund (Note (b)) JEFMIREES (MIFE (b)) - 397,025
1
319,015 ! 859,095
Notes: MIE
(@  The equity investments were designated by the management as fair (@) EBEESKREREEEARATEEGA
value through profit or loss and the fair values were determined based B MATEBERRERMSEZBITEA
on their current bid prices in an active market. BEET °
(b)  The Group purchased an equity market fund from an intermediary in (b) $§§|§EW§?%EPJ/I\@ A AR AR5 A

Hong Kong. The fair value of the investment fund was determined by
the quote from a financial institution, which is an intermediary.

The investment fund was fully redeemed by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

& RERS 2 R EENRYBEHEE D
AR ZREETE

AEEERBE_Z—tF+_A=+—
HILE2HBERREESD -
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29 Cash and cash equivalents 29 BEeERBaEREY
2017 2016
ZE—tF |, —ZTRF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET | FHT
Cash at bank and on hand (Note) RITRFER® (W) 4,336,772 | 6,223,361
Short-term bank deposits FEHRERTTIF K 1,250 ! 551,140
|
Cash and cash equivalents RENRREEEBY 4,338,022 ! 6,774,501
Note: As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits amounting to HK$1,613,000 izt R—ZE—+FE+_A=+—H " RBIFX
(2016: HK$12,221,000) were denominated in RMB and kept in banks in 1,613,000 7T ( =& — 7~ 4 : 12,221,000
Mainland China. These RMB are not freely convertible into other BIT) AARBEHELFAPEAHIETT
currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control ARSI AL AEMEE  HREES
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of B (A b SN & BRI - DA R A5 TE © =B A
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB EERRTE @« NEBEEE BEREEITIN
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign EXSEE ZIBTEARBY B ABEME
exchange business. o
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following BERBEEBYWATHIEEE :
currencies:
2017 | 2016
—E—tF ! ZT—RF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FHT
1
HK$ B 1,022,360 ' 2,511,763
RMB AR 9,962 ! 18,279
GBP HgE 1,445 : 171,649
KRW BEE 2,028,250 ! 850,682
us$ ESv 1,227,195 ! 3,222,054
PHP FREHR 47,443 -
Others Eh 1,367 ! 74
4,338,022 ! 6,774,501
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30 Discontinued operations 30 B¥IEERS
2017 !
—E—tF
HK$000 !
FET |
Disposal of Lighting Business (Note (a)) & BRAAZE 7 (5T (a)) !
— Loss from the operations up to the —EEHNERBKEHE :
date of disposal (12,537),
— Gain on disposal of Ace Winner — H & Ace Winner Z 25 16,861 !
Disposal of Gaming Business in the UK (Note (b)) & EEIER E7 (K15E (b)) |
— Profit from the operations up to the — HEHE AP EEET :
date of disposal 205,520 |
— Gain on disposal of Jolly Champion — REEE W= 447,066
656,910 '

(A) DISPOSAL OF LIGHTING BUSINESS

On 5 May 2017, the Group completed the disposal of Ace
Winner, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at cash
consideration of HK$50,000,000. Its results are presented in
the consolidated income statement as a discontinued
operation. Ace Winner and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Ace
Winner Group”) were principally engaged in the Lighting
Business in the PRC.

Financial information relating to Ace Winner Group for the
period to the date of disposal and the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out below. The statement of profit
or loss and statement of cash flow distinguish discontinued
operations from continuing operations and the respective
comparative figures have been restated.

(A) HERHARRE

N-ZZE—+FRHARR KEERE
REEARQNT 22 ENB QT Ace
Winner » 3R & X {& /50,000,000 /&
Lo HEBENGZEREREY AD
R EE % o Ace Winner &2 H [ B A
7] (4375 [ Ace Winner 8 |) =2
AR B ERRRZERS o

BB Ace WinnerEBEHEZHEHH
B EEE T —XRF+ A
S+ BLFEZHBEERFERT
Yo EBREAMESRERBE LRI
¥EBEBELEERSHA BEH
LLEHFEFES -
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30 Discontinued operations (Continued) 30 E#IEERE)
(A) DISPOSAL OF LIGHTING BUSINESS (A) HERBEER (&)
(Continued)
Profit or Loss Information REEH
Period ended : Year ended
5May | 31 December
2017 ! 2016
E HZE
—E—+F, —T—RE
BAEA +ZA=+—H
LEEART IEFE
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FET
Revenue Was 88,200 | 229,658
Expenses 52 (100,737)! (227,957)
(Loss)/profit before income tax from B4R 2 BRATS TR |
discontinued operations (E18), %A (12,537)! 1,701
Income tax credit FriSiiE R - 128
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations £ 4% 1 27 (&518) & F (12,537)! 1,829
Gain on disposal of Ace Winner & Ace Winner 2 iz :
(Note 40(c)) (MI7E40(0)) 16,861 ! -
4,324 ! 1,829
Gain/(loss) from discontinued operations  JE{E T 4% 135S/ (1) |
attributable to: |
— Owners of the Company — RREE A 8169 | 1,265
— Non-controlling interests — IR R (3,845), 564
4,324 ! 1,829
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30 Discontinued operations (Continued)
(A) DISPOSAL OF LIGHTING BUSINESS

(B)

(Continued)
Profit or Loss Information (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operations is
as follows:

30 BERIEER(E)
(A) HERBEEXK(E)

RBBH (&)
ERLERBZREREDTAOT

Period ended | Year ended

5May | 31 December

2017 2016

z | HZE

ZE—+F, ZT—RE

EAEA +=A=+—A

LEEART ILFE

HK$°000 | HK$'000

FET FHET

Operating cash flows LRAKIE S 17,866 ! (1,261)

Investing cash flows BRERSRE (2,600)! (11,062)

Financing cash flows BMERERE (15,589), (5,398)
1
]

Total cash flows BWIRERE (323)! (17,721)

DISPOSAL OF GAMING BUSINESS IN THE
UK

On 11 October 2017, the Group completed the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of Jolly Champion, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, at cash consideration of
HK$2,500,000,000. Its results are presented in the
consolidated income statement as a discontinued operation.
Jolly Champion and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Jolly
Champion Group”) were principally engaged in the
Gaming Business in the UK.

Financial information relating to Jolly Champion Group for
the period to the date of disposal and the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out below. The statement of profit
or loss and statement of cash flow distinguish discontinued
operations from continuing operations and the respective
comparative figures have been restated.
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30 Discontinued operations (Continued) 30

(B) DISPOSAL OF GAMING BUSINESS IN THE
UK (Continued)

BRI (1])
(B) HEREIBRER (&)

Profit or Loss Information HEEH
Period ended : Year ended
11 October | 31 December
2017 2016
gz HZE
—E—tF. ZT—RF
tA+—HA +t=ZA=+—H”
LEEAR IEFE
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FHET | FHT
Revenue Was 1,268,305 | 1,127,542
Expenses 3 (1,009,954)! (1,043,525)
1
]
Profit before income tax from B IEETE 2 BRETISEIRT |
discontinued operations il 258,351 ! 84,017
Income tax FTig®i (52,831)! (358)
1
]
Profit from discontinued operations BRI FEB R 205,520 ! 83,659
Gain on disposal of Jolly Champion HEEE 2 Mas (5 40(d) !
(Note 40(d)) 447,066 ! -
|
652,586 ! 83,659
|
Gain from discontinued operations FE(E D 4R E RS UNES - !
attributable to: |
— Owners of the Company — RRBIHEAE A 652,586 ! 83,659
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30 Discontinued operations (Continued)

30 B#RIEER(E)

(B) DISPOSAL OF GAMING BUSINESS IN THE (B) HEXREBEEX (&)
UK (Continued)
Profit or Loss Information (Continued) REEFE(8)
An analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operations is ERIEEBZREREDHAOT :
as follows:
Period ended ; Year ended
11 October | 31 December
2017 2016
Bz H=
—E—+F, —T—REF
tA+—A +t=ZA=+—H
LEHAR IFFE
HK$’000 | HK$'000
FHET | FHT
Operating cash flows KEEERE 279,504 (222,341)
Investing cash flows WEBEERE (69,815)! (9,345)
Financing cash flows BMERERE (189,779)! 364,434
Total cash flows WIS TS 19,910 ! 132,748
31 Trade and Other Payables 31 EfESREAREAMMEMGRE
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF ! ZT—XRF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FHT
Trade payables FENE 5 14,946 | 79,039
Pre-sale proceeds received from customers = g\fﬁuﬁzHXZﬁEﬁfr?%#\ 39,217 | 285,188
Deposit received EUET 11,742 ! 217,452
Receipt in advance TadRIA 13,117 ! -
Deferred revenue BT 2R 734! -
Accrued expenses FEEtRI S 602,009 ! 79,784
Accrued employee benefits JEETE Bt A 83,509 ! 71,877
Other tax payables Hib ETFLIE 95,897 | 35,987
Other payables Hh T IR 186,590 ' 115,581
Trade and other payables FET B 5 3k I8 I Aot FE - 5RIE 1,047,761 | 884,908
Less: Non-current portion B FERNEREE > (46,667)! (9,402)
Current portion BIHASES 5 1,001,094 ' 875,506
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31 Trade and other payables (Continued) 31 BRESERARKMEFRRIR

(#8)
Trade and other payables are denominated in the following FETE 5508 R A A JE (S FRIB A T3 B #E
currencies: FTE
2017 2016
—E—tF ! ZT—XF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FHET
HK$ BT 42,827 ! 19,385
RMB ARHEE 7,282 | 85,677
GBP R - 327,369
KRW PR E 977,328 ! 452,477
SGD N T 19,697 | -
Others Hib 627! -
|
1,047,761 ! 884,908
As at 31 December 2017, the ageing analysis of the trade RZE—tHF+A=1T—"H EFNES
payables based on the invoice date are as follows: FIEBBEZARCRESITOT -
2017 ! 2016
—E— ! —TAE
HK$°000 | HK$’000
FET | FHET
Within 30 days 30 14,946 | 31,886
31 to 60 days 31260H - 15,596
61 to 90 days 61290H - 12,273
Over 90 days B3890 H - ! 19,284
|
]
14,946 ' 79,039
32 Bank and other borrowings 32 RITREMES
2017 ! 2016
—E—tE ! —TAE
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FAETT
Bank borrowings RITEE 715,682 ! 78,192
Other borrowings HibgE 1,268,897 ! 347,667
|
1,984,579 | 425,859
Less: Non-current portion of bank and other W RITREMEEIEREH S |
borrowings (1,965,155)! (195,250)
|
]
Current portion BNERER 5 19,424 ! 230,609
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32 Bank and other borrowings (Continued) 32 SR{TRHfth & (&)

The Group's bank and other borrowings were repayable as AEBERTREMBEAR T HRE
follows: i
2017 ! 2016
ZE—tF, —ET—RX
HK$'000 ' HK$'000
FBT FET
Within one year —&FR 19,424 | 230,609
Between 1 and 2 years 12245 1,091,804 | 19,530
Between 2 and 5 years 2ES5F 873,351 ! 175,720
|
]
1,984,579 | 425,859
Bank and other borrowings are secured by the Group's property, RITREMEEARNEEME - HE K&
plant and equipment amounting to HK$1,392,395,000 (2016: #51,392,395,0008 ;t( — & — X F:
HK$435,436,000) (Note 14), completed properties for sale 435,436,000,870) (MIFE14) « FFEBETERK
amounting to HK$1,267,895,000 (2016: Nil) (Note 24), prepaid Y1%£1,267,895,0008 L ( Z & —/NF © )
land lease payments amounting to HK$Nil (2016: HK$14,234,000) (FizE24) - BN T HHEERBEZAT(Z
(Note 16) and investment properties amounting to HK$Nil (2016: T— 7 1 14,234,000 70) (MaE16) A
HK$239,800,000) (Note 15). EREWEZERL(ZF —RNF:
239,800,000 8 7T ) (Ff&E 15) #&fx ©
The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings ranging FAEEBECERENENTA4T3ER
from 4.73% to 10% (2016: 4.71% to 10%) per annum. The 1NVE(ZE—R"F 47MEZ10E) - K
carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in SEEEZREBENLTIEEE
the following currencies:
2017 2016
ZE—+tF ! ZT—XF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FHT TFitssr
HK$ BT - 133,788
RMB AR - 78,192
uss$ EP 195,373 ! 213,879
KRW B 1,789,206 ' -
|
1,984,579 ! 425,859
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32

33

34

B % #R 4 Bf aE
Bank and other borrowings (Continued) 32 TR HEfhfEE ()
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: AEEETIRENEERSE :
2017 ! 2016
ZE—tF |, —TRF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET ! FAET
Fixed rate: ER :
— Expiring within one year — —FE AN - 1,300,000
— Expiring within two years — MEAE® 500,000 ' -
Amount due to a non-controlling interest 33 EfiFiRRERIKRIA
At 31 December 2016, the amount due to a non-controlling RZE—R"E+TZA=+—8 " ENFEE
interest was unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and et ss SRIE BRI - IRFERES%EE -
repayable in March 2019 and November 2020, respectively. WHRER-E-—NF=ZRAR-_ZE_FF
+—RAEE-
On 3 January 2017, the Company completed the acquisition of RZZE—tF—H=8 ' AQRTRWE
the entire issued share capital of Callisto and its subsidiaries Callisto &2 E K &8 2 7] ([ Callisto £ El |) 2
("Callisto Group”). 2EEEITIA -
Amount due to a shareholder 34 BEft—REERRER

As at 31 December 2016, the amount due to a shareholder (which
is a controlling shareholder) with principal amount of
approximately HK$5,536,635,000 was unsecured, interest-free
and repayable in 2018. The amount was denominated in US$ and
was carried at amortised cost of approximately HK$5,361,193,000
using the prevailing market rate as at 31 December 2016.

The amount due to a shareholder is fully repaid during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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35 Deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities

B 5 #i 2 W

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as

35 BEFMBR(RE) AR
EEFEHEERABZARMT -

follows:
2017 ! 2016
:ﬁ—ti: —E—RF
HK$000 ' HK$'000
FET | FET
Deferred income tax assets: FIEFSREE :
— Deferred income tax assets to be — BRER12EARKEZ !
recovered after more than 12 months BIEFTISTHEAE - (11,763)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BIEFMSHRAE - \
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — BRER12EARKEZ |
recovered after more than 12 months BELEFSRAR 36,204 ! 181,733
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BIEFRSRAESE 36,204 ! 169,970

The movements in net deferred income tax liabilities during the

year are as follows:

FAEEMSHEEFELEHNOT

Total
5t
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—REF—HA— 6.105
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) WiE — R E AR (W +£38) 197,755
Credited to consolidated income statement SFAESRE W ER (3,486)
Currency translation difference BHEN 28 (30,404)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=A=+—H 169,970
At 1 January 2017 RZZFE—+F—H—H 169,970
Credited to consolidated income statement FTAB KR IEEB A R TR
under discontinued operations (1,209)
Debited to consolidated income statement under BREFELEEREERER
continuing operations 3,328
Debited to consolidated statement of BRERaEEkaER
comprehensive income 29,695
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 40) HEMHE QT (B 40) (175,444)
Currency translation difference HHIER =5 9,864
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+-_A=+—H 36,204
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35 Deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities

o B A M i

(Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

35 SRIEFFRI(B/E) AR K)

FA - Ret RARBH DA EAN T RE
HEBZBEAT  BEREHEERAE
ZEHmT :

Accelerated
rental
expenses
and others
mEHEEHEE
REAM
HK$'000
FHIT
Deferred income tax assets BIEFSREE

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) g —RK W B2 a (MiFE38) (10,152)
Credited to consolidated income statement SAGZAEWRER (3,486)
Currency translation differences HIIE R =5 1,875
At 31 December 2016 RIEB—R"E+ZA=+—H (11,763)
At 1 January 2017 RZ_ZE—+F—H—H (11,763)

Credited to consolidated income statement SFAE R I EBGE TR
under discontinued operations (1,209)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 40) HE—RKEB A (FizE40) 13,903
Currency translation differences EWEH =5 (931)

At 31 December 2017

R-_2—tF+=-A=+—H -
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35 Deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities 35 REFRBN(FE) &AE(HE)
(Continued)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FN - RETRARBGERERER KNG HE
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of HERZBEAT  BREMREHEEKAR
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: (Continued) BET - (&)
Fair value
adjustments
N FEEFZE
HK$'000
FAT
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFGRAR
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—H—H 6,105
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) Wi — KT A A) (B sE38) 207,907
Currency translation differences BEIIEH =5 (32,279)
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RE+ZHA=1+—H 181,733
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF—H—H 181,733
Debited to consolidated income statement [EERES RN e 3,328
Debited to consolidated statement of EBREGAZARSER 29,695
comprehensive income
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 40) E—RWE AR (H5E40) (189,347)
Currency translation differences HIIEHR =5 10,795
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—t&+=-A=+—H 36,204

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As 31 December
2017, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried
forward against future taxable income amounted approximately
HK$1,136,480,000 (2016: approximately HK$545,844,000
(restated)). These tax losses have no expiry date except that
approximately HK$208,000 will expire in 2022 (2016: Nil
(restated)).

AETIEBEMER CEEMSHEE
INEBEHRBH B BRRRERTENE
RBBERAER - RZTE—tF+= A
—+—H  AEBEBRERGEET AR
BAEBERRERTE KA BHEY
1,136,480,000 7L( = & — X F: &
545,844,000 7T (E51)) - fLEMIEEE
WA ERA - M E R 49208,000 % 7T % A
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36 Share capital 36 B&&F
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRHRTRR
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
ERITIRIEE B
‘000 HK$'000
Fi Fitt
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and R-ZZE—XRE—H—H" 20,565,879 2,056,588
1 January 2017 —FE-RE+-A=+—8xK
—T—+F%—H—H
Cancellation of paid-up capital (Note (a)) SEHEEWE A (M3t (@) - (1,850,929)
Issuance of ordinary shares by rights issue BB AL R T I @A (BT (b)) 102,829,396 1,028,294
(Note (b))
Issuance of ordinary shares by placing (Note (c)) & iBEEZ7TE @A (FHEE(Q) 24,000,000 240,000
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-RA=+—H 147,395,275 1,473,953
Notes: gL
(a) With effective from 22 March 2017, the issued share capital of the (a) BE-ZT—+F=ZA=-+=-H# KQFD%
Company was reduced through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of TRARFHEARREWRERMB RS
the Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the issued ordinary ERUAZREAEIOE T ZEREITL B
shares of HK$0.10 each so that the nominal value of each issued new BIRFTH0.09B T AR - EBRE FHT
share is HK$0.01. The credit of approximately HK$1,850,929,000 arising D 2 EEKB0.018 T - BANEIRE
from the capital reduction was credited to the contributed surplus of the 4 7 #BR491,850,929,000 8 T E BEA KRR
Company. RN BER
(b)  On 26 April 2017, the Company completed the rights issue on the basis (b) RZZE—EFWAZ+H  KRAFFTKIE
of five rights shares for every one share held on the record date. R BHAERE —RROEZRARMER
102,829,396,285 shares were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.05 i% 10 7 EAEHEITHAR © 102,829,396,285 1%
per rights share with proceeds of approximately HK$5,063,252,000 BRHBEZRFRERARG0.05F T2 REE
(after netting off with related transaction costs amounting to 97 0 P8 3K 1A 495,063,252,000 78 JT (£
approximately HK$78,218,000), which approximately HK$50,176,000 is MR IERAR A4 78,218,000 Ti&) B
the underwriting commission to LIL being credited to the equity of the FEAR AR - A 450,176,000 7T
Company. NAXNTESBR 2 BHAE -
(©  On 14 September 2017, the Company completed the placing of new (© RZZTE—EFNATMHE  KARTKER

shares through placing agent to not less than six places. 24,000,000,000
shares were issued at the placing price of HK$0.075 per new placing
share with proceeds of approximately HK$1,790,749,000 (after netting
off with related transaction costs amounting to approximately
HK$9,251,000) being credited to the equity of the Company.

These shares rank pari passu with the existing ordinary shares of
the Company in all respects.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A5G B AR B
37 Reserves 37 R
Non-
Share  Contributed  Exchange ~distributable Other  Revaluation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BHEE  HABS  EifE TULREE  EtEE  EnEE  ZiEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fén FEn Fén Tén Tén FEn Fén Fén
Note (a)
Mz ()
At 1 January 2017 WZZ-+F-f-H 8,591,221 171,902 (548427) 2,552 200,961 - (2,521,500 5,896,689
Profit for the year FEER - - - - - - 505067 505067
Other comprehensive income iz EkE
Remeasurements of employee benefit obligations ~ E3f3t EESEFIER - - - - (6,597) - - (6,597)
Currency translation difference EREHES - - 1372861 - - - - 1372861
Realisation of exchange reserve upon disposals RHEENBAREEE
of subsidiaries EXGA - - 118687 - - - - 118687
Revaluation of properties, plant and equipment ~ REEERANERERLNE
upon transfer to investment properties BERRE - - - - - 85,256 - 85,256
Change in fair value of available-for-sale ARLENEEES
financial asset LTEEED - - - - - 89,632 - 89,632
Release of reserve upon disposal of REEmfiEHHEER
available-for-sale financial asset BHEE - - - - - (89,632) - (89,632)
Total comprehensive income for the year EErENELE - - 1,491,548 - (6,597) 85,256 505,067 2,075,274
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners HEEAF P REBAZRS
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAF - - - (2,552) - - - (2,552)
Change in ownership interests in a subsidiary —-FHBARERERSES
without change of control miEHETE - - - - (12325 - - (12329
Cancellation of paid-up capital HEEWER - 1,850,929 - - - - - 1,850,929
Issuance of ordinary shares by rights issue FRHRBTLEER 4,034,958 - - - - - - 4034958
Issuance of ordinary shares by placing FRRERTLEAER 1,550,749 - - - - - - 1,550,749
5,585,707 1,850,929 - (2,552) (723,252) - - 6710832
At 31 December 2017 RZE-+F+ZA=1-H 14,176,928 2,022,831 943,121 - (528,888) 85256 (2,016,453) 14,682,795
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A B B A AT
- -
37 Reserves (Continued) 37 W (#E)
Non-
Share  Contributed Exchange  distributable Other  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TARR
RAEE  BARBR  ELRE B EtBE  ZHEB @it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TiEn TAL AL T TiEn TAx
Note (a)
Bz @)
At 1 January 2016 R=E-~F-f-H 8,591,221 171,902 (142,528) 2,55 7253 (1454065 7,176,335
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (1,067455)  (1,067,455)
Other comprehensive loss B2 EER
Remeasurements of employee benefit obligations BN EEARTIEA - - - - (285) - (285)
Imputed interest on amount due to - 2REFEZHERS
a shareholder - - - - 193,993 - 193,993
Currency translation difference ERERER - - (405,924) - - - (405,924)
Realisation of exchange reserve upon REERBARES
disposals of subsidiaries e - - 25 - - - 25
Total comprehensive loss for the year EERABELE - - (405,899) - 193,708  (1,067,455)  (1,279,646)
At 31 December 2016 RE-~E+-A=t+-H 8,591,221 171,902 (548,427) 2,552 200961 (2,521,500 5,896,689
Notes: M
(@)  Contributed surplus of the Group was arisen from the Company's capital @ AEBZBABBDIEARARZZT—=
reorganisation on 19 April 2013. FHUATNBETZEREMEMESE ©
38 Business combination 38 EBEH

On 7 December 2015, the Group and Twinwood Limited, an
independent third party, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of Les Ambassadeurs Club Limited ("Les A")
at a base consideration of GBP137,000,000 (subject to
adjustments), equivalent to approximately HK$1,542,765,000. Les
A is principally engaged in gaming business in London, the UK.
The acquisition was completed on 28 April 2016. The Goodwill of
approximately HK$488,778,000 arose in the acquisition of Les A
because the purchase consideration included amounts in relation
to the benefit of expected synergies and the assembled workforce
of Les A, which cannot be recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.
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38 XSO (HE)

TR 2 A B A N S B HIRT IR
BELMAEAEZ AFERE-

38 Business combination (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid and the
fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised

at the acquisition date.

28 April 2016
ZE-AF
[AE=+1H
HK$'000
FET
Purchase consideration B (B
— Consideration —RE 1,542,765
— Adjustment to consideration based on the — RERNWERR EEFE
net assets value as at acquisition date FHEARE (57,688)
Net cash paid BFRE 1,485,077
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets FR ik R EER AR IE AR
acquired and liabilities assumed ZEeHREeHE
Fair value: NFEE:
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFASEEY 46,897
Property, plant and equipment M - B R 171,839
Intangible assets mEEE 1,145,736
Deferred income tax assets BEFMEMERE 10,152
Inventories FE 17,962
Other receivables H fth fE I8 48,560
Tax recoverable GIREIE A 13,430
Trade and other payables FEN 8 5 /I8 I B At JE < FRIE (250,370)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEXEFTSHEE (207,907)
996,299
28 April 2016
ZE-AF
MmA=+1H
HK$'000
FET
Total identifiable net assets AR E B R E B 996,299
Goodwill (Note 17) B (fisE17) 488,778
1,485,077
28 April 2016
ZE-ANF
HA=+1H
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—RMBARZH R F58
— Cash consideration —HeRE (1,542,765)
— Cash and banks acquired — P IR & SRARTTAS 64 46,897
(1,495,868)
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39 Transactions with non-controlling 39 HIFERERTH

interests

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

On 3 January 2017, the Company completed the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Callisto Group and 50% issued
share capital of Autumnglow. Prior to the acquisition, Callisto
Group was principally engaged in the investment holding of 50%
issued share capital of Landing Jeju whereas Autumnglow was an
associate of the Company, which has entered into the hotel
operator agreement with Landing Jeju. Upon the completion of
the acquisition, Landing Jeju and Autumnglow became the
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The effect of changes in ownership interest of Landing Jeju on the
equity attributable to owners of the Company during the period is
summarised as follows:

W B — XY B A R BE S R

NZZE—+tF—A=H  ARA)TAWE
Calistole B 2 2 B2 HETHR A K
Autumnglow 2 50% B B 1TAR AN o R#ETT
WEEEIFAT - Callisto EE = ERFREE
BB S E M 250%C BEATRA M
Autumnglow B AR ARl 2B A w] - B8
ERBEMTOBE L ErRMinE - NIRES
HEAK % » B 55N & Autumnglow B A
RARBZZEMBAT

ERPENEARESESHHIMANRR R
BRIz ERdmT

2017 !

—E—tF !

HK$000 '

FHT

Carrying amounts of net assets acquired PR s & B 58 2 BRTE A 2,483,182 |
Consideration paid BERE (3,206,434)!
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity ~ PMEZR AR ENREBHBEELH (723,252)!
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40 Disposals of subsidiaries

40 HERBELF

2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
FET
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries: HEMRBAR W
Continuing operations FELEE
— Raising Tune Limited (“Raising Tune”) (Note (a)) — HREAR A ([#EEE]) (M5 @) 39,878
— Leisure Spring Investments Limited —RFIREERAE ([&R]) (HE D))
(“Leisure Spring”) (Note (b)) 7
39,885
Discontinued operations B IEET
— Ace Winner Group (Note (c)) — Ace Winner £ & (FI7E(0) 16,861
— Jolly Champion Group (Note (d)) — BESE (M7 (d) 447,066
2017 i 2016
ZE—tF ZTRE
HK’000 | HK’000
FET ! FAT
I
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from: BeB/A/ORL) FE : !
— Disposal of Ace Winner Group (Note (c)) — H%& Ace Winner & & (Fi3E (o)) 33,482 ! -
— Disposal of Jolly Champion Group — HEEEEE () !
(Note (d)) 2,286,266 | -
— Disposals of other subsidiaries — HEHMNERAR] (993)! 168
|
I
2,318,755 | 168

On 31 August 2017, the Company completed the disposal
of the entire issued share capital of Raising Tune, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, to an independent third
party at a total consideration of HK$250,000,000. A gain on
disposal of Raising Tune of approximately HK$39,878,000
was recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 16 November 2017, the Company completed the
disposal of the entire issued share capital of Leisure Spring,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, to a related
party which is controlled by an executive director, at a total
consideration of HK$1,000,000. A gain on disposal of
Leisure Spring of approximately HK$7,000 was recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2017.

RZZFBE—+tFNA=+—H &2
RAIEREHEARARF Z2EWE QA
BREMEETRAT —BBULE
=77 #{& & 250,000,000 & T °
H & 15 58 2 W 25 #939,878,0007%8 7T
EREE_ZE—tF+-_A=1+—
HILFEZGRE R RER -

RZF—+tF+—A+~H XA
RAIZHHERRRIZEZEN B R A
BEREHEEHITRAT —ZHABT
EERHN BB BREAE
1,000,000 7T « HE®RRE 2 WHmL
70008 TEREE_E—tF+=
A=+ BULEFEZHEARERE

7
e
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40 Disposals of subsidiaries (Continued)

(0

On 5 May 2017, the Company completed the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of Ace Winner, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, to an independent third
party, at a total consideration of HK$50,000,000. A net gain
on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$16,861,000
was recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The gain on disposal of
subsidiaries is summarised as follows:

40 HEMELT (&)

()

RZE—+FRARB REERT
R EARQE 22 ENB ARG Ace
Winner & 2B 1T A F — 2L
$£=77  #R(E/A50,000,000/8 T °
TEMWNB 2 2 FR =Y
16,861,000 8 TEREE T —
FH-_AZ+t—BUEFEZHAK
WmRER - HEMB AR 2 W

M
2017
—E—tF
HK$000 !
FETT !
Sale consideration SHERE 50,000 !
Less: Net assets disposed of: W TR EEEFE :
— Property, plant and equipment — W BE KK 71,858 !
— Deposits —il& 216 !
— Prepaid land lease payments — TafS L EFKRIE 13,806 |
— Inventories — e 32,156 !
— Trade and other receivables — JEWE 5 FRIE fe A b E MR IE 108,276 |
— Cash and cash equivalents —RELHACEFEY 16,518 |
— Trade and other payables — EfTE 5 F0E R H AR IR (113,896)!
— Bank and other borrowings — RITRHEMEE (73,289)!
Net assets disposed of FrtEEEFE 55,645 |
(5,645)!
Release of exchange reserve BHIE N FEE 6,955 !
Non-controlling interests TR 17,424
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z WS 18,734 |
Withholding tax on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR BN (1,873)!
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB ARz W F 8 16,861 !

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

HEMBRBZAERREEEY

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: FEASFEOWIT
2017
—E—tF
HK$000 |
FET !
Cash consideration WEREB 50,000 !
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of I ERERREEEY (16,518)"
Net proceeds of disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB ARSI FE 33,482
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40 Disposals of subsidiaries (Continued)

(d)

40 HEMELT (&)

On 11 October 2017, the Company completed the disposal d RZZE—tF+A+—H FX&H

of the entire issued share capital of Jolly Champion, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, to an independent third
party, at a total consideration of HK$2,500,000,000. A net
gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$447,066,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2017.
The gain on disposal of subsidiaries is summarised as

follows:

N

ERHEARFRZZ2ENBRRT
ExHEBITRAT—RBILE=
77 v #R{E52,500,000,000% T °
HEMWMB A2 2 FREY
447,066,000 8 TEREE T —+
FH+-_A=+t—BHUEFEZHAK
mRER HEMNBAR 2 W=

2017

—E—tF

HK$000 '

FBT

Sale consideration HERE 2,500,000 |
Less: Net assets disposed of: W TN EEEFE - !
— Property, plant and equipment — W WER&E 180,249 |
— Intangible assets —BEE 1,043,453 |
— Goodwil —me 445,229 !
— Deferred tax assets —REHIBEE 13,903 |
— Inventories —EFE 13,047 |
— Prepayments and other receivables — FERT IR R H A E YRR 1,257,221 |
— Cash and cash equivalents —REeELHASEEY 213,734 |
— Other payables — HAbERFIE (995,495),
— Income tax payables — FERETIS R (54,701),
— Deferred tax liabilities — RERIBEEE (189,347),

1

]

Net assets disposed of FrtEEEFE 1,927,293 |
-

572,707 '

Realisation of exchange reserve BIGME H (125,641),
1

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz K F 58 447,066 '

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

HEHBARZRERREEEY

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MAFREIMT -
2017 !
—E—tF
HK$000 !
FET !
Cash consideration RENE 2,500,000 |
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EERS RS EEY (213,734)!
Net proceeds of disposal of subsidiaries HENB A RS IEF58 2,286,266 '
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41 Notes to the consolidated statement of 41 GEHAaRERME

cash flows
2017 ! 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$°000 | HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss before income tax from continuing B EETS 2 RIS AT E 18 |
operations (139,910);  (1,400,314)
Profit before income tax from discontinued RIS 2 BR PRAS T AT A 7 |
operations (Note 30) (BF3E(30)) 709,741 ! 85,718
1
Profit/(loss) before income tax including MrFrSRiATE R (E1E) |
discontinued operations (BREERIEEE) 569,831 '  (1,314,596)
1
]
Adjustments for: KRR :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - = M REITE 196,139 | 81,114
Amortisation B 174 | 358
Finance cost BT A AR 1,313 4,469
Bank interest income RITF SN (3,615), (17,893)
Dividend income i BN (1,663), (2,265)
Other interest income H A F B A (1,050), (31,621)
Loss on step acquisition DR 2 B 1,317 | -
Fair value changes of investment properties REMHEZ NHEEEZ (40,305)! 45,956
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (Note 40) S B B &) 2 W (B 5 40) (503,812)! (144)
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment H &2 - BB K& &E 2 EE 112 10,051
Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value 1ZAF(BEF AIBH |
through profit or loss WigEE N EEER (172,914)! 665,334
Returns on available-for-sale financial asset At EF IS E E 2 Bk (89,632), -
Share of result of an associate PME—REE R A2 EE 122 | -
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of trade ~ JEUE 5 218 & E b B I A |
and other receivables, net ME (BE), B EFRE (209,041), 155,503
1
Operating loss before changes in working capital &84 4 & &ha) 2 &= E18 (253,024)! (403,734)
1
]
Changes in working capital: EEEED) :
Properties under development ERBPYE (772,279),  (1,304,123)
Prepayments, trade and other receivables TR FRIE - FERE SRR :
Ko B Ath [ WK IE (318,203), (670,402)
Inventories FE (72,346), 11,624
Trade and other payables JERNTE 5 5RI8 I B th AN FRIE 1,126,767 | 360,291
1
Net cash used in operations KEEGMAE e F5E (289,085),  (2,006,344)
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42 Non-controlling interests 42 FERRES
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non- RERIEERERSE 2 RSB B AR
controlling interests are set out below: BT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF ! —ZE—FX
Percentage of equity interest held by HRIFERERIFEEZ :
non-controlling interests: AR DL \
Landing Jeju (Note (a)) E R EMN (K5 () NIATER | 50%
Jiangsu Wenrun Optoelectronic Co. Ltd. IEREEYEAR AR !
("Jiangsu Wenrun”) (Note (b)) (IIgFwiB]) (FI5E (b)) NIATEH | 30.56%
Notes: FiEE
(@  On 3 January 2017, the Company completed the acquisition of the (@ RKRIZE—LEF—A=0 AEBEZTKKE
entire issued share capital of Callisto Group. Landing Jeju became a Callistofe Bl 2 252 BITIRA - RIEES
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company after the acquisition (Note 39). H%  EREMNKARARZZENBAR
(PH#E39)
(b)  On 5 May 2017, the Group completed the disposal of Ace Winner b)) RKRZZ—tFRARBE AEETKLEE

Group. The Group does not held any equity interest of Jiangsu Wenrun
after the disposal of Ace Winner Group (Note 40(c)).

Ace Winner & [ o 1A ) & Ace Winner % B
% AEBNEBZEETMIABEZBE
(M5 40(c)) °
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43 Operating lease commitments 43

44

As at 31 December 2017, the Group leases certain of its office
properties and premises under terms of one to three years (2016:
two to fifty years). As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases falling due as follows:

EEHAXIE

R-Z—+F+-_A=+—H AE£EEH
EEETHAEME WERELH—=
ZF(ZE—RF WMERAT+F)  HN=Z
—+F+-_A=Z+—8  KEBMZTAHE
HraerREBEREAE 2 HH
=N

2017 2016
—E—tF, —E—RF
HK$°000 : HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 22,624 53,118
Over one year and within five years BB —FERFA 2,467 | 141,077
Over five years BEAF - ! 1,549,407
|
25,091 ! 1,743,602
Capital commitments 44 BEFKIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note BRERE B MARM 43T EMmE
43 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the HIESN  REBERIRERRAE T 7 E A%
following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period: Z:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
HK$000 ' HK$'000
FET ! FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EEESEES . :
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKREE 1,164,317 ! 1,661,676
Properties under development RMYHE 90,424 | 1,312,014
Available-for-sale financial asset AIHHERBEE -! 858,000
1
1,254,741 ! 3,831,690
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45 Related party transactions

46

45 RBEAXSH

The following transactions were carried out with related parties: BB ETT R SIAT -
2017 | 2016
ZE—tF |, —TRF
HK$°000 | HK$’000
FET | FAT
Expenses: X : :
Short-term benefits (Note (7)) 7= BRRE A (B EE () (42,347), (72,770)
Recharge/income: ARV UNE !
Expenses recharged and rental for aircraft usage Ri(E AR EN LHES !
(Note (ii)) (B &E (i) 27,163 ! -
Management fee income (Note (iii)) BB (FIEE i) 2,880 | 2,400

Notes:

(i) The amounts represented remuneration of directors and other key
management of the Company during the year, which was determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

(ii) The expenses recharged and rental for aircraft usage was charged to
Landing International Limited, the shareholder of the Company, at prices
mutually agreed by both parties with reference to the prevailing market

rates.

(i) A related company engaged the Company to provide management
services with a monthly fee of HK$240,000 which is a mutually agreed

by both parties from 1 March 2016.

Event after the reporting period

On 21 February 2018, the Government of Jeju Special Self-
Governing Province conditionally approved the Group to relocate

its Landing Casino to Jeju Shinhwa World.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no other material event after the

reporting period.

46

FAE -

(ii)

(iii)

FHSREARAEEREMIZERE
RERZFHH - DaFHZEERFEAR
BRTSBEMETE -

REFEAAEMRASNEL2ERTT
BRZTNEFERBEZEBEAARF
IR EE S EFR AR A BWER

—REB AR ZEARBREEERY - A
2 /240,000 L THAINEFBE =T
—NEZA—BREEEBE -

BENEER

AEEER_E—NF_A=-_+—HEE
INEF B B0R BT B A (G RLAE - A
HESIRGS B B Mg 57 o

BRAPIINEESN - FE BB BT AE
fEAREIA °
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47 Statement of financial position of the

o B A M i

47 ELFMBERAE

Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RIREHKR - BEAAR AT BHRRARZE
Company as at the end of the reporting date is as follows: RSN
2017 2016
—E—tF ZET—KF
HK$°000 ! HK$'000
FHET ! FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE |
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI%E 4,794,334 1,637,937
Property, plant and equipment ME - R M RE 4,554 ! 7,502
Amount due from a subsidiary FEM — KB A EI IR 6,821,738 ! 1,499,368
Prepayments and other receivables B RIE I E At FE W R IE - 10,006
11,620,626 ! 3,154,813
Current assets mEEE :
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU BB A B 5k18 2,852,049 | 4,483,927
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —REEEFIB - 87,116
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIA Fe B Ath R ITE 186,097 | 28,760
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &R AFE(BEL ABm s M EE 317,865 ! 858,223
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIBEEED 1,984,923 ! 5,689,098
5,340,934 ! 11,147,124
Total assets SEME 16,961,560 ' 14,301,937
Equity and liabilities BaRAfR :
Equity attributable to owners of the ENFHBARGLES !
Company X
Share capital & A 1,473,953 ! 2,056,588
Reserves (Note) R () 15,303,979 ! 6,826,457
Total equity HmEs 16,777,932 | 8,883,045
Liabilities a]iR :
Non-current liability EREIAR X
Amount due to a shareholder JES — R R FIE - 5,361,193
Current liabilities mEARE !
Other payables H At FETFRIE 40,061 ! 20,327
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A R15R18 143,567 ! 37,372
Total liabilities EfEleaE 183,628 ! 5,418,892
Total equity and liabilities HEERAR 16,961,560 ' 14,301,937
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A Y B AR B A
. . agn — s -
47 Statement of financial position of the 47 FLFMBRRE (8])
Company (Continued)
Note: B & -
Share  Contributed Other Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
REE HAZE Bzl Ef 7 At
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"E—HA—H 8,591,221 171,902 - (1,200,652) 7,562,471
Loss and total comprehensive FEBBREZEEBBATE
loss for the year - - 193,993 (930,007) (736,014)
At 31 December 2016 R=Z—A%+-A=+-8 8,591,221 171,902 193993 (2,130,659) 6826457
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—HA—H 8,591,221 171,902 193,993 (2,130,659) 6,826,457
Profit and total comprehensive FEEMREZHREEE
income for the year - - - 1,040,886 1,040,886
Cancellation of paid-up capital HHEWER - 1,850,929 - - 1,850,929
Issuance of ordinary shares by rights BRHRREITEBR
issue 4,034,958 - - - 4,034,958
Issuance of ordinary shares by placing BB EE{TEBR 1,550,749 - - - 1,550,749
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+-A=+—H 14,176,928 2,022,831 193,993 (1,089,773) 15,303,979
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Major Properties held by the Group

KEM 7572 EEHY ¥

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BRRBME
Attributable
Gross  Expected interest of
Location Use Site area floor area completion date the Group
weE Fi# HARE B ZEEE i B AR REE R
('000 sg.m.) ('000 sgq.m.)
(FFHAK)  (FFEHK)
Seogwang-ril in Andeog-myeon,  Residential 537 141 2017-2019 100%
Seoguipo City,
Jeju Special,
Self-Governing Province,
South Korea
EE: F= —E+EFE
N ESSlI= DIy | —E-hEF
FaERA™

Andeog-myeon Seogwang-ril

Annual Report 2017 | — & — 4 4 4

211



Financial Summary

MBGHEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HILFE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—ZE—= —T-mE —T-hF ZT—RF | ZF-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 !
FHET FHET FHET FHET FBT
(Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (a)) (Note (a)) |
(B 5E (b)) (FF5E (b)) (P 5E (b)) (P 5E(a)) (Btat (a) |
(Restated) !
(&%) :
RESULTS £ |
Revenue U 2% 181,075 223,318 246,500 363,447 896,250 !
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHN,(BE) (142,197)  (342,656) (1,086,214) (1,321,416) 501,222 !
Attributable to: FEAG :
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZ= DN (137,147)  (293,677) (987,971)  (1,067,455) 505,067 !
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = (5,050) (48,979) (98,243) (253,961) (3,845)!
(142,197)  (342,656) (1,086,214) (1,321,416) 501,222 !
Notes: MEsE -
(@) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statement. (a) ERMBET IR A KAV BHRE -

(b) The financial figures were extracted from the 2016 annual report. No separate (b)
disclosures of continuing operations and discontinued operations were made

on the financial figures for 2013 to 2015.

BERMBEFIREE T RFFH - H_F
—=HFE_T-REIZUBBRFAELSELS
ERDEIEBD FRE -

At 31 December

R+=HA=+—H ,

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

—E-=F —T-NF ZT-HF T F|ZF—tF|

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 !

FET TET TET THET FET |

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  HER&R :
1

Total assets BERE 1,572,258 5,893,237 11,408,675 17,345,233 | 19,228,926 '
Total liabilities BlEER (730,752) (1,382,151) (1,720,275) (8,244,092)| (3,072,178)!
|

Shareholders’ funds BRERES 841,506 4,511,086 9,688,400 9,101,141 | 16,156,748 '
|

Equity attributable to: FE(RRESS ¢ !
Owners of the parent HRRHEAA 768,484 3,911,132 9,232,923 7,953,277 | 16,156,748
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M 2R 73,022 599,954 455,477 1,147,864 -

|

]

841,506 4,511,086 9,688,400 9,101,141 | 16,156,748 '
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